
 

 

 
 

Wednesday, 18 January 2023 

Date: Thursday, 26 January 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Council Chamber, County Hall, Matlock 

 For any further information please contact:  
Ivan Walters 
ivan.walters@derbyshire.gov.uk 
01629 538328 

 
A G E N D A 

  
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
  
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
  

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
  

3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Derbyshire 
Police and Crime Panel held on 17 November 2022. 
  

4.   To consider a report from the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Derbyshire on the Proposed Precept for 2023/24  
  

5.   Interim update on delivery against the Police and Crime Plan including 
update on Strong Local Policing  
  

6.   Announcements from the PCC  

Public Document Pack



 

 

  
7.   Forthcoming Events  

 
To hear an oral update on forthcoming events (if any) 
  

8.   Date of Next Meeting - 16 March 2023  
 

 



 

 

PUBLIC 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL held on 
Thursday, 17 November 2022 at Council Chamber, County Hall, Matlock. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor G Potter (Derby City Council)  (in the Chair) 
 

Councillors W Armitage (North East Derbyshire District Council), A Barrow (High 
Peak Borough Council), V Clare (Erewash Borough Council), H Dhindsa (Derby City 
Council), M Eyre (Derby City Council), J Frudd (Erewash Borough Council), Dr 
S Handsley (Independent Member), C Hart (Derbyshire County Council), P Innes 
(Chesterfield Borough Council), D Lomax (High Peak Borough Council), D Murphy 
(Derbyshire Dales District Council), M Murray (Amber Valley Borough Council), 
P Niblock (Chesterfield Borough Council), G Potter (Derby City Council) and D 
Watson (Bolsover District Council) 
 
Officers present: Alec Dubberley, (Head of Democratic & Registration Services) and 
Ivan Walters (Democratic Services) . 
 
Also present: Angelique Foster, Derbyshire Police and Crime Commissioner, Andrew 
Dale (OPCC), Joe Rhodes-Orwin (OPCC) and Marie Romano (OPCC).   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Dooley (Bolsover District 
Council), R Flatley (Derbyshire County Council) G Rhind (South Derbyshire District 
Council) and V Newbury (Independent Member). 

  
39/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

  
40/22 MINUTES 

 
 RESOLVED to approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 

held on 8 September 2022 
  

41/22 REVIEW OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2021-2025 
 

 The Police and Crime Commissioner informed the Panel of a proposed 
amendment to the Police and Crime Plan for Derbyshire 2021-25. 
  
The Commissioner had a duty under section 9(a) of the Police Reform 
and Social Responsibility Act  2011 (PRSRA) to keep the police and crime 
plan under review. 
  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Pursuant to the above duty, the Commissioner was seeking to vary the 
Police and Crime Plan by updating the key threat and risk areas, to 
ensure they reflect fit for purpose.  
  
The Commissioner had consulted with the Chief Constable regarding the 
proposed variation and the Chief Constable agreed. 
  
Derbyshire Constabulary along with partners carried out a well-
established Strategic Threat & Risk Assessment (STRA) process 
periodically. 
  
This process highlighted the top threat and risk areas which were 
relevant within Derbyshire based on the analysis of crime data. 
  
The previous threat and risk areas along with the updated list which had 
been confirmed through the last STRA process were detailed in the report 
  
A revised version of the plan was appended to the report. 
  
Following a number of observations and questions from members, and in 
particular regarding fraud and cyber-dependent crime being omitted from 
the amended threat and risk areas, the Commissioner confirmed that the 
amended list was based on the latest analysis and crime data, and 
despite some crime areas being removed, a strong focus still remained on 
those areas. 
  
RESOLVED to note the changes as detailed in the PCC’s report.  
  

42/22 INTERIM UPDATE ON DELIVERY AGAINST POLICE AND CRIME 
PLAN 
 

 The Police and Crime Commissioner attended the meeting and provided 
the Panel with a summary of the work she had conducted in the delivery 
of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Plan 2021-25, since the last meeting. 
  
The paper which had been circulated to members in advance of the 
meeting provided an overview of the key work undertaken by the Police 
and Crime Commissioner in relation to her Police and Crime Plan from 9 
September until 8 November 2022. Appended to the report for Panel 
Members information, were the detailed papers on Rural Crime and 
Violence against Women and girls, that had been considered at the 
Performance Scrutiny Meetings on 6 October and 3 November 2022 
  
Members thanked the PCC for her detailed summary and commended 
her for the good work and large number of activities she had undertaken. 
  

Page 2



 

 

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions and also made a 
number of comments and observations on the progress on the areas of 
delivery against the Police and Crime Plan, to which the Police and Crime 
Commissioner responded. 
  
RESOLVED that the Panel note the update in relation to progress against 
delivery of the Police and Crime Plan 2021-25  
  
   

43/22 TACKLING BURGLARY 
 

 The PCC had provided Members with a report on Tackling Burglaries in 
advance of the meeting. 
  
This was a key priority in the Police and Crime Plan and the 
Commissioner explained that she had worked closely with the Chief 
Constable over the last year on their action plan to tackle burglaries 
across Derbyshire. Following on from the Community Charter and 
Neighbourhood Policing Strategy launched by the Force to deliver on The 
Police and Crime Plan, earlier in the year, the Chief Constable committed 
that officers would attend every home burglary reported within the county. 
This commitment ensures that all residents who are victimised by 
burglary, irrespective of where they reside, will receive a visit by officers.  
  
During late September, the NPCC made a commitment that all forces 
across England and Wales would send an officer to investigate all reports 
of home burglary, irrespective of location or stolen items.  
  
The pledge was made following findings from His Majesty’s Inspectorate 
of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS), who released 
a report on acquisitive crime and the College of Policing, who had carried 
out an evidence-based review, setting out how rapid police attendance at 
scenes could increase victim satisfaction and benefit investigations. 
  
Members were given the opportunity to ask questions and also made a 
number of comments and observations on the Annual Report, to which 
the Police and Crime Commissioner responded.  
  
Particular reference was made by members to the need for resources to 
meet this commitment and how this may reflect on resources available to 
deal with other areas of crime. The PCC confirmed that she received 
updates on a regular basis, and it had been reported to her, that there 
were sufficient resources within the force to meet the demand of attending 
all home burglary incidents.  
  
RESOLVED to note the report on tackling burglaries  

Page 3



 

 

44/22 VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS 
 

 The PCC had provided members with a report in advance of the meeting 
which gave a general update concerning work on Violence Against 
Women and Girls (VAWG) as depicted within the Police and Crime Plan. 
  
The Police and Crime Plan for Derbyshire 2021-2025 highlighted VAWG 
within two of the six priority areas, ‘Strong Local Policing’ and ‘Victim 
Support and Safeguarding’.  
  
Commitment to delivering a Derbyshire specific VAWG strategy, working 
with police and partners to prevent VAWG and providing help for all 
victims of domestic abuse, sexual abuse, harassment, and stalking are all 
sub-delivery points stated within the Plan, and work was ongoing within all 
these area, details of which were given in the report. 
  
Details were given of the Derbyshire specific VAWG Strategy which was 
finalised and signed by key partners including Derbyshire Constabulary, 
Derbyshire County Council, Derby City Council and the eight district 
authorities in May 2022. It was formally launched during the same month 
and is available for the public to view on the Commissioner’s website. 
  
Since the Strategy was launched, a dedicated VAWG partnership board 
had been formed comprising of key agencies who signed the strategy 
including the Police, Derby City and Derbyshire County Council, district 
and borough councils, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service and the 
Integrated Care Board. 
  
A Derbyshire partnership VAWG action plan was being devised amongst 
partner agencies of the newly formed VAWG board which would soon be 
put in place to deliver against the strategy. When developed, the 
coordinated plan would then be implemented to tackle VAWG related 
offences across Derbyshire. It was hoped that this would be finalised 
during December. 
  
The Commissioner had also hosted a further scrutiny meeting on 3rd 
November 2022 to revisit the progress being made by the force 
surrounding VAWG. A detailed report was requested by the 
Commissioner concerning the current force plans along with performance 
data. This was appended as part of the Interim update report considered 
at this meeting. 
  
Members were given the opportunity to ask questions and also made a 
number of comments and observations on the Annual Report, to which 
the Police and Crime Commissioner responded. 
  

Page 4



 

 

Particular reference was made to Misogyny within Police forces. The 
Commissioner confirmed that she was taking a very strong stance against 
this and contained within the Action Plan was training and education. It 
was also reported the PCC had now got a lead officer in dealing with 
VAWG.  
  
In answer to a question in relation to the online focus groups that had 
been facilitated by the OPCC specifically for women and organisations 
representing women to discuss their concerns the Commissioner 
confirmed that the results of the survey were available on the PCC’s 
website. 
  
RESOLVED to note the update report concerning work on Violence 
against Women & Girls  
  

45/22 MEMBER QUESTIONS TO THE PCC 
 

 Question 1:  from Cllr H Dhindsa 
  
The Government’s new ‘Drug Strategy – Harm to Hope’ requires the 
formation of a local dedicated Drug and Alcohol Strategic Partnership. 
The government’s newly formed Combating Drugs Unit – as part of it’s 10 
year drugs plan to cut crime and save lives – has requested this 
countywide partnership. Representation on this multi-agency partnership 
includes a senior police leader and the local Police and Crime 
Commissioner. Can the PCC share with the panel how this fits with her 
current Police and Crime Plan and what resources and plans are currently 
dedicated to tackle this and whether new funding has been allocated by 
Government to implement the new Drug Strategy to: 

a.    The PCC 
b.    Derbyshire Police 
c.     Any other partner agencies. 

  
  
PCC Response:  
  
The Police and Crime Plan aligns directly with ‘From Harm to Hope’ – the 
Government’s ten-year drugs strategy to cut crime and save lives. I can 
confirm that Derbyshire Constabulary has recently established a strategic 
Combating Drugs Partnership, through which a county-wide action plan 
will be jointly developed and managed, with agencies held to account for 
delivery. Derbyshire Constabulary are committed to working in partnership 
to tackle the supply and misuse of controlled drugs to help clamp down on 
anti-social behaviour, reduce neighbourhood crimes including burglary 
and protect people from the harm caused by serious and organised 
criminals. A key element of the Strategy is developing first class treatment 

Page 5



 

 

and recovery services. Derbyshire Constabulary recognise the importance 
of working in partnership to improve early identification and diversion into 
treatment services. To further support this aim, additional Home Office 
funding has been secured to enhance drug testing on arrest (DToA). 
  
Derbyshire Constabulary has a number of operational teams dedicated to 
tackling drug-related organised crime, child and criminal exploitation and 
emerging threats posed by drugs gangs operating across county lines. 
Additionally, through established tasking and co-ordinating processes, the 
Constabulary has access to additional resources and specialist 
capabilities through the East Midlands Special Operations Unit (EMSOU) 
and continues to build on well-established partnership safeguarding 
arrangements, to help protect vulnerable people from the harm caused by 
offenders connected to drug-related criminality. 
  
Supplementary Question:  
This was a very important strategy, but it is clear that this will need new 
funding to make it happen, and I would urge the PCC an the partner 
organisations to ensure it is properly resourced in order to make it 
happen. Are you able to give an indication of where this funding will come 
from? 
  
Response:  
  
One of the Key aspects of this 10-year Strategy was that the government 
was putting a duty on all organisations working together and work was 
currently being carried out by partners through the Combating Drugs 
Partnership about how best to use the funding available. I can provide you 
with details of the funding coming to Derbyshire 
  
Question 2:   from Cllr H Dhindsa 
  
In response to a question from Cllr Alan Barrow, at the last PCP meeting, 
the PCC gave the following information on the breakdown of officers by 
gender and ethnicity: 
  
‘Derbyshire is a leading force for the recruitment of female officers. From 
the start of Uplift counting to end of July 2022 the force have recruited 493 
police officers, of which 237 (48%) are female officers and 18 (3.75%) 
have stated their ethnicity as B.A.M.E. There are significant plans in place 
to increase the number of black and minority applicants. The force 
monitors all of this closely to look at any adverse impact in the processes 
and utilise positive action officers to try to improve attraction recruitment in 
this area. At the end of July 2022, the proportion of female officers was 
39% and the proportion of black and minority officers was 3.2%’ 
  

Page 6



 

 

It was pleasing to see that Derbyshire Police are leading in gender 
representation. However, the proportion of Black and Minority Officers is 
disappointingly low, despite the work of the national Police Uplift 
Programme Unit as well as the Constabulary. Can the PCC share what 
significant plans strategically she has taken to tackle this under 
representation and how does the 3.2% proportion of black and minority 
officers compare with the black and minority population make up of 
Derby? 
  
  
PCC Response 
  
Derbyshire Constabulary has a target of an additional 283 officers over 
the three years of the National Police Uplift Programme. They are on track 
to meet this target four months early by the end of November 2022.  
  
The Chief Constable has oversight of our BAME attraction strategy 
through the Attraction, Recruitment and Retention Board that she 
personally chairs. 
  
The Constabulary still uses the 6.7% BAME figure for Derbyshire from the 
2011 census as a comparator as the 2022 census data on ethnicity is still 
to be released. The Recruitment and Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion 
(EDI) teams have been active throughout the Police Uplift period by 
undertaking engagement seminars in schools, colleges, universities, at 
force headquarters and online. Various social media outlets have also 
been utilised. Events have been targeted at schools and colleges in 
under-represented areas, and communication campaigns in diverse 
communities via their PCSOs, as well as representatives at events from 
their staff networks, including their Race Equality Network. 
  
The Constabulary’s police officer attraction and recruitment campaigns up 
until the middle of this year were mainly focussed on securing a high 
volume of quality candidates in what is a very competitive recruitment 
market with other police forces also seeking to recruit additional officers. 
Their attraction campaigns were therefore really broad to deliver the high 
volume needed. 
  
The Constabulary were now prioritising and focusing their attraction on 
under-represented groups. A full review of the county is being undertaken 
to ensure their outreach and engagement is correctly targeted. Their 
Positive Action and Recruitment Engagement teams have rolled out a 
series of events in communities to achieve the results they are looking for, 
including the Derby Mosque, the Derby All Nations for Christ Church 
(ANFC), Derby City Council and Futures for Business. Derbyshire 
Constabulary are also working with an external partner to deliver courses 

Page 7



 

 

aimed towards people from lower socio-economic backgrounds to 
facilitate careers within the Constabulary. The Constabulary’s Positive 
Action team continue to host enhanced. support and guidance sessions 
for individuals who are eligible from underrepresented communities. 
  
Supplementary Question: 
  
From how I read the response it appears that ethnic minority 
representation is not being seen as a priority. It describes the priority as 
being to get Police Officers recruited to a certain level. The priority should 
be about increasing ethnic minority representation both locally and 
nationally. There is now a golden opportunity to improve our ethnic 
minority representation in Forces. 
  
Response 
  
I am looking at recruitment issues in Derbyshire as a whole which 
includes Derby City.  A lot of work is being undertaken by the 
Constabulary to attract candidates from the BAME community and also in 
retaining them once appointed. We are working hard to deliver on that.  
The latest recruitment cohort pre summer saw 11% from the BAME 
Community. My focus is on being very representative whilst having regard 
for experience and skills and ensuring we get the right people for the job 
and then retaining them. 
  
   

46/22 ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE PCC 
 

 The Budget Consultation process had recently been launched asking the 
public to take a view on precept options for policing. 
  
A programme of 16 days of actions was to commence shortly with regards 
to Violence against Women and Girls with lots of activities planned. 
  
    

47/22 FORTHCOMING EVENTS 
 

 A Community Speedwatch Seminar was to be held on Saturday 19 
November 2022, and was the first of its kind recognising the efforts of the 
700+ volunteers and looking at progress over the past year. 
  
A Performance Scrutiny Meeting focusing on strong local policing to be 
held on 23 November 2022. 
  
A Police and Crime Panel Briefing meeting would take place at Police and 
Fire HQ on 24 November 2022. Members would receive a presentation 

Page 8



 

 

from the Commissioner’s office on the functions carried out along with a 
specific finance briefing and opportunity to ask questions. A tour of the 
joint training centre had been arranged in the afternoon for members to 
see some of the facilities used by officers within Derbyshire Constabulary. 
  

48/22 WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 Discussion around the Work Programme would take place at the next 
Business meeting, and all Members were encouraged to attend. 
  
The outcome of the Complaints Working Group recent consideration of a 
complaint would be reported to the next meeting PCP Business meeting. 
  

49/22 DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 26 JANUARY 2023 
 

 The date of the next meeting was noted. 
 

The meeting finished at 12.05 pm 
 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

REPORT 
TITLE  PROPOSED PRECEPT FOR 2023/24  
REPORT 
OF POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE 
DATE 26TH JANUARY 2022 

 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To notify the Police and Crime Panel of Derbyshire of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner’s (PCCs) proposed Band D precept for 2023/24 of £266.60, 

being an increase of £15, in accordance with the duty under the Police 

Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. 

 
 

2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 

2.1 In December 2022, the Home Secretary published the provisional police 

grant report in which she sets out her determination for 2023/24 of the 

aggregate amounts of grants that she proposes to pay under the Act . 

 

2.2 On 14th December 2022, the Minister of State for Crime and Policing, Mr. 

Chris Philp MP outlined the detail of the proposed settlement. This included: 

• Flexibility for PCCs to raise additional funding through precept 
flexibility. This will enable PCCs to increase their Band D precept by 
up to £15 for 2023/24 

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
MEETING 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



• A total settlement of £17.2 billion, which sees an increase of £0.3 
billion on the funding settlement in 2023/24 

• An increase of funding available to PCCs of £523 million, assuming 
full take-up of precept flexibility 

• Full take up of precept funding by PCCs would deliver £349 million 
of this increase 

• Maintained funding for the recruitment of the 20,000 additional police 
officers nationally 

•  £1.0 billion for counter-terrorism policing  

• £1.0 billion for national policing programmes and priority  
 

2.3 I have examined the proposed budget with my senior team and received a 

report from the Chief Constable on the required level of funding for 2023/24. 

In making my decision I have assessed the financial implications, the 

potential risk to front line policing and delivery of the Police and Crime Plan 

priorities. Further to this, a letter has been sent from the Chief Constable 

outlining the Constabulary's business case for additional funding for 2023/24. 

This is attached at Appendix A. 
 

2.4 I plan to approve the Revenue Budget and the indicative proposed precept 

for 2023/24, on 26th January 2023. The Revenue Budget and Precept 

2023/24 report is attached at Appendix B. 
 

2.5 I am aware of my responsibilities to notify the Police and Crime Panel by 1st 

February of my precept proposals. In addition, as the Panel is a public 

meeting. I recognise a further need to give timely notice to the public. This 

report therefore advises the Panel of the actions that I intend to take. 

 

2.6 In accordance with Schedule 5 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 

Act 2011 (‘the Act’) the Commissioner must notify the Police and Crime Panel 

(‘the Panel’) of the precept which the Commissioner is proposing to issue for 

the forthcoming financial year. Under paragraph 3 of Schedule 5 the panel is 

asked to review the proposed precept having been notified of it. Details of the 

Rules of Procedure for the Panel are attached at Appendix C. 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 12



3. ATTACHEMENTS

APPENDIX A – Letter from Chief Constable outlining the Constabulary's 

business case for additional funding for 2023/24 

APPENDIX B – Revenue Budget and Precept Report for 2023/24 

APPENDIX C – Rules of Procedure for the Panel 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The Police and Crime Panel of Derbyshire review the proposed precept for

2023/24 and support the decision, of the Commissioner, for a Band D

increase of £15.

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Andrew Dale 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.police.uk 

Page 13

mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.police.uk


Derbyshire Constabulary, Headquarters, Butterley Hall, Ripley, Derbyshire, DE5 3RS 

Incoming telephone calls and communications may be monitored and recorded 

Contact: Chief Constable Rachel Swann 

Direct Telephone: 

Our reference: HQ/XEC/CC/cam 

Date: January 2023 

Angelique Foster 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire 
Butterley Hall 
Ripley 
Derbyshire 
DE5 3RS 

Dear Commissioner 

The force is committed to delivering an excellent service to the communities of Derbyshire, one 
they can trust. Our core aim is to fight crime, proactively bring offenders to justice and protect 
the most vulnerable from harm. Our officers, staff and volunteers do this 24/7, 365 days a year. 

Over the past two years we have delivered significant change and improvement, but there is still 
much more to be done that will require additional investment and therefore I am asking you for 
the maximum permissible precept of £15 this year. I know that you are acutely aware of the 
continued challenges facing the Constabulary. Some are unique to us, but others are a factor of 
wider influence. I am grateful for the continued support you give to the force to meet these 
challenges head on.  

The Constabulary has modelled a range of financial scenarios over the last few months, 
determined to ensure resilience at a time of great uncertainty. This includes utilising the 
opportunity the Government is providing you as Police and Crime Commissioner, to increase 
the policing element of the Council Tax precept (hereafter the precept) by up to £15 against a 
Band-D property. With my team I have carefully considered the implications of this range of 
financial options. Whilst I fully recognise that the communities of Derbyshire are already feeling 
the financial impact of the cost-of-living crisis, my primary consideration must be how I can best 
deliver policing within the county, utilising the options provided by a precept increase, in 
conjunction with the Home Office grant funding and limitations upon this.  

The Constabulary has been heavily focused on improving its performance and the service we 
provide to the public. I have reported to you quarterly, through the Performance Scrutiny 
Meetings, on the significant progress made by the force in delivering your Police and Crime 
Plan. The 2022 HMICFRS PEEL inspection found that the force is continuing to move forward 
and recognised how much work had been required to rebuild key foundations in our service, 
whilst being very clear on the work and improvements still required. I remain focused and 
resolute in leading us forward to make these improvements and provide the best possible 
service to our communities.  

We have moved to a new normal, post COVID-19 and in response to global events, faced 
increasing supply and demand pressures as we strive to maintain and improve upon the good 
work observed throughout 2022.  The current market position poses many challenges to the 

Appendix A

Page 14



2 

modernisation of our estate with increases in excess of 20% for building materials and significant 
uncertainty surrounding energy prices. Many of the financial pressures, like this, are external to 
the force. We had prudently planned for these cost increases, but these have been far in excess 
of what could have been anticipated.  

The force estate requires continued significant investment; however, the cost of borrowing has 
also soared. We have revised our estates approach to concentrate on what must be done to 
maintain and sustain a strong local policing service to the public, with renewed focus on 
opportunities and efficiencies we can gain from the estate we have, in conjunction with the 
planned longer term new builds, to reconsider options when those borrowing costs reduce. 
Given the continued financial pressures, I have set our approach to change and investment as 
one focusing on creating efficiencies and savings internally to fund investment and change 
required without immediate recourse to growth. We have maximised the opportunities the Police 
Uplift Programme (hereafter Uplift) has presented.  In addition, we continue to seek any short-
term limited targeted investment and make the most of this to deal with emerging issues.  

I will take this opportunity to outline some of the key changes and improvements across the 
force over the past 12 months, along with continued challenges, and articulate how we might 
utilise additional funding through the precept to meet the challenges and enhance the services 
we provide. 

Demand 

The force continues to face high levels of demand and increasing complexity of the demand 
itself. Whilst reported incidents (1.9%) and crimes (0.1%) decreased marginally, overall demand 
is forecasted to increase by 3.1% in 2023/4. Within this, certain types of vulnerability-related 
crime and incidents continue to increase. 

In response to the changing demand, the force has implemented changes to best meet this need 
and provide the most efficient and effective service. These include increases in staffing and 
changes in practice in the Control Room, permanently establishing the increased levels of 
PCSOs which had been raised the previous year, increasing numbers in the Rural Crime Team, 
dealing with crime differently with more emphasis at the earliest point of contact, and working 
more appropriately with other agencies following calls for service. The force has also responded 
to meet increases in vulnerability demand. The Safeguarding Coordination Hub (SCH) has been 
formed, which has seen the force merge two previous functions, namely the Neighbourhood 
Safeguarding Teams and Risk and Referral Unit. The restructure went live in May 2022. 
Processes have been streamlined and staff upskilled to provide a consistent approach. 
Collectively, this has provided capacity and capability to improve the timeliness of safeguarding 
assessments. Previous backlogs in safeguarding referrals, across both child and adult 
safeguarding, have been resolved, with changes now enabling the team to operate within 
service level agreements. As such, risk is identified at an early stage and disseminated to 
appropriate agencies for intervention without delay. 

The force has improved its response to missing persons and exploitation through the 
introduction of a force-wide Missing Persons Team, co-located with an Exploitation Team. New 
working practices ensure systems and trigger plans are up to date and accessible to frontline 
officers, to ensure they have the relevant information to inform their decision-making when 
responding to incidents. This approach has significantly improved our response to missing 
persons and the subsequent investigation. The Missing Persons Team focus on repeat episodes 
of missing, seeking to identify the heart of the issues and work more effectively with other 
agencies, thereby reducing those repeat episodes and more effectively safeguarding those most 
vulnerable and at risk. It is worth noting that the force has seen over 6,661 incidents of missing 
people in the past year: a significant demand.  

Page 15



3 

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) and associated offences remained a priority for the 
force.  A VAWG Coordinator has been recruited to help maintain standards of victim care and 
investigation and utilise all legislative tools available to tackle this type of offending. A VAWG 
strategic problem profile has been compiled to understand the nature and scale, key threats, 
and risks within this area. Derbyshire reported a slight (4%) decrease in VAWG reporting crime 
in 2022, accounting for 24,771 crimes, with a third of offences relating to stalking and 
harassment (35%). This follows a significant increase in VAWG reporting in 2021.  
Significant improvement continues to be sought to improve our response to stalking, together 
with legislative changes to the recording of harassment offences during this time, providing an 
explanation for the increase in trend which has been reflected nationally over the past couple of 
years. To support this a Serial, Repeat and Civil Orders Team begins in early January 2023. 
This will focus on the cases of high harm repeat victims and serial offenders of sexual offences, 
stalking and harassment and domestic abuse. They will maximise the use of protective orders 
ensuring these are proactively enforced to reduce risk and harm. Increased reporting brings 
additional pressure in terms of both investigative workloads and victim support. Changes within 
the force operating model and investigations are intended to support this and provide a better 
service for victims of crime. It is forecasted that the trends in increased reporting will continue. 

As mentioned previously, focus remains on our Public Contact Improvement Programme (PCIP) 
in the Control Room. Changes in demand are often most felt within the Control Room where 
they must assess the ever-increasing complexity in incidents and identify vulnerability from first 
point of contact through to resolution of the incident. PCIP is intended to deliver the necessary 
change long term in the control room and it remains an organisational priority. The Control Room 
can often be the first and only point of contact the public have with the police and its vital for 
their confidence in us that we get the service right. Creating the right environment to deliver a 
high performing contact management service is essential. This is being achieved by the recent 
investment in the new Contact Management people structure, to ensure we have the right roles 
to provide the best possible service. Building on this, we will be investing in the right contact 
management technology to ensure that blocks to providing a high performing service are 
removed and modernise public interaction with the Constabulary. Once embedded, these 
investments are expected to deliver improvements such as reduced waiting times and increased 
choice of contact channels for service users. This will also create a working environment for 
contact management colleagues that offers enhanced levels of support and easier access to 
key information. 

This does require continued long-term investment in the technological infrastructure we have. 
The work to move to identify a new suitable system is well underway and will continue over the 
next few years. This forms part of our longer-term financial planning. 

One notable change in dealing more effectively with demand has been led by the Control Room 
using best practice from other forces. Most Appropriate Agency (MAA) looks at calls coming into 
the Control Room and determines which is the most appropriate agency to deal; these calls are 
often from people in crisis, frequently linked to mental health. The police service is often not the 
best placed to address or offer the most appropriate care. This has required working with 
partners to agree different ways of working together. Where life is immediately at risk, police 
resources will still attend. This change has already saved 3,528 hours of officer time between 
August and December 2022, allowing police resources to remain on matters more closely 
related to policing, and callers to access the more appropriate agency and care. Further work is 
underway to develop a mental health triage function to support this, with specific focus on people 
experiencing a mental health crisis. This will require investment but will help better manage 
demand and ensure more frontline police resource remain visible and focused on police-related 
matters.  

Page 16



4 

Home burglary is a priority I have previously set the force and it remains as such. The force fully 
supported the move for policing nationally to make home burglary a mandatory attendance 
crime. Tighter monitoring mechanisms have been implemented to ensure attendance at the 
earliest opportunity and provide victims a suitable response. Residential burglary rate stood at 
247 per 100,000 population (ending September 2022), a reduction from 269 per 100,000 
population compared with the previous 12 months. Regardless of this reduction, it remains 
important to the force based on its importance to the public. On 9th January with the final 
changes to the new force operating model being implemented, the force plans to start to 
introduce Neighbourhood Acquisitive Crime Teams for embedding as a new way of working in 
2023/2024. These will support local neighbourhood resources and conduct all investigations for 
burglary, robbery, and some aspects of vehicle crime, such as a crime series. This will provide 
greater focus on the level of service and in bringing offenders to justice. Later in the year they 
will be assisted by the introduction of Neighbourhood Enforcement Teams who will operate as 
local proactive teams, supporting Safer Neighbourhood Teams in tackling persistent local issues 
and offenders.   

Making our roads safer remains a priority. There have been 358 Killed and Seriously 
Injured (KSI) collisions. There have been 29 fatal collisions resulting in potentially 32 
fatalities (there are still some investigations to conclude before this can be confirmed). This 
is marginally up from the 30 in 2021 but significantly reduced compared to the 50 in 2018. 
Collisions involving impaired driving are increasing and is reflected in our Fatal Four activity. 

There are many crime types that we tackle daily, but the crime examples we have 
discussed within a Derbyshire context feature with significance within the Government 2021 
‘Beating Crime Plan’. This includes additional areas of focus such as knife crime and county 
lines. These are two additional complex thematic areas that have received focus via our 
force governance structure to ensure they are tackled robustly, and feature within the 
changes to the force operating model. This has resulted in operations to target criminal 
behaviour and dedicated resources to tackle the harm caused by county lines type criminality. 
The plans to expand and improve our approach to these areas are touched upon in the later 
sections of this letter, and both are areas that would see improved service through further 
investment. 

The force Demand Strategy has been refreshed to better understand demand reported directly 
to police and via partners, with opportunities to identify hidden demand. This will work to better 
manage demand, reduce demand where appropriate, and allow the force to release capacity to 
invest elsewhere. 

As previously noted, the force is also changing its operating model, notably how its crime and 
intelligence functions are carried out. This has been a result of work over several months. The 
changes will ensure enough suitably trained and supervised Detectives and other resources 
dealing with the more serious types of criminality, bringing offenders to justice, and protecting 
the most vulnerable from harm.  

Strong Local Policing 

Police Uplift Programme 

The force Uplift target is an increase of 283 police officers by 31 March 2023. At the end of 
October 2022 this had been achieved, with 2,110 police officers. The force is on target to 
maintain and exceed this by the end of March 2023, starting the next financial year over its 
target. This will allow the force to manage its establishment from a position of strength, rather 
than continually seeking to recruit to its establishment. This comes with additional cost and, 
should the maximum precept be agreed, enables a more tapered, than sudden return to 

Page 17



5 

establishment numbers. This is a very positive story for the force, having turned around a 
position of under delivering against target on 31 March 2022 to have exceeded this within six 
months. Many departments in force contributed to this achievement. Some of the additional 
precept increase funding provided last year was utilised to deliver this, for example, a Senior 
HR Business Partner was employed to focus specifically on officer retention, an increase in 
tutors available to student officers and targeted variable payments for hard-to-fill roles. There 
were additional temporary increases in staffing in Learning and Development along with other 
aspects of Recruiting. Some of these will have to continue into this year to deliver and maintain 
fully trained and equipped officers on our frontline.   

The force has seen the recruitment of over 350 officers in the past year due to numbers required 
based on retirements and attrition, adding to Uplift. This is a much larger amount than the force 
has ever needed to deliver. A significant success factor was due to the decision I made early in 
2022 to re-open the non-degree entry route into policing. The external recruitment window in 
2022 resulted in over 1,000 applicants and many are now working in the force. I know you were 
very strongly in support of this move, and I am grateful for this. The Home Secretary has now 
committed to continuing with a non-degree route to complement the degree route entry schemes 
and the force will continue to make best use of all routes into policing. Another success has 
been the adoption of direct entry Detectives (DC Degree Holder Entry Programme DHEP) and 
we currently have cohorts in training. 

The increased police officer numbers are very welcome additions to the force, providing more 
in terms of visible presence in our communities, and additional capacity and capability in the 
less visible but equally important areas of policing. 

The Home Office grant funding means that the force will be required to maintain its Uplift 
numbers for the next 12 months. Whilst this has many benefits, it does make the opportunity to 
meet the funding gap more difficult with any savings only being able to be found through staff 
costs or non-staff costs. 

The force continues its commitment to improving the representation of our communities. 
Encouragingly, the recent Degree Holder Entry Programme (DHEP) campaign attracted 13.7% 
B.A.M.E. candidates, whilst the Detective Constable (DC) DHEP campaign attracted 15.7%. 
Investment in the Positive Action Team has been made to help increase representation and with 
further recruitment planned, we expect to see this increase. Derbyshire Constabulary is one of 
the best performing forces for gender representation, ranked third of 43 forces in March 2022. 
As of October 2022, overall female representation was 51.4% with female police officer 
representation at 39%, compared with 34.4% nationally. A high number of female candidates 
continue to be attracted through the various recruitment campaigns. The recent DHEP campaign 
attracted 41.7% female candidates whilst the DC DHEP campaign attracted 69.4% 

With this increase in officers there is a need to increase the number of resources in some 
departments to ensure all are trained, maintain continual professional development, and have 
certain core key skills such as blue light driving. Continued investment is required to provide 
temporary increases in instructors in Driver Training and Core Policing to achieve this, driving 
courses and qualifications being particularly important given the geography of the county. With 
the increase in officers there will be significant delay in training unless temporary investment is 
achieved. 

Special Constabulary and Volunteers (Citizens in Policing CiP) 

The force has a strong Citizens in Policing (CiP) programme and is committed to maintaining 
this. This includes the Special Constabulary, Volunteers, Cadets, and Mini Policing 
programmes. We are very proud of our successful first year of the Mini Police Programme, which 

Page 18



6 

benefited hugely from precept investment last year. It continues to grow within Derbyshire, and 
we have increased this work to 13 schools across the 10 LPU areas. As this work predominately 
takes place in socially deprived areas, our Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) are engaging 
with young people, giving them a positive view of policing and vital life skills. 

The force plans to increase its number of Special Constables who provide vital support to the 
frontline, contributing to our visible presence and local policing. Recruitment is under way, and 
we have 20 new Special Constables joining us this month. We want to extend our offer to Special 
Constables, providing them with the opportunity to be taser trained and undertake driving 
courses.  

In addition, the force now has a five-year recruitment strategy. This starts in June 2023 and will 
have successive courses at two per year during that period. The aim being to deliver the national 
best practice figure of 10% of regular establishment, approximately 280 specials. We have 
invested in an Uplift post of a Specials Coordinator, which will be at the rank of Sergeant. Their 
role will be vital in delivering the five-year recruitment plan, ensuring training and CPD is 
delivered, working with our divisions to maximise retention. 

This all requires continued investment in recruitment, positive action work and additional 
resourcing in training to ensure the right people, who are properly skilled and equipped, are 
working to deliver our services to our communities. 

Contact Management – The Public Contact Improvement Programme (PCIP) 

As covered briefly earlier, PCIP within the Contact Management Department, is in the process 
of implementing a new operating model as part of its longer-term improvement. The model 
includes the introduction of Performance Managers to assist with monitoring performance 
across the Control Room and ensuring the service provided is as required. There has also been 
an increase in supervisory roles. The introduction of dedicated functions, such as Training and 
Recruitment and Resource Planning, will prevent the need for abstracting operators, therefore 
providing more capacity to service demand. 

The PCIP has overseen enhancements to Single Online Home such as the Foreign Force 
Request offering and including more diverse categories for easier public reporting in the Contact 
Us facility. Under PCIP, there is a communications workstream which includes an ‘education’ 
piece aimed at the public, advising what the police will deal with, the channels of contact and 
the most appropriate channel for the circumstances, as well as what partners deal with.  Capital 
Investment into PCIP is planned to be £4 million and ongoing annual revenue costs for the next 
ten years estimated at just over £1.1 million per year. This forms part of our longer-term financial 
planning. 

To provide the best possible service to victims of crime and reduce demand to frontline officers 
by resolving incidents and occurrences, a Crime Resolution Investigation Management team 
(CRIMt) was created in January 2022. The purpose of the team was to improve the quality of 
the initial response and investigation, ensuring a focus on vulnerability during that early contact 
and the improvement of crime recording compliance. In turn, this alleviated pressure from our 
101 operators by removing the crime recording requirement. We are seeing consistently good 
results, with over 40% of crime resolved through the team to date, equating to over 19,000 
crimes. January 2023 will see the implementation of an Incident Management Team to build on 
the work of CRIMt, supporting appropriate resolution at first point of contact, improving the 
service, and creating time and space for our frontline officers and staff to focus on the crimes 
they need to.  

Page 19



7 

 

Frontline 
 
Laptops: The Constabulary continues to drive forward our use of technology and in particular 
agile working, continually developing the tools available in force to greatest benefit for our 
officers and staff to undertake their roles effectively and efficiently. A decision has recently been 
taken to issue all frontline response officers with laptops. Officers will now be able to remain in 
communities, having immediate access to this mobile office environment, rather than needing 
to return to the station to process statements and reports. This supports our priority of strong 
and visible policing. This will continue to require investment, as laptops and associated 
equipment need reviewing and updating over time.  
 
MDTs: Linked to the above roll out of laptops, staff across the force also have access to mobile 
data terminals (MDTs). The Constabulary is in the process of rolling out new and improved 
MDTs across the organisation. The new devices offer enhanced features and are an upgrade 
to the current terminals in use. This benefits all officers and staff, however, in particular, Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams who utilise these when out on patrol.  
 
Vehicles: The Constabulary has expanded its fleet, investing in an additional 60 police vehicles 
to support the extra officers we have recruited through the Uplift. This increase further supports 
our priority of strong visible policing. The Force has recently commenced a programme of 
investment in vehicle telematics to deliver both operational and financial benefits across the 
organisation. It will deliver benefits such as a reduction in fuel usage and maintenance costs, 
potential fleet reduction through improved utilisation and better planning, reduced carbon 
emissions, and improved driver behaviour.  
 
Initial Pursuit Training: Last year, one of the force commitments against the precept increase 
provided was to commence initial pursuit training to some officers across the force, based at 
Local Policing Units. This allows greater capacity and capability to deny criminals the use of our 
road network, and not simply rely on the Roads Policing Unit (RPU) for this initial response. It 
has required some changes to vehicles in addition to increasing trainers. This, combined with 
the planned increased roll out of all additional driver training, will allow the force to increase 
visibility and our response to incidents, especially in some of our more rural areas.  
 
Drones: Derbyshire currently has 26 drone pilots trained, with investment to train a further four. 
This is a full-time role for two officers with the remainder working within our armed response, 
uniform task force and rural crime teams, providing the force with full geographical coverage, 
24/7. We have increased our drone capability to 11 drones, investing in two smaller all weather 
drones supporting flight in wet weather conditions. Drones have been deployed 969 times over 
the past 12 months. Drones are now used for incidents where we would have previously 
requested helicopter support, allowing us to be more effective in our response and reducing 
overall cost to the force. 
 
Neighbourhood Crime and Antisocial Behaviour (ASB) 
 
As Chief Constable I place real value on the role of our Safer Neighbourhood Teams, the visible 
and accessible policing presence they provide and the partnership working they undertake to 
solve problems within our communities. I know the impact this work has on feelings of public 
confidence. We have invested in these over the past few years, for example, this past year 
mainstreaming the additional 20 PCSOs you funded through the precept. Through Uplift I have 
been able to add to those numbers with additional safer neighbourhood police officers at some 
LPUs. In addition are the Neighbourhood Acquisitive Crime Teams and Neighbourhood 
Enforcement Teams. We want to be seen as an example of best practice in strong 
neighbourhood policing. 
 

Page 20



8 

Partnership and Prevention Team 

Our Partnership and Prevention Team works centrally to co-ordinate the work of our Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams, maximise prevention and partnership opportunities and ensuring our 
officers and staff have the right skills and knowledge to perform their roles. The team have led 
our force-wide approach to problem-solving, seeing College of Policing recognition for the 
evaluation processes we have embedded and developed. We have launched a learning portal 
for Safer Neighbourhood Team officers, ensuring CPD is met, and a programme of training can 
be progressed. 

The Coordinators for hate crime and prevention and problem-solving sit within the team. In the 
next few months this will extend to ASB Coordinators and an ECINs Coordinator. All roles 
maximise our opportunities to extend partnership working, support victims and communities and 
provide our officers and staff with support and advice.  

Previous precept investment has enabled us to develop significantly within this area, with 
accredited prevention training and evidence-based approaches. I thank you for this and want to 
see this area continue to develop, ensuring prevention is at the heart of what we do. 

SNT Investment 

In line with its Neighbourhood Policing Charter, the force has implemented a series of measures 
to tackle local priorities and reassure communities. Minimum standards for engagement have 
been introduced to our SNTs that clearly define requirements for visibility and engagement.  

Work continues to support Derbyshire’s Neighbourhood Watch, Farm Watch and Community 
Speedwatch, identifying opportunities for the development of new schemes and recruiting new 
members to established groups. Over 1,500 new members have been added to schemes since 
the start of the year (2022).  

The Partnership and Prevention Team, NHW Coordinator and SNT are currently developing a 
community-based Neighbourhood Watch that supports our seldom-heard communities, so 
rather than being street or geographically based it is aimed at supporting an ethnicity-based 
community that previously may have felt distrust towards the police. This work is vitally important 
in ensuring we maintain trust and legitimacy with all our communities.  

Our website provides contact details for local Neighbourhood Teams and a list of the officers 
who cover each area. Work undertaken to tackle local priorities is fed back to communities 
through street surgeries, local meetings, social media, and Derbyshire Alert messaging.  

The introduction of a new SNT abstraction policy in 2022 has sought to reduce the number of 
officer abstractions from the neighbourhood role. This year we will be able to monitor 
engagement and abstraction in our SNTs through the development of an App that allows SNT 
officers to record activity in these areas. This will enable us to understand the risks and gaps 
and report through our internal governance processes, and to you as Commissioner. 

On South Division, the new Joint Police and Fire Station on Ascot Drive is now fully functional 
and operational, providing officers in Derby East with an improved base to effectively service 
their local communities. The Derby City Centre SNT are also now working out of their new office 
at the Council House; a prime location that allows a faster response to issues in the city centre. 

On North Division, a new SNT base was opened in Alfreton in November 2022. We hope to 
have a new SNT base in Bolsover very soon. We will continue with our capital investment 
programme, with new SNT buildings planned for Clay Cross and Killamarsh during 2023/24. 

Page 21



9 

Neighbourhood Acquisitive Crime 

As outlined previously, the creation of this new team means more officers on neighbourhoods 
with a clear focus on investigating and preventing robbery and burglary. The team will 
commence from the beginning of January and comprise four Detective Sergeants, 20 Police 
Constables, 12 Detective Constables and four Detective Staff Investigators. We are already 
committed to attending every home burglary, maximising opportunities to gain positive outcomes 
from investigative opportunities and provide preventative advice to victims and neighbours. 
Through the development of the Neighbourhood Acquisitive Crime Team we will be able to put 
equal focus on prevention and investigation, providing a sustainable and evidence-based 
approach to this crime type. To supplement the work of our Safer Neighbourhood Teams, we 
are looking to implement Neighbourhood Enforcement Teams in the Spring of 2023. These will 
provide a proactive arm to our community work, driving warrants, arrests, and reduction of harm 
in our communities. 

Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 

Anti-Social behaviour remains a force priority, with clear governance structures in place, 
supported by a tactical lead. Crime and ASB are reviewed daily in force tasking and discussed 
and tasked in LPU tasking. A problem-solving approach has now been adopted and embedded. 
Recent independent review of our problem-solving approach shows that if we correctly apply 
this methodology, we can reduce ASB by over 80%. We need to allow our Safer Neighbourhood 
Teams the space and time to achieve this, ensuring they have the training and knowledge to 
work with partners and communities to achieve positive results. We have supported joint training 
with our partners in this area, and through our problem-solving and prevention Coordinators this 
work is ongoing 

ASB Coordinators will be key in understanding our force-wide approach, identifying repeat 
victims, locations, and offenders, and working with partners to achieve sustainable results. We 
are developing our use of ECINs as a partnership tool to share information on ASB. To support 
data compliance, we are recruiting an ECINs Coordinator who will have oversight of the system 
and drive partnership working within this area. 

Problem-Solving 

Extensive training has taken place across the force to equip our officers and staff with problem-
solving training. The force currently has 83 open problem-solving plans in place. An ASB 
partnership event was held in July 2022 and the force is currently organising a round table event 
in January 2023 for frequent callers that will involve police and partners, in order to adopt a root 
cause problem-solving approach in this business area, thereby reducing wider demand on 
policing. 

Through the last precept, we funded crime prevention training to several of our PCSOs and are 
planning to train further staff in hot spot policing principles. This enables us to broaden our 
response and increases our opportunities to manage the problems effectively through an 
evidence-based approach. We know the impact some residual issues and problems can have 
and are committed to equipping our officers and staff with the rights skills. Through our problem-
solving and prevention team, we have developed a Safer Neighbourhood Team Learning Hub, 
which provides online training and CPD to our staff.  

Our problem management plans and force processes within this area are independently 
evaluated so that we can share good practice via the Knowledge Hub and look to continually 
improve through recommendations that are made. This has seen us embed enhanced 
supervisor training and a Problem-Solving Board. Due to its well-recognised evidence-based 

Page 22



10 

approach, the force is committed to ensuring this methodology is continually developed and 
used throughout the organisation. 

Neighbourhood Watch (NHW) and Neighbourhood Alert 

NHW schemes support our organisation in reducing crime by deterring offenders and thereby 
preventing crime. NHW has a well-established evidence base, and schemes are supported 
within Derbyshire, with engagement forming part of our SNT minimum standards, detailing the 
expectation that local policing engages consistently with members. PCSOs are attending the 
NHW AGM in January 2023 so that we can promote shared learning and joint working. The 
Partnership and Prevention Teamwork with the NHW administrator to ensure this is an area that 
is continually promoted and supported. Through the Neighbourhood Watch Innovation Fund, 
commissioned crime prevention initiatives can be applied for via the PCC, supporting a 
community- focused approach. 

We continue to see a steady increase in our NHW schemes and members with an increase of 
22 schemes since September 2022, taking us to 879 schemes and an additional 220 members 
attached to those schemes, taking us to 2,934. This is a positive picture and one we will 
consistently promote.  

As a force we recognise the importance of tailoring our communication methods to meet the 
needs of our communities. SNTs complete face-to-face engagement, school visits and youth-
led engagement, newsletters, and social media posts. We continue to promote the use of 
Derbyshire Alert as a two-way method of communication that allows our teams to update 
communities with what is happening within their area, survey the public to understand what is 
impacting them most and provide updates in relation to positive outcomes and work that has 
taken place. 

We continue to use the mapping facility on Derbyshire Alert to understand where our gaps are, 
placing emphasis on bridging those gaps through a targeted engagement approach. We monitor 
SNT use of Derbyshire Alert, with training offered to upskill staff and a PCSO Supervisor working 
group set up to drive engagement activity and compliance. In December 2022, we saw 500 new 
members added to Derbyshire Alert. Much of this was supported by the great engagement the 
anti-violence bee brought to Derbyshire, demonstrating the proactive approach that our force 
takes to engagement and prevention opportunities. 

Road Safety 

Following investment last year from you Commissioner, the RPU has increased capacity and 
capability aimed at making our roads safer and tackling criminality operating on them. We now 
have off-road bikes and officers trained in their use. These bikes allow us to tackle ASB in a 
more proactive manner and provide further capability and capacity towards tackling criminality. 
For example, it allows us to deal with the ASB-related reports of nuisance off-road motorcycles. 
Similarly, following investment last year, the Constabulary has an unmarked motorcycle as part 
of the RPU. This will enhance the unit’s ability to tackle criminality and poor road behaviour.  

The RPU has an Abnormal Load Car expected to be in service early in the new year. There are 
a substantial number of abnormal loads using our roads and revenue generated from supporting 
this work allows the RPU to reinvest further in road safety.  You provided additional funding to 
support several other road safety initiatives outlined below.  

The Bikesafe events held by RPU have been a real success, receiving much praise from 
attendees. The formal end of year report is being drafted, but it has been hugely successful and 
won a National Outstanding Service Award.  Our scheme has attracted national interest and 

Page 23



11 

recognition as one of the leading in the country, which is a phenomenal achievement as it was 
only introduced this past year. The force is seeking to secure funding to continue with this work 
next year.  It is undertaken in the West and Northwest of the county, which attracts large 
numbers of bikers to Derbyshire and is sadly a hot spot for biker KSIs. 26,000 miles of high 
visibility patrols were carried out. Female-only rider sessions have also taken place, to capture 
the whole biker community.  There were 240 Attendees over 48 workshops and 26,000 miles 
covered (all in the West/Northwest of county).  Operation Cruiser is an operation to ensure that 
dedicated RPU work is operating in the Northwest of the county. This is an example of one of 
many targeted operations led by the RPU. 

Funded new roadside breath test devices were delivered to the force in September 2022, and 
they have been sent out across the county to response vehicles and across the Operations 
Support Department to replace the old devices which were unserviceable and failing due to age. 

Following on from the successful funding bid and initiatives from last year, the RPU have 
submitted a number of additional bids for the upcoming year. These include continuation of Bike 
Safe, investment in an Abnormal Loads officer, fatal four work, increases in the marked 
motorcycle fleet, and drug drive work. This evidences the continued commitment to make our 
roads safer.   

Community Speedwatch provides the opportunity for the public to influence and contribute to 
the education of drivers whilst making their neighbourhoods safer. They add value and support 
to the work of Derbyshire Constabulary staff, whilst also helping to forge closer links with 
communities. It is preventative work that is promoted within our force, seeing an increase in 
groups over 2022 from 83 to 92, with 750 volunteers. We currently have a further 12 groups 
pending training (30 volunteers). 

With more groups wanting to start, Community Speedwatch Coordinators are working with our 
SNTs to ensure we maintain community involvement, maximise preventative opportunities and 
ensure that all our watches are enforcing on a consistent basis. Your support as Commissioner 
has been appreciated and thought of further investment in this area is one for consideration in 
2023. 

Rural Crime 

The force understands the impact that rural crime has on many of our communities and operates 
a dedicated team of officers, staff, and volunteers to tackle the bespoke issues presented by 
this type of incident and criminality. Over the past 12 months the force has increased the Rural 
Crime Team establishment through an additional PCSO and plan to utilise an Uplift post to 
provide an increase of one police constable.  

The Rural Crime Team (RCT) work proactively, offering preventative support and advice, whilst 
managing investigations in response to intelligence and reported rural crime. Preventative 
advice has been delivered to the rural community, utilising a range of methods and problem 
management plans, to focus activity on issues such as acquisitive agricultural crime. 

In the 12-month period ending October 2022, there were 294 crimes reported as the four main 
crime types covered by the Rural Crime Team (RCT). These consisted of 144 Operation Logrey 
(relating to Agriculture), 121 records made under Operation Whistler (relating to Wildlife),16 
records made under Operation Chronos (relating to Heritage) and 13 records made under 
Operation Tilly (relating to Equine). The close work with the rural communities, volunteer 
schemes such as Farm Watch, Horse Watch and Badger Watch, and formal partnerships has 
improved confidence in reporting and demonstrated the importance of this capability. This is 

Page 24



12 

further supported by training to the RCT staff in areas, such as rural domestic abuse and 
improved reporting routes for the public, such as online contact.  
The RCT support other agencies and charities, such as the ‘Willow Project’ who specialise in 
providing support to victims of domestic abuse within rural communities, and the Peak District 
National Park Authority to tackle crime, disorder, and antisocial behaviour across the Peak 
National Park.  

On 24 November 2022, a national platform was launched on Derbyshire Constabulary’s website 
to support the reporting of rural and wildlife crime. The platform will help direct more relevant 
information to our Rural Crime Team and encourage residents to report crimes in this area. The 
launch will be promoted through our social media channels, Derbyshire Alert and at events 
attended by the Rural Crime Team  

Victim Support and Safeguarding 

The force priorities were refreshed in 2021, with a supporting and aligned governance structure. 
As we move into 2023, we have refreshed the ‘Service to the Public’ priority and supporting 
strategic board, to provide increased focus in improving the victim journey.  

This will increase executive oversight to improve victim satisfaction and drive improvement 
across the following key areas: 

• Victim needs assessments
• Victim Code of Practice (VCOP) compliance
• Victim Personal Statement (VPS) quality and compliance
• Victim aspect of the Race Action Plan.

The strategic board will also pull together Data Quality and Crime Data Integrity (CDI) 
workstreams to manage and improve performance, building upon the significant improvement 
the force has already made within CDI. The wider governance structure maintains a focus on 
fighting crime, vulnerability, responsive and visible policing, prevention and partnerships, and 
legitimacy. 

Several changes have been made across the force to ensure that our victims are provided with 
the highest level of service and remain at the heart of what we do. Victim referrals for non-
specialist crime are now automatically made and a victim App is currently under development.  

The Government has set out clear ambitions and requirements for police forces when it comes 
to the following three areas: 

• Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG)
• Serious Violence
• Substance Misuse

Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy:  The Violence Against Women and Girls 
(VAWG) Strategy was published in November 2021. The Strategy sets out the actions the 
Government will take to increase support for survivors, bring perpetrators to justice, and 
ultimately reduce the prevalence of violence against women and girls. The strategy seeks to 
ensure that victims and survivors can be confident they will get the support they deserve, that 
perpetrators face justice, frontline professionals are supported to work effectively together, and, 
most importantly, that there is a relentless focus on preventing these crimes from happening in 
the first place.  

Page 25



13 

Serious Violence: Following the publication of the Serious Violence Strategy in April 2018. The 
Serious Violence Bill 2019-20 was announced in the Queen's Speech in December 2019. The 
Bill proposes to amend the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to ensure that serious violence is an 
explicit priority for Community Safety Partnerships, requiring a local needs assessment and 
strategy to set out a multi-agency approach to tackle the root causes of violent crime by placing 
an emphasis on intervention with young people and acknowledging that law enforcement alone 
cannot tackle violence. 

Substance Misuse: From Harm to Hope - A 10-year drugs plan to cut crime and save lives: 
This Strategy commits the whole of government, police, and public services to work together 
and share responsibility for creating a safer, healthier, and more productive society. It seeks to 
utilise existing partnership arrangements, including CSPs to develop a local response.  

Recognising the impact that these key thematic areas have on victims and public confidence, 
uplift has been agreed for Constable posts in each of the areas. We are committed to making a 
positive difference, acknowledging that our response to strategies and delivery plans are cross 
cutting on many crime types. Specific responsibilities for these Coordinators will include 
performance monitoring and reporting, delivery plan updates, crime prevention and 
safeguarding activity, liaison with partners, the third sector and charities to build positive working 
practices, targeted communication, and engagement, and gathering best practice to utilise in 
force.  

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) 

The force has its own VAWG plan as well as forming part of the Derbyshire Partnership VAWG 
Plan. VAWG is a key priority for the force and resource is required to coordinate work and 
support the senior leadership in this area. There are several initiatives already in place to create 
safer spaces for women and girls and to proactively target offenders. The force has continued 
to invest in this area and seeks to continue to provide additional night time economy patrols, 
working with other partners, as it did this year. This is a mixture of high profile and plain clothes 
patrols conducting checks on men seen loitering, following or harassing women and girls and 
using the full range of powers to address inappropriate behaviour, including dispersal powers, 
proactive Criminal Behaviour Orders or arrests for harassment, public order, or public nuisance. 

Some of the previous investments include the creation of a Serial, Repeat and Civil Orders 
Team, which starts in early January 2023, and will focus on the cases of high-harm repeat 
victims and serial offenders of sexual offences, stalking and harassment and domestic abuse. 
This will maximise the use of protective orders ensuring these are proactively enforced to reduce 
risk and harm. Increased reporting brings additional pressure in terms of investigative workloads 
and victim support. Changes within the force operating model, and in particular investigations, 
are intended to support this and provide a better service for victims of crime through ensuring 
the most appropriate investigative resource is assigned.  

Stalking Coordinator 

A police staff Stalking Coordinator is in post, based within the Safeguarding Coordination Hub. 
This post was created through investment this past year. The purpose of the role is to risk assess 
non-domestic abuse (DA) stalking cases (DA cases update is covered by DART), assist in the 
application for Stalking Protection Orders, upskill others in the organisation in terms of 
recognising and responding to stalking, and assist with quality assurance of stalking 
investigations. 

Page 26



14 

Stalking Advocate 

A specific Stalking Advocate (known as an Independent Stalking Advocacy Caseworker – ISAC) 
is now in place in the north of the County, embedded within Crossroads (one of the DA providers 
commissioned by the OPCC in the County). Initially, this post will be supporting victims only in 
the North West of the county, but with a plan to expand to the whole of the County area. In 
addition to this, you have agreed to fund an equivalent post for the City. The purpose of the role 
is to provide specialist, practical and emotional support to victims of stalking, to assist them to 
recover from the impact of the offending, and to support them through a prosecution where 
appropriate. 

Vulnerability 

Providing the best policing service to vulnerable people is an incredibly important part of the 
service we deliver and remains a Chief Constable’s priority. Vulnerability spans across all areas 
of policing, particularly areas of domestic abuse, stalking and harassment, serious sexual 
violence, missing people, exploitation, child abuse and online child protection. A central part of 
the force vulnerability strategy is also our strong commitment to tackling VAWG. Some of the 
developments and continued investments have been outlined above. Further details of changes 
and challenges are covered below.  

The force identifies vulnerability through a variety of means. First and foremost is the ability of 
staff and officers to accurately recognise vulnerability. Vulnerability training is being delivered to 
all officers and relevant police staff over an 18-month programme encompassing seven separate 
modules. This will ensure everyone understands and recognises vulnerability to provide the best 
support for those most vulnerable to harm within Derbyshire. 

We have also developed our analytical capability, through Power BI. This provides immediate 
access to information which is available across the force. This includes performance reporting 
and insight into various areas of vulnerability, including individuals who pose the greatest risk, 
for instance repeat offenders. The force is now utilising this information to inform strategic 
profiles, such as a Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) profile. A new Serious Organised Crime and 
Exploitation (SOCEX) tasking is in development, which will seek to be the forum for utilising 
such profiles to focus and coordinate activity. 

There has continued to be an increase in demand across various strands of vulnerability. During 
the past year, the force has reviewed its operating model, with a focus on how we can effectively 
meet this demand, ensuring we deliver a consistent service that is fit for the future.  

Domestic Abuse 

Domestic abuse now accounts for over 12.9% of all force recorded incidents and 19.7% of all 
recorded crime (crimes and non-crimes). Whilst DA has reduced in the past 12 months by 6%, 
the last quarter saw an increase in DA crime and last month the force saw an increase of 2.2 
DA crimes a day compared to the daily average over the last 12 months. It forms a significant 
part of force demand and one that needs to be tackled effectively and victims given the support 
they need.  

The introduction of the Domestic Abuse Review Team (DART) in November 2021 now sees a 
dedicated function undertake secondary risk assessments of all domestic incidents. The team, 
who are enhanced risk assessment trained, provide consistency and objectivity when 
undertaking such reviews and take cognisance of cumulative risk through research, as opposed 
to assessing incidents in isolation. Since its inception, DART has reviewed 26,397 risk 
assessments, resulting in 1,319 cases being escalated form their original risk assessment 

Page 27



15 

grading. This ensures investigations are appropriately assigned based upon risk, as well as 
creating capacity for frontline Sergeants, who previously undertook this function.  

In 2022, Derbyshire received 22,428 DASH PPNs, of which 1,308 were initially risk assessed 
as High Risk. Our high-risk cases are supported by the Multi Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference (MARAC), which focuses on supporting victims of abuse and their children. As we 
continue to improve the quality of risk assessments, together with a landscape of increasing 
demand, this will continue to impact MARAC requirements as more high-risk cases are 
identified. Additionally, the Domestic Abuse Act now formally recognises children who are 
adversely impacted by living with domestic abuse, as victims in their own right. The 
Constabulary has been working in partnership to introduce relevant provision to meet the 
requirements of the Act, including appropriateness of safeguarding referrals, signposting 
children to victim support services, as well as exploring early intervention opportunities to ensure 
we provide the best possible outcomes for children. An uplift in a MARAC Coordinator is 
necessary to meet these demands, however, the full impact of this Act remains uncertain, and 
will need to be kept under close review with potential investment required.  

From an investigative perspective, all high-risk cases are undertaken by public protection teams. 
Recognising the increasing demand, the force’s new operating structure shall see bespoke high-
risk domestic abuse teams form, separating these from current wider adult public protection 
hubs. This provides a dedicated focus and continues to build a depth of specialism within this 
area of offending. The new serial and repeat team shall prioritise cases involving serial or repeat 
offenders of medium and standard risk domestic abuse, which have historically fallen short of 
specialist resource. This is a positive step forward and the team, supported by a civil order 
function, shall provide wider opportunities to improve the safety of victims of abuse through 
proactive application and policing of ancillary orders. I anticipate this will be an area of growth 
over this next year.  

Rape and Serious Sexual Offences (RASSO) 

The force is working through the response to the Government-led, end-to-end rape review. Rape 
is a terrible crime with a huge impact on its victims. Like all forces, Derbyshire wants to ensure 
it provides the best victim care and experience it can for victims of this crime and maximise its 
opportunities to bring offenders to justice. Operation Soteria has been launched in response to 
this, to support the Home Office pledge to increase rape cases that make it to court. Work is 
ongoing, including a programme of research led centrally, to provide and share best practice 
and develop a national operating model. Derbyshire is keeping pace with these developments, 
assessing this against current working practices to ensure our response to rape and serious 
sexual assault continues to be at the forefront of new and emerging good practice. A key aspect 
of this includes the formation of dedicated RASSO teams which commence in January 2023. 
These functions shall undertake rape and serious sexual offence investigations, excluding child 
rape and high-risk domestic abuse cases, which are progressed within wider specialist 
functions. In doing so, this will see recent and non-recent RASSO investigations undertaken by 
a core group of specialists, who have received additional training to understand and meet the 
challenges that exist within these serious and complex crimes. The force is also investing in 
Victim Liaison Officers (VLOs) as part of the uplift for rape and serious sexual offences. 
Embedded within the newly formed RASSO teams, VLOs will provide a clear and dedicated 
focus for victims throughout an investigation, improving our approach and focusing on reducing 
disengagement.  

Management of Sexual and Violence Offenders (MOSOVO) 

During 2022, the force has reviewed and refreshed its approach to the management of sexual 
and violent offenders (MOSOVO), particularly following the impact of covid on working practices. 

Page 28



16 

This has seen streamlined processes, a reduction in unmet demand and an improved 
performance framework to effectively manage risk within the unit. However, it is recognised that 
this area of policing continues to grow, especially in response to the proliferation of indecent 
images of children and our commitment to protecting children online. This itself, results in an 
average of 50 additional offenders each year who require proactive management. The force is 
seeking to evolve the scope of the team to improve its management of violent offenders and 
high-risk individuals. The service forecasts an increase following recent changes to national 
guidance, together with our investment in the serial and repeat function. In preparation, the force 
has assigned an additional uplift to meet its requirements. 

Missing and Child Protection 

In 2022, the force made significant changes around Child Protection. Child Sexual Abuse has 
seen a 3% increase over the last 12 months whilst Child Sexual Exploitation has seen a 
decrease of 2% in the same time period. Specifically in relation to child rape, there has been a 
6% increase year on year, which equates to 508 reported cases; an additional 29 cases when 
compared to the previous 12 months. The force has restructured its approach to child abuse 
investigations, introducing specialist child investigation teams containing trained officers, to 
provide an effective response to such investigations. These numbers have been added to in the 
past year in recognition of the high impact the staff were managing.  

Online Child Protection continues to be a significant area of growth in terms of demand, with 
2022 seeing a 24.6% increase compared to 2021. As a service, referrals continue to originate 
from external agencies such as the National Crime Agency, which had traditionally been the 
case, but we now see increasing reports from members of the public. In 2021 the force 
professionalised its response, developing a Protecting Children Online team, with safeguarding 
at the centre of its purpose. Investment saw the unit double in size, however, as we continue to 
improve in this area further investment is necessary and planned, to ensure a consistently good 
service and avoid unmet demand. The success of this unit also creates demand elsewhere in 
the force, most notably for digital examinations and the management of offenders’ post-
conviction, as mentioned. Both have received investment, and the Digital Forensic Unit has 
produced a strong improvement in performance with a 29.2% reduction in unmet demand. 
Continued investment is needed this year to keep pace with demand and ensure all timescales 
for examination of devices is at a suitable minimum.  

The force continues to tackle the real and credible threat around exploitation and the close link 
to missing children. Derbyshire's trend around missing people has identified that approximately 
5% of all children who go missing are assessed to be at risk of exploitation. This is in comparison 
to 15% of all children who were missing in 2021. The reduction has been made possible by 
realigning resources into a force missing and exploitation department. This whole system 
approach has enabled officers to work as part of a multiagency partnership to identify individuals 
who are at risk of exploitation and utilise early intervention focusing on tackling the root cause 
and reducing repeat missing occurrences. Following the implementation of a dedicated missing 
person investigation team, Derbyshire Constabulary has reduced the amount of time individuals 
remain missing. During 2022, just over 91% of people were located within a period of 24 hours. 
This response has enabled the force to reduce the risk of harm an individual may face whilst 
missing, maximise opportunities to support families, carers and loved ones of people who go 
missing and reduce the amount of police resources required to locate a missing person. 

Our response to missing people is also supported by the creation of a Criminal Exploitation 
Team, identifying vulnerable young people and adults at risk of being exploited for criminal 
purposes, and working with partners to safeguard them and deal with perpetrators. Precept 
funding was utilised to support the development of these units last year. The team are already 
having an impact. Between May and December 2022, the teams have identified 24 County Lines 

Page 29



17 

operating within the county, disrupting 12 of these and significantly thwarting the activity on a 
further six, resulting in over 50 arrests, 24 vulnerable children safeguarded, 20 offenders 
remanded to Court pending trials and seizing over £250,000 of Class A Controlled drugs.  

Fraud and Vulnerability 

The force recognises the adverse impact fraud can have on individuals, particularly those who 
are exploited due to their vulnerability. Derbyshire has a dedicated Economic Crime Unit that 
consists of various disciplines, including financial fraud, complex fraud, and vulnerability fraud. 
However, it is recognised that fraud demand is often underreported. A review of the force 
operating model is ongoing to ensure a consistent approach to fraud investigations, ensuring 
that those with the greatest risk of harm are escalated for a specialist investigation. In addition, 
we have plans to increase by three financial investigators in 23/24 who will assist in removing 
finance and other assets theta have criminally gained.  

Driving Efficiencies and Finance 

The force continues to seek opportunities to find its own resource and funding for investment, 
prior to seeking any support for growth. A good example of this were the posts found internally 
to increase numbers in the Control Room. It has also sought to maximise the use of the Uplift 
posts against areas of most need.  

Having an efficient and effective force is important in delivering the best service to the public 
within the funding available. In this next financial year, a small team of dedicated resources will 
be formed to focus on meeting next year’s funding gap and continuing to drive out efficiencies.  

Force Planning Mechanisms 

A Force Planning Day was held in November 2022 with the Senior Leadership Team to consider 
areas of policing that required investment and identify where opportunities for savings may be 
made. The process used the strategic Management of Risk in Law Enforcement (MoRiLE) 
model as part of the Organisational Risk Assessment (ORA). The model is used to assess 
demand and the ability to meet demand for individual areas of business. It focuses on one core 
unit or business area at a time to build force-wide oversight of which areas are struggling to 
meet demand and, where that is the case, the level of harm and risk this presents. The model 
identified gaps in service delivery from which departmental managers were asked to consider 
options for change. Bids for additional resources were considered and graded against Capacity 
and Risk. £0.519m of new investment was supported with a further £0.423m of one-off 
expenditure and £0.123m of capital expenditure approved. 

Value for Money 

The Constabulary continues to demonstrate good value for money and performs well in national 
comparators. The most recent procurement data reported to Blue Light Commercial shows 
cashable savings of £0.290m to date for 2022/23 on top of £0.622m achieved in 2021/22.   

A review of ‘good financial management’ arrangements across our services resulted in budget 
savings of £2.9m from the 2022/23 Budget and a further £0.884m has been removed from the 
budget requirement for 2023/24.  

Further efficiencies and cashable savings are planned through the Mobile Workplace project, 
which will improve the way we work remotely and optimise the business benefits working with 
Office 365 productivity tools. This will promote a culture across the organisation which embraces 

Page 30



18 

modern agile working, whilst creating a working environment that energises the staff using it, 
increasing productivity, and reducing our carbon footprint. 

Income 

Income provides the force with opportunities to deliver services and quality to the force’s 
strategic and policing plans, above that which would be available with statutory funding. In 
October 2021, the force approached CIPFA to undertake an assessment of where Derbyshire 
stood in comparison with others and to identify any significant opportunities in respect of income 
generation. Based upon Police Objective Analysis returns for the three-year period 2018/19 to 
2020/21, the review found that Derbyshire Constabulary performed better than the average of 
all forces and significantly outperformed other forces for income generated per officer. The 
review concluded that, overall, the force gains more total income than the average force. The 
force also ensures that it operates effective cost recovery models and has reviewed its 
recharging models for supporting collaboration and national projects. This will result in additional 
income of £1.059m during 2023/24. 

Impact of Inflation 

Under the Spending Review plans published in October 2021, departmental spending limits 
were due to grow by 3.3% year on year to 2024/25. This was based upon inflation that was due 
to average 2.3% over the three-year SR period. Inflation is now 10.7% and is not expected to 
fall below 5% until 2024. Police funding is, therefore, considerably less effective than originally 
planned over this spending review period. 

Our budget is expected to increase by £9.7m to cover the costs of inflation and pay awards. 
With Government Grant funding not increasing in real terms, a greater burden is placed upon 
the force to reduce its overall budget requirement, whilst protecting key services and improving 
public confidence. However, with forces required to maintain uplift numbers and with over 79% 
of our budget spent on officers and staff, it is increasingly difficult to reduce costs without 
impacting on service delivery and public confidence. With lower-than-average net spend per 
head of population and our reserves around 4% lower than the average for forces, it is inevitable 
that some of the financial burden will be addressed through an increase in Council Tax Precept. 

The Policing settlement did not deliver funding to cover the increased costs of pay and inflation 
or provide financial certainty that would allow for proper investment in policing that would reduce 
crime and keep our communities safe. After considering all other cost pressures, the ability to 
increase the precept by £15 would provide the Constabulary with the necessary funding to 
strengthen policing in Derbyshire, deliver the priorities the public ask for in your Police and Crime 
Plan, whilst providing for additional investment in critical policing services above those provided 
for by Central Government.  

The Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) forecasts future years’ budget requirements based 
upon our funding and spending assumptions. The following table shows our forecast budget 
position through to 2026/27 and demonstrates how decisions taken now will affect the level of 
future funding resources. 

Page 31



19 

Whilst a £15 precept increase now will soften the impact on future budget positions, there will 
remain financial challenges to address our budget gaps beyond 2023/24, even with the 
assumption of continued precept increases up to the maximum permitted levels to 2026/27. 

A revised five-year Capital Programme is being produced to prioritise the investment across the 
Estate and to consider the latest costs in light of increases in construction costs, and to review 
the funding options and borrowing requirements. Whilst interest rates remain high, internal 
borrowing will be used in the short-term, where appropriate and subject to cashflow.  

We are committed to continuing with capital investment across our Estate, Fleet, and IS. We 
have planned capital investment of £120m over the next five years that prioritises investment in 
operational buildings to maintain and enhance capabilities across the County. 

We know that buying and building new police stations helps reassure our communities that we 
are committed to retaining local policing as a key part of our service, and provides a significant, 
visible statement of our presence. There has been a lack of investment in previous years, with 
a plan now in place to develop the estate in a proportionate and efficient way to meet the needs 
of the people we serve. The increase in precept last year assisted in some of the investment 
required. However, the force has some vital major developments required. These include the 
new 50 cell custody provision for the north of the county, and north area headquarters in 
Chesterfield, and in the longer term a solution needs to be found for the same provisions in the 
south of the county. We continue to work with the Home Office and Treasury regarding potential 
grant funding to support the sustainable exit from the current Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

£m £m £m £m

Base Budget Requirement 219.471  231.077 236.271 242.142

Projected Funding 218.934  225.858 233.156 240.628

Funding Gap 0.537 5.219 3.115 1.514

Budget Assumptions:

Pay Award 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Vacancy Factor 6% 4% 4% 4%

Inflation Various 2% 2% 2%

Precept Increase £15 £10 £10 £10

Home Office Grant 0.3% 1.8% 2% 2%

Increase in Tax Base 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%

Police Pension Revaluation -           £4m -           -           

Police Officers

PCSO's 200          200          200          200          

Maintained at Uplift (2,110)

Medium Term Financial Plan

Page 32



20 

contract for the south headquarters. These require significant capital investment and borrowing; 
the latter being currently at a high rate. Whilst we have made considerable inroads into the 
estate improvements required, a pragmatic and flexible approach is being taken to ensure all 
changes are necessary, affordable and support provision of the most efficient and effective 
service. The force has continued to invest in technology and used investment to support this. 
The laptop rollout and MDT upgrades demonstrate this. They are used to create additional 
capacity in the estate through enabling more agile working. Whilst this requires continued 
investment in rollout and replacement programmes, it enables more efficient and effective use 
of the estate and relieves some of the pressures within it in a more cost-effective manner.  

Precept Recommendation 

Commissioner, I have outlined throughout this letter the significant operational and 
organisational challenges we face, within the context of substantial financial challenge. I am 
acutely aware of the financial challenges to our communities in the face of the increasing cost 
of living.   

The force has made significant improvements but there is still much more to do. We have sought 
to manage this through the realignment of resource, maximising police Uplift and through 
creating efficiencies in the first instance before recourse to additional investment. However, in 
this year I have needed to utilise officers in new necessary posts, key to frontline delivery, which 
could potentially be modernised in the future. However, the constraints on the budget and 
maintaining police officer numbers means that I will have no option but to continue to use police 
officers instead and will be unable to use modernisation as an opportunity for future savings on 
these and similar posts. As we move forward and further savings are required, I am confident 
we will reach a position where we will need to consider moving police officers into posts that 
have previously been occupied by police staff. We are not yet at this point, and I am keen to 
maximise the opportunity that a £15 precept affords the force, and ensures it maintains officers 
in as many frontline roles as possible.    

In modelling the precept options available to us, anything other than an increase of £15 is likely 
to yield a significant budget shortfall in 2023/2024, (and beyond) or be insufficient to sustain the 
investments we have made over the last few years to tackle the force identified threat and risk 
priorities and deliver your Police and Crime Plan. Many factors in relation to our financial context 
are outside of my control, such as pay and inflation, the cost of fuel, the cost of building materials 
and the rate of borrowing, and all have a significant impact against the budget. 

Our budget requirement for 2023/24 is £219.471m. With inflation currently over 10% it is 
increasingly difficult to cushion the impact of increased cost and services from our budgets. We 
continue to explore every opportunity to reduce our costs and the proposed budget reflects 
savings of £0.884m that we have identified and additional income of £1.059m.  Central 
Government funding has only increased by 2%, placing a considerable burden on the force to 
achieve a balanced budget. A £15 increase per year in precept is the maximum permitted under 
current regulations and would result in a 5.9% increase in a Band D property to £266.60. This 
generates an extra £5.0m and would still require a one-off contribution from our Reserves to 
balance the budget.  

We will seek to manage future funding gaps through the Savings Programme during 2023/24, 
however our future funding assumptions remain based upon a potential precept increase of £10 
for 2024/25 and beyond. 

Whilst the option to increase the precept by £15 will still lead to significant challenges for the 
2024/25 financial year and beyond, I am confident that the areas discussed in this letter for 
immediate investment in 2023/24 would enable resilience in the improvements we have made, 

Page 33



21 

and support the further improvements required. They enable delivery of Derbyshire Police and 
Crime Plan priorities as supported by the public and will deliver against force threats and risks. 
Increasing the precept by £15 will allow me to continue to deliver responsive and visible policing 
to the communities of Derbyshire in the coming year.  

The key question when determining the level of precept must be, does it allow for a manageable 
and sustainable budget in the forthcoming year that delivers some growth against our priorities, 
whilst protecting the Constabulary for the future?  

Commissioner, anything other than a precept increase of £15 would not deliver the immediate 
investment required to maintain and improve service in the short and medium term, leaving me 
with no option but to make this recommendation to you. It presents a risk to frontline policing, 
which we have both worked hard to increase over the past 18 months. I make this 
recommendation in the full knowledge that the Constabulary is yet again asking you to approach 
the communities of Derbyshire to ask for more funding, which I know under the current climate 
will be difficult for many. We have worked hard to manage costs within our control and continue 
to do so, however many large factors are outside of our control and affect our ability to improve 
services. I would like to reassure you that I will continue to pursue all opportunities for efficiencies 
that do not impact upon our ability to deliver policing within Derbyshire and would never seek to 
ask for more funding than is necessary for this purpose.  

Yours sincerely 

Rachel Swann QPM 
Chief Constable 

Page 34



Page 1 of 49 

AGENDA ITEM 

POLICING BUDGET MEETING 

REPORT 
TITLE 

BUDGET 2023/24, PRECEPT REPORT AND MEDIUM-TERM 
FINANCIAL FORECAST 2023/24 – 2026/27 

REPORT BY 
JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE, 
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER FOR THE CONSTABULARY 
AND CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER FOR THE PCC 

DATE 18 JANUARY 2023 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

This main purpose of this report is to request that the Police and Crime Commissioner 

approves a Revenue Budget Requirement for the Constabulary for the financial year 

2023/24 of £219,470,868 and agrees to an increase in Band D Council Tax, at the 

maximum permitted under current Precept Limitation regulations (a £15 increase). 

The report also requires actions and decisions to be made regarding the following: - 

1. The Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC’s) own Revenue Budget for 2023/24.

2. The Medium-Term Financial Forecasts for 2023/24 – 2026/27.

3. The forecasted balances on force Reserves and any use of these Reserves

A full list of recommendations regarding these matters is set out in the following section 

of the report. Subsequent sections provide comprehensive background information, 

analysis and forecasting to support all the recommendations made.     

Appendix B

Page 35



Page 2 of 49 

ATTACHMENTS 

List of Annexes 

A November 2022 Planning Day Business Cases 

B Revenue Budget Forecast (Medium Term) 2023/24 – 2026/27 

C Budget for the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 2023/24 

D Budget for the Chief Constable 2023/24 

E Anticipated Reserves 2023/24 – 2025/26 

F Summary of Precepts 2023/24 

Page 36



RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To note and acknowledge the letter from the Chief Constable setting out her

professional recommendation to the PCC regarding the budget and precept proposal

for 2023/24.

2. In respect of the revenue budget for 2023/24: -

a) To note the information and analysis as set out in this report.

b) To agree the proposed adjustments to the 2023/24 budget as detailed in both this

report and Annexes A through F 

c) To maintain a revenue contribution to capital of at least £3.491m in the base

revenue budget. 

d) To approve the revenue budget for 2023/24.

e) Approved joint delegation to the Chief Finance Officer (Constabulary) and Chief

Finance Officer (PCC) to make appropriate adjustments to use of Reserves in relation 

to any surplus or deficit arising from the Collection Fund. 

3. In respect of the council tax requirement, the associated police precept and provisional

contributions to/(from) reserves: -

a) To recommend a £15 precept increase for a Band D Property.

b) To note the anticipated movement in reserves during 2023/24 as shown in

Annex E. 

4. In respect of the Medium-Term Financial Forecast for 2023/24 - 2026/27, discussed

within this report but also shown in more detail at Annex B: -

a) To note the financial forecasts up to 2026/27.

b) To note the assumptions inherent in those forecasts and the scenarios that affect

the projected financial position. 

c) To note that the Medium-Term Financial Forecast indicates reserves will not be

sufficient to close a future funding gap. 

d) To recognise that the Force will need to identify further efficiencies and savings

both for reinvestment but also to protect front-line services. (The savings strategy is 

included in the Medium-Term Financial Strategy). 

Page 37



1. SETTING A BUDGET FOR 2023/24 - OUR APPROACH

1.1 Each year the Police & Crime Commissioner is required to recommend a Band D

Council Tax amount to support the provision of policing services in Derbyshire for

that year. Applied to the taxbase as assessed by the 9 billing authorities, this gives

a total Police Precept to be levied on local taxpayers.

1.2 When combined with central government funding allocated through the Police

Finance Settlement the Precept provides the resources to finance the net revenue

Budget Requirement for the year, which the Police & Crime Commissioner must

also approve.

1.3 This report:

• sets out the potential funding available to the Constabulary, both from the

recommended Council Tax option and from alternative options.

• sets out details of the proposed Revenue Budget (i.e., the ‘spending plans’

for 2023/24) and how these plans will be impacted by different council tax

options.

• sets out the implications of the proposed Budget Requirement for the

Constabulary’s longer-term financial position, including its Reserves.

• sets out how the proposed Budget Requirement is aligned with, and

supports, a range of key policing objectives such as:  delivery of the Police

and Crime Plan for Derbyshire, allocating resources against threat, risk,

and demand; addressing HMICFRS recommendations.

1.4 The production of the report and the recommendations within it are the result of 

several key actions and processes, including the following: 

1) Receiving, analysing and understanding the details of the Police Finance

Settlement, including its wider context of the government’s overall economic

and fiscal strategy (section 2)

2) Receiving and following the government’s updated Precept Limitation

principles, as they apply to Police and Crime Commissioners for 2023/24

(section 3).

3) Consulting with local taxpayers on various options for increasing the Police

element of Council Tax and reflecting on the outcome (section 4).

Page 38



 

 

 

4) Forecasting the estimated taxbase of Derbyshire for 2023/24, using past 

trends and figures provided by the various billing authorities where available 

(section 5) 

5) From (1) to (4), projecting the potential revenue funding available to the 

Constabulary under the recommended Council Tax option and alternative 

options (section 6) 

6) Calculating a committed Budget Requirement for 2023/24, by updating the 

2022/23 Base position for the following items. 

- Removal of non-recurring spend from the 2022/23 Base (principally one-off 

Investment Fund items). 

- The impact of pay awards already implemented (September 2022) and the 

estimated impact of future pay awards (projected for September 2023) on 

the pay cost base. 

- The impact of non-pay inflation, actual and expected, on the non-pay cost 

base, as assessed on a heading-by-heading basis. 

- The full impact of Derbyshire’s allocation of Uplift officers (283 officers) 

within the budget.  

- The impact of various other national policy decisions and other external 

factors influencing the Constabulary’s expenditure and income. 

- The impact of changing demands and trends which have an influence on 

costs and income. 

- The impact of decisions previously taken by the Constabulary, for example 

the ongoing costs of business cases approved by the various Boards and 

the costs of borrowing (approved by the Commissioner) associated with the 

approved Capital Programme.  

- The impact of savings which have been identified as well as the ongoing 

financial management practised across the Constabulary. 

All the above are set out in detail at section 7 

7) Ensuring that the committed Budget Requirement is aligned with the 

Constabulary’s workforce planning process. 

 

Page 39



8) Considering the organisational requirements that have emerged from the latest

PEEL inspection and reflecting these appropriately in the budget proposals.

9) Considering the PCC’s priorities as set out in the current Police and Crime

Plan and ensuring that the budget proposals are aligned with these as far as

possible.

10) Considering the decisions made following the Constabulary’s Planning Days

in November regarding its priority ‘Growth Bids’ and the extent to which these

can be funded within the budget proposals.

11) Recognising the Constabulary’s ongoing responsibility to deliver Value for

Money (VFM) for taxpayers and the wider public in the budget proposals.

12) Recognising the Constabulary’s ongoing responsibility to consider the impact

of its budget proposals on equality and diversity.

13) Identifying, assessing, and where possible quantifying the key risk areas

where outcomes in 2023/24 may vary from the expectations inherent in the

budget proposals.

14) Projecting the ongoing impact of the funding expectations and budget

proposals over the medium-term (to 2026/27), to ensure their sustainability.

This includes the impact on levels of Reserves.

1.5 All of the above considerations are overarched by the legal requirement to set a 

balanced budget in each year.   Planned expenditure must not exceed anticipated 

income, taking account of any contributions to or from Reserves. 

1.6 The consolidated proposed budget is set out at Section 8 and compared against 

the available funding. 

Page 40



2. THE POLICE FINANCE SETTLEMENT

2.1 The provisional Police Finance Settlement was announced via a Written Ministerial

Statement on 14 December 2022.  The statement initiated a period of national

consultation on the settlement, ending on 13th January 2023.

Background and Context

2.2 The Settlement has occurred within the context of a very significant economic

upheaval both globally and nationally which began with the fall-out from the Covid-

19 pandemic, followed by the UK’s exit from the EU and more recently, has been

exacerbated by the invasion of Ukraine.   These have had, and will continue to

have, major consequences for the country’s economic position and public finances

for the foreseeable future.

2.3 The Settlement was preceded by the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement on 17

November. It was the first fiscal event to be accompanied by an Office for Budget

Responsibility forecast since the spring statement on 23 March 2022.

2.4 The Autumn Statement identified the government’s priorities as ‘stability, growth

and public services’, to be underpinned by ‘fiscally sustainability’ which in practice

means a reducing level of national debt over the medium-term.  Taxation and public

spending are each to contribute to this goal ‘in a broadly balanced way’.  On public

spending the Statement confirmed that departmental DEL (Departmental

Expenditure Limit) budgets will ‘be maintained at least in line with budgets set at

the [2021] Spending Review’.   For the Home Office the figures are:

£ billion 

Outturn 
2021-22 

Plans 
2022-23 

Plans 
2023-24 

Plans 
2024-25 

Resource 
DEL 14.4 14.6 15.4 15.4 

2.5 While keeping to previously announced expenditure plans will help provide 

financial certainty and stability to allow for longer-term, strategic financial planning, 

the Spending Review occurred before much of the steep rise in inflation had 

materialised.  This means that the Autumn Statement’s commitment signals a real-

terms reduction in expenditure in most areas of the public sector.  

Page 41



 

 

 

2023/24 Police Settlement - The National Picture 

2.6 The provisional settlement largely confirmed the expectations from the Autumn 

Statement in terms of government support for policing.  It did however include a 

revision to the previously announced limit on Police and Crime Commissioners’ 

ability to raise additional funding via the Police Precept (see section 3).  

2.7 The settlement provides a total of up to £17.2 billion for policing in 2023/24, an 

increase of £0.3billion, or 1.8%, on 2022/23.   This compares to a £1.1 billion 

increase for the previous year over 2021/22.   Available funding to Police and 

Crime Commissioners (PCCs) will increase by up to £523 million depending on 

whether maximum use is made of local flexibility to increase council tax precept.  

This would take the total resources available to forces to £15.1 billion.  The total 

potential increase is broken down as follows:  

• A £174m increase in Government grant funding to PCCs.  This is £74m higher 

than the amount announced as part of the 2021 Spending Review, the additional 

resources being made available to support the costs of the September 2022 

police officer pay award. 

• Up to £349m additional funding from council tax precept, based on current 

forecasts and assuming all PCCs maximise their precept flexibility. The 

Government is enabling PCCs to increase precept by up to £15 for a Band D 

equivalent property, £5 more than was previously announced in the Spending 

Review. 

Other components of the Settlement include £1.1 billion allocated to National 

Policing Priorities ‘to support PCC’s and forces, and to support the strategic vision 

outlined in the Beating Crime Plan to cut crime, increase confidence in the criminal 

justice system and put victims first’.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

 

 

2023/24 Police Settlement - The Picture for Derbyshire 

2.8 The Settlement allocates a number of separate funding streams to forces, 

Derbyshire’s share of each being as follows: 

 

 

2.9 The above allocations of grant funding represent an increase in cash support of 

just under 2% compared to 2022/23.  This needs to be seen in the context of the 

£1,900 pay increases awarded to officers and staff in September 2022, equating 

to approximately 5.5% and 6.5% respectively, and the guidance issued by the 

Home Office that forces should plan for pay awards ‘above 2%’ next year as well.  

Additionally, key non-pay budgets have seen inflationary increases well above 2% 

in the past 12 months.  For example, Utility costs (20%), Vehicle Fuel (28%), 

Vehicle Maintenance (10%) have all increased considerably over the past 12 

months. 

2.10 It should be noted that £2.0m of the overall £2.5m increase in funding is in the form 

of additional Police Uplift Programme Grant.  The 2022/23 Base Budget assumed 

that the costs of the year 3 uplift target of 113 additional officers would be phased 

throughout the year.   Building in the ‘full year’ costs of these officers from 2023/24 

onwards has required £2.594m to be added to the Police Officer pay budget, so 

absorbing the total increase in government funding.   As it is a requirement to 

maintain police officer numbers at the ‘post-Uplift’ benchmark of 2,110 officers 

(headcount, equating to 2,017 full-time equivalents), this provides no flexibility as 

to how the increase in funding is utilised. 

2.11 The Government Grant allocations continue to be the main source of funding for 

the Constabulary, with Council Tax precept income meeting the additional running 

costs for the force. The proportion of Grant to Council Tax has changed 

significantly during the past seven years, which has resulted in a greater proportion 

Funding Stream
2022/23 

£m

2023/24 

£m

Change 

£m

Change 

%

Home Office Police Grant 76.0 76.3 0.3 0.4%

Ex-DCLG Formula Funding 45.2 45.4 0.2 0.4%

Sub-Total - Formula Grant 121.2 121.7 0.5 0.4%

Council Tax Grants 8.7 8.7 0.0 0.0%

Total - General Funding Grants 129.9 130.4 0.5 0.4%

Pension Support Grant 1.9 1.9 0.0 0.0%

Police Uplift Programme Grant 1.9 3.9 2.0 105.3%

Total - All Police Grants 133.7 136.2 2.5 1.9%

Page 43



of funding through Council Tax, with now over 40% of our budget funded through 

Council Tax compared to 30% in 2014/15. 

Page 44



3. OPTIONS FOR SETTING A PRECEPT

3.1 The requirement on the Commissioner to set a Band D Council Tax for policing is

bounded by a ‘Council Tax Referendum Principle’ applied to all Police and Crime

Commissioners each year.   This principle is formally set by the Department of

Levelling Up, Housing and Communities as part of the Local Government Finance

Settlement.

3.2 Following the 2021 Spending Review it was announced that PCC’s would be able

to increase their Band D Council Tax by £10 per year in each of the three years

covered by the Review without the need to hold a local referendum.  For the first

year, 2022/23, Derbyshire’s PCC increased Council Tax by the maximum

permitted following a consultation process with local taxpayers.

3.3 The DLUHC issued a local government finance policy statement for 2023/24 to

2024/25 on 12 December 2022. This announced changes to Referendum

Principles for most types of authority, including Police & Crime Commissioners. For

2023/24 only, the maximum permitted increase in Band D Council Tax for policing

is £15 instead of £10.

3.4 The change was confirmed in a letter from the Minister for Crime, Policing and Fire,

Chris Philp, to the NPCC and APCC who stated that it was in recognition of the

pressures faced by policing and the expressed need for a 'greater degree of

flexibility when setting budgets.'  The letter also states that the Home Office

‘expect[s] PCCs to exhaust all other options to re-prioritise budgets, seek

efficiencies and to maximise productivity of their existing resources before looking

to local taxpayers for additional funding.’

3.5 The recommendation of this report is that the Band D Council tax should be

increased by the maximum permitted of £15. The Chief Constable’s letter to the

Commissioner and the budget analysis and proposals set out at section 7 provide

a detailed rationale for this recommendation including how all the other options

requested by the Home Office have been considered and addressed.

Page 45



 

 

 

4. PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
 

4.1 Decisions on increases to the Police Precept need to take account of the views of 

residents and taxpayers of Derbyshire as well as local and national policing 

priorities.    The Commissioner launched an online public budget consultation in 

November, seeking the public’s view on the amount of council tax that local 

residents pay towards policing in Derbyshire. The consultation included options 

ranging from 0% (a freeze in council tax) up to a £18 increase (£1.50 per month) 

based on a band D property.    

4.2 To ensure the consultation was promoted effectively, details were publicised 

through social media, the Commissioner’s website, along with being distributed to 

key stakeholders including members of the public. In addition, a press release was 

issued by the Commissioner which was circulated to local news outlets within 

Derbyshire. 

4.3 The consultation period closed on 16 January 2023 and saw 2,138 Derbyshire 

taxpayers participate.  Responses were received from each local authority area 

(over 170 from each area) and the results showed that 65.9% of people supported 

an increase to the policing precept, with 53.1% of respondents supporting an 

increase of £15 or more. 

  

Page 46



5. COUNCIL TAX BASE

5.1 The total funding available via the Police Precept depends on the tax base as

calculated by the county’s nine billing authorities. They do this by converting all

properties to Band D equivalents and making assumptions about the levels of

discounts to be offered, including through their localised Council Tax Benefit

Schemes, and the amount of tax to be collected.

5.2 While the tax base tends to grow each year the rate of growth depends on the

levels of economic growth and prosperity being experienced throughout the county

at any particular time. It increased steadily from 2014/15 to 2020/21 with average

annual growth of 1.5% but the rate of increase dropped dramatically for 2021/22 to

just 0.3% because of the economic impacts of the pandemic. It recovered strongly

for 2022/23 to 1.61% and based on provisional estimates provided by billing

authorities a further 1.54% increase is forecast for 2023/24.

5.3 As a guide, each 0.5% increase in the taxbase raises just over £0.4m in additional

funding based on the 2022/23 level of Council Tax.

5.4 Billing authorities are not required to finalise their tax bases until the end of

January. Based on provisional returns, the total tax base for the PCC for 2023/24

is expected to be 332,179.9 and this figure is broken down by authority in Annex

F. The additional income raised from this taxbase over 2022/23, at a £10, £12, and

£15 Council Tax increase is as follows: 

5.5 In addition to the in-year Precept, billing authorities are required to share out any 

estimated surplus or deficit on their council tax collection accounts which relates to 

the previous year.  

5.6 Among other effects of the covid-19 pandemic council tax collection rates were 

adversely impacted by the resulting economic slowdown   During 2021/22 the PCC 

received £1,312,068 in Local Council Tax Support Grant to meet any adverse 

impact on Precept funding from irrecoverable council tax losses. The grant 

Increase in 

Band D

2022/23 

Precept

Increase in 

taxbase

Increase in 

Band D

2023/24 

Precept

Total 

Increase

10.00£  82,305,531    1,270,937      3,322,165      86,898,634    4,593,102      

12.00£  82,305,531    1,270,937      3,986,159      87,562,628    5,257,096      

15.00£  82,305,531    1,270,937      4,982,699      88,559,167    6,253,636      

Page 47



currently sits within an earmarked reserve to meet potential deficits in 2022/23 and 

2023/24, as required by the regulations. 

5.7 Due to the deadlines for when billing authorities are required to calculate and report 

the estimated position on their Collection Funds, the PCC’s share of any surpluses 

or deficits has not been factored into the 2023/24 budget calculations.  Any overall 

deficit that the PCC is required to pay to billing authorities during 2023/24 can be 

debited against the grant brought forward within the earmarked reserve. However, 

based on the experience of the last two years, there is a significant probability that 

most if not all the grant will not be needed for this purpose and can be released to 

support the overall budget in future years. 

Page 48



6. OUR OVERALL FUNDING POSITION

6.1 Total funding income for the 2023/24 revenue Budget Requirement comprises the

Formula Grant and Council Tax Grants as set out at section 2 plus the Precept

income raised from the PCC’s Band D Council Tax decision as outlined at sections

3 to 5.

6.2 The Constabulary’s budget proposals as set out in detail in the next section amount

to a Net Budget Requirement of £221,068,968, a 4.1% increase in net expenditure

over 2022/23. Against this requirement, the funding available from the two options

for increasing Council Tax under the previous and revised limits leave remaining

shortfalls as follows:

6.3 At the previously announced limit of £10 the deficit would be just under £3.8m if all 

requirements were funded. If the additional flexibility of a further £5 increase is 

utilised, the deficit reduces to around £2.1m and the deficit is just above £3.1m 

with a £12 precept increase.  

6.4 The next section provides a detailed analysis of the assumptions used and 

adjustments made in arriving at the Committed Budget total for 2023/24. It is 

intended that this information supports and justifies the proposal for the PCC to 

exercise the flexibility afforded by the Precept Limitation principles to set a £15 

increase in Council Tax subject to Police & Crime Panel ratification.  

6.5 Under this scenario the force has identified a number of measures it could take to 

close the remaining budget gap of £2.134m for next year. These measures can 

only be a temporary fix and all carry a variety of risks and opportunity costs. 

Furthermore, the force’s medium-term financial planning indicates that under all 

current assumptions the underlying budget deficit will grow in the three following 

years. 

Band D 

increase

Band D 

Council Tax

%  

Increase

Estimated  

Precept 

Funding Grant   Funding

Total  

Funding

Deficit against 

Committed 

Budget

10.00£     261.60£      3.97% 86,898,634£     130,375,332£   217,273,966£   3,795,003£   

12.00£     263.60£      4.77% 87,562,628£     130,375,332£   217,937,960£   3,131,009£   

15.00£     266.60£      5.96% 88,559,167£     130,375,332£   218,934,499£   2,134,470£   

Page 49



6.6 It is acknowledged by the force that even with a £15 Council Tax increase in 

2023/24, a rigorous and structured process for identifying further savings will be 

required to enable balanced budgets to be set for 2024/25 to 2026/27. This will be 

immensely challenging, especially given that a substantial proportion of the overall 

budget is allocated to police officer costs which is effectively ring-fenced under the 

Government’s Uplift strategy.   

6.7  The force has a programme of work called ‘Cost of Policing’ intended to ensure we 

make best use of our resources and identify efficiencies and savings. This sits 

under the Productivity and Efficiency Board chaired by the Deputy Chief Constable. 

We will continue to progress the ‘Cost of Policing’ resource allocation process to 

ensure that our resources are appropriately allocated to our services based upon 

a model that considers threat, risk and harm and are aligned to our force priorities 

and the Police and Crime Plan. The Productivity and Efficiency Board, and this 

workstream, will implement a longer-term Savings Plan that will help to reduce 

overheads, deliver continuous improvements and achieve both cashable and non-

cashable savings to help towards achieving a balanced budget over the medium 

term. Given the challenges we have in our MTFP a small, dedicated team will be 

formed early in 2023 to focus this cost of policing work and identify opportunities 

to close the funding gap.  

Page 50



 

 

 

7. OUR BUDGET PROPOSALS 

The 2022/23 Base Budget Position 

7.1 The Committed Budget for 2023/24 has been built from the Approved Budget for 

2022/23 as presented to the Public Assurance Meeting on 19 January 2022 

(£212,258,465), with specific adjustments made for pay awards and price inflation 

increases, approved and supported Business Cases, identified savings and 

income generation activities and other changes from demand/activity levels. 

7.2 The 2022/23 Budget was based on a Council Tax increase of £10, which enabled 

£3.016m of additional investment to ensure that the force was able to maintain its 

operational policing capabilities, to build upon the progress made so far to increase 

the number of police officers and to direct additional investment and resources to 

key priority areas of threat and risk and community safety.  

7.3 It was known from our projections for future funding that the budget surplus for 

2022/23 would only be a temporary position, with budget deficits predicted in the 

three following years (2023/24 to 2025/26). For this reason, the use of the surplus 

was mainly targeted towards one-off non-recurring investments and progress on 

these have been monitored and reviewed throughout the year.  

7.4 In line with the commitment to reduce any future burden on precept increases, 

£2.531m of the additional funding was allocated to one-off expenditure, with the 

remainder (£0.485m) being kept within the base budget. The majority of this 

amount is to fund the ongoing cost of 20 PCSO posts which would otherwise have 

needed to be removed. 

7.5 As a consequence, the adjusted starting position for the 2023/24 Budget is as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

£m

2022/23 Approved Budget 212.259

less: Removal of one-off Investment ( 2.531)

2023/24 Adjusted Base 209.728

Page 51



Adjustments to the Base Position 

7.6 The budget review process for 2023/24 co-ordinated by the Strategic Finance 

Department has identified further adjustments of £11.341m required to bring the 

Base up to the ‘Committed’ Budget Requirement for that year. These adjustments 

can be summarised as follows: 

£m 

Pay awards and non-pay Inflation 9.793 

Business cases approved after 2022/23 Precept 1.748 

Business cases supported at November 2022 
Planning Day 

0.519 

Provision for further in-year Business Cases 1.000 

Identified Savings from 2022/23 Base (0.884) 

Additional Areas of Income Generation (1.059) 

Other miscellaneous changes 0.224 

Total Changes to 2023/24 Adjusted Base 11.341 

7.7 The impact of the changes on the medium-term financial projections for the force 

is set out in Annex B. 

7.8 All of the above adjustments have been made using the following considerations, 

information and assumptions: 

• Decisions made at national government or police service level - e.g.,

implemented pay awards, levels of specific grant awards, contributions

towards central police services, etc.

• Price changes experienced against non-pay headings either through

contract arrangements or market conditions.

• Best assumptions about future pay awards and non-pay inflation based on

national forecasts, policy discussions and professional estimation.

• Review of demand against specific budget-headings which increase or

decrease expenditure beyond the force’s control.

Pay Awards and Non-Pay Inflation 

7.9 At £9.793m this is by far the biggest adjustment to the Base Budget and equates 

to a 4.7% increase in net costs. The net total includes a reduction of £1.474m 

stemming from the Government’s decision to reverse the 1.25% Social Care Levy 

Page 52



 

 

 

within employers’ National Insurance contributions from November 2022. Without 

this saving, price and price adjustments would have totalled £11.267m. 

7.10 The breakdown of the £9.793m is as follows: 

  £m £m % 

September 2022 pay awards       

-     Officers 
3.809    

5.5% / 
£1,900 

-     Staff 
2.445  6.254  

6.5% / 
£1,900 

        

September 2023 pay awards – estimate       

-     Officers 1.296    2.0% 

-     Staff 0.646 1.942  2.0% 

  
Pay / Prices Volatility Contingency 

  
 

0.971   

Police Staff Pension Scheme revaluation   0.495 4.0% 

Other changes in Employer oncosts   (0.400) various 

        

Non-pay inflation      

Injury Pensions 0.227    10.1% 

Training Courses 0.022    4.9% 

Gas 0.017    5.0% 

Electricity 0.239    20.0% 

PFI Fee 0.325    8.0% 

Vehicle Maintenance 0.080    10.0% 

Tyres 0.008    5.0% 

Vehicle Fuel 0.309    26.0% 

Vehicle Insurance 0.155    30.8% 

Equipment 0.003    10.1% 

Firearms / Tasers 0.032    6.8% 

Professional/Consultants Fees 0.010    10.1% 

Recruitment & Selection costs 0.015    33.3% 

NPAS Recharges 0.049    14.3% 

Dangerous Dogs 0.007    10.1% 

Software Maintenance 0.118  1.616  4.6% 

        

East Midlands Collaboration   0.389  3.8% 

        

less: Removal of 1.25% Social Care Levy   (1.474)   

Total Pay awards and non-pay Inflation   9.793    

 

7.11 It is important to emphasise that this additional cost does not relate to any increase 

in service but is required just to maintain the existing base level of service and pay 

commitments.  

Page 53



7.12 In the last couple of years inflation has been an issue for the public sector, 

businesses, and individuals alike to an extent not experienced for over forty years. 

As measured by the official national statistic of CPI-H its annual rate was 0.9% in 

January 2021 and had risen to 4.6% by November 2021 when the 2022/23 Budget 

was being prepared. At that time the Bank of England was forecasting that CPI 

would peak at around 5% by April 2022. 

7.13 In the latest release of official statistics by the ONS (at 14 December 2022), the 

annual rate of CPI stood at 10.7%, over twice what the Bank had assumed would 

be its peak. It had been 11.1% at its highest, in October 2022.  The Bank’s 

expectation is now that inflation will remain ‘very high’ for the next few months 

before falling gradually into the spring of 2023.   However, it acknowledges there 

are ‘considerable uncertainties’ around the future outlook and that the continuance 

of tight labour markets could make high inflation a more persistent issue. 

7.14 The potential impact of inflation therefore remains a challenge for the management 

of the Constabulary’s finances and requires careful judgements to be made 

regarding future planning. 

Pay Awards 

7.15 The ‘fixed amount’ pay awards of £1,900 given to officers and staff from September 

2022 varied in terms of a percentage increase quite widely. For a new officer recruit 

it represented an increase of just under 8% compared to 2% for an experienced 

Chief Superintendent, with the weighted average for officers being just over 5%. 

Similarly, for staff the addition to the wage bill was in the region of 6.5% when 

weighted by grade.  Both these increases are substantially higher than the 3% 

assumed when the 2022/23 budget was set and the difference has had to be built 

into the 2023/24 Base Budget. 

7.16 The level of pay awards to be implemented during the next year is subject to 

considerable uncertainty, not least because of the unpredictability of the economic 

environment in which they will be agreed.  The Home Office have signalled that 

forces should budget prudently for future pay awards and should assume no further 

funding support than that provided by the Settlement. 

Page 54



7.17 It is considered that allowing for a 2% pay award in our budget provides for the 

minimum level of increase in pay. However, whilst inflation continues to run 

significantly above that level, there is a risk to the Commissioner and Chief 

Constable that centrally-set pay awards are above that level.  Similarly, there are 

uncertainties inherent in our assumptions on non-pay items which are subject to 

inflation.  We have therefore established a Pay/Prices Volatility Contingency to 

help cushion the Force from those inherent uncertainties. 

Police Staff Pensions and other oncosts 

7.18 £0.495m has been added to the Base Budget as a result of the latest triennial 

valuation of the Derbyshire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as at 31 

March 2022. This determines the required Employer Contribution Rates to the 

scheme as from 1st April 2023.  

7.19 The ‘Primary’ rate, which pays for benefits to be accrued in the future, has 

increased by 6% (from 13.9% to 19.9% of pensionable pay). This is a consequence 

of an increase to the assumptions for future inflation and pay awards. It is offset by 

a reduction of -2% from the ‘Secondary’ rate which essentially recovers any 

outstanding deficit on benefits earned to date. Strong investment returns over the 

last 3 years means that all benefits accrued to the valuation date are fully funded. 

As a result, from 1 April 2023 the force will pay 17.9% of its police staff pay into 

the scheme.  

7.20 Officer and staff oncosts (national insurance and pensions) also change for a 

variety of other reasons. For example, the number of police officer recruits who are 

young in age means that the average level of national insurance contributions 

payable has reduced. Overall, a net saving of £0.400m is projected from such 

changes. 

Non-pay inflation 

7.21 It is projected that non-pay inflation will increase costs by an estimated £1.616m in 

2023/24.  This figure has been derived from a heading-by-heading assessment of 

past and likely future price changes impacting on the cost base. There is inevitably 

uncertainty regarding the levels of future price changes, which will be influenced 

by national and global economic conditions. 

Page 55



Business cases approved during 2022/23 

7.22 The force held a Strategic Planning Day in March 2022 which highlighted a number 

of operational areas that needed additional resourcing in the short-term to meet 

new or increased demand. Further requirements have been received and 

approved throughout the year by the Productivity & Efficiency Board or, where 

necessary, the Chief Officer team. In the main, these have resulted in new Police 

Staff posts being added to the establishment.  

7.23 The financial position during 2022/23, particularly the carry-forward of 

underspends from the previous year, has meant that initial funding for this 

investment could be met from existing resources.  However, £1.748m needs to be 

built into the budget from 2023/24 to maintain the investment on an ongoing basis. 

This will fund the following items: 

Planning Day Seminar – November 2022 

7.24 The Constabulary held a further Planning Day seminar on 21st November 2022. 

Out of this seminar, bids for additional resources were presented, considered, and 

graded against ‘Capacity Risk’ (Severe / Substantial / Moderate / Negligible / not 

graded). All the bids submitted, and whether or not they were supported by the 

Chief Officer Team, are set out at Annex A. 

Business Cases approved after 2022/23 Precept Meeting £

Professional Standards Development 0.062

P&E Board - PCIP Project 0.344

P&E Board - Executive PA post 0.025

P&E Board - Criminal Justice posts 0.178

Crime Support Temporary Financial Investigators posts 0.135

Crime Support Stalking Co-ordinator post 0.034

Ops Support Airbox MOSAIC system 0.032

March 2022 Planning Day - approved initiatives

- Digital Forensics Unit Staff Uplift 0.456

- Digital Forensics Unit Licences 0.075

- Contact Management - Removal of Police Staff Vacancy factor 0.223

- Mini Police scheme 0.020

- Specials subscriptions to Federation 0.011

- Information Services Service Desk post 0.031

- Information Services Network Engineer post 0.047

- Human Resources Temporary Training Planner post 0.027

- Human Resources Policy & Wellbeing post 0.048

TOTAL 1.748

Page 56



7.25 In summary the proposed funding decisions were as follows: 

• £0.123m one-off capital expenditure to be approved

• £0.423m one-off revenue expenditure to be approved

• £0.519m on-going revenue expenditure to be approved

7.26 The one-off capital expenditure can be funded from the existing Capital Equipment 

provision within the proposed Capital Programme and the one-off revenue 

expenditure can be funded via 2022/23 underspends and / or reserves. The 

£0.519m of on-going revenue expenditure has been built into the 2023/24 budget 

requirement. 

Provision for further Business Cases 

7.27 There is a need for ongoing investment in up-to-date technology to make the best 

possible tools available to officers and staff as they respond to the increasing 

demands placed upon them. An additional £1.000m has been made available in 

each of the last two years for specific initiatives assessed and approved by the 

constabulary’s Design Board.  

7.28 It is hoped to continue this commitment with an additional £1.000m allocated 

annually for the next three years and this aspiration is reflected in the 2023/24 

Committed Budget Requirement. However, recognising the more immediate 

pressures on the budget, one option to balance next year’s budget (as set out at 

section 8) is to curtail this investment to £0.500m for 2023/24. 

7.29 The PCIP project, which will modernise how we engage with the public of 

Derbyshire and those who need our services, is currently in its very early 

procurement phase. However, it is known that it will require a significant investment 

of resources to realise the benefits of the latest communication technology as 

intended. Therefore, the funding within the 2023/24 budget, plus the existing 

Design Board provision which has been already earmarked to the project 

(£1.557m), will need to be put into a reserve at 31 March 2024 pending costs 

coming on stream. 

Page 57



Identified Budget Savings 

7.30 Reductions made to the budget from a review of vacant police staff posts and 

demands against other areas of spend totalling £0.884m are as follows: - 

Additional Income Generation 

7.31 The net budget requirement for 2023/24 will be reduced by £1.059m of additional 

income being earned, mainly through recovery of costs incurred in supporting 

policing at a regional and national level. In some cases, the income offsets 

additional costs to be incurred, notably from bringing vetting activity ‘in-house’ from 

Warwickshire Police.   

Other Budget Changes 

7.32 This section comprises budgetary changes resulting from a wide variety of factors 

which impact on the constabulary’s income and expenditure, but which are mostly 

outside its direct control.    In some cases, they stem from decisions taken by 

external agencies or from decisions already taken in previous years which have an 

ongoing impact.    

Identified Savings from the 2022/23 Approved Budget £

Vacant posts removed from Police Staff establishment ( .361)

Contact Management - Police Staff Overtime provision ( .213)

Information Management - Police Officer Overtime / Remote Storage ( .038)

Misc  Premises costs ( .160)

Vehicle Insurance Excess costs ( .100)

Corporate Services - Partnerships ( .012)

TOTAL ( .884)

Additional  Areas of Income Generation £

Proceeds of Crime Income ( .080)

Recharges to EM Region for support services costs ( .231)

Recharges to EM CTIU and Sensitive Equities for support services costs ( .110)

Recovery of Vetting costs ( .100)

Vehicle Recovery income ( .233)

Provision for Mutual Aid cost recovery ( .300)

Other fees and charges / cost recovery income ( .005)

TOTAL ( 1.059)

Page 58



 

 

 

7.33 A full list of these other changes is included at Annex B, but the key ones of note 

are as follows: 

• A £2.594m increase to the Police Officers pay budget to reflect the full year 

cost of 113 additional officers (Year 3 Uplift) recruited in 2022/23.   Offset 

by, 

• Additional specific Uplift grant of (£1.951m).   This brings the total grant 

budgeted for to £3.9m as provided in the provisional settlement.   It is 

understood from communications with the Home Office that funding for the 

Police Officers September 2022 pay award has been included within this 

grant.  By including this funding as a specific grant, the force will need to 

demonstrate the appropriate costs being incurred in order to receive it from 

the Home Office. 

• An increase in the budget for Police Officer Overtime of £0.500m.   Police 

Officer Overtime is projected to be overspent by some £1.6m in the current 

year.  This overspend is spread across the force and is occurring for a wide 

variety of reasons.  Recognising that major changes are taking place across 

the Constabulary, both in terms of officer numbers and organisational 

structure, a force-wide review of overtime requirements will be undertaken 

during the next year.    Some unavoidable growth to the existing provision 

is expected and £0.500m is a reasonable provision to set aside to address 

these requirements. The Productivity and Efficiency Board will lead a review 

of the Police Officer overtime requirement in response to the uplift in Officer 

numbers and the recent increase in overtime costs. 

• The impact of the proposed Capital Programme on the revenue budget 

equates to £0.515m in ‘new’ borrowing costs but this is offset by a reduction 

of (£0.506m) as existing borrowing falls off.   

• Additional investment income of (£1.190m).   In 2021/22 the constabulary 

earned just £0.030m from its investment of surplus cash balances.   As a 

result of the series of interest rate increases implemented by the Bank of 

England’s Monetary Policy Committee this is forecast to rise to £1.000m in 

the current year and £1.200m in 2023/24. 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

The 2023/24 Committed Budget 

7.34 Taking account of all the adjustments described above, the ‘Committed’ Budget for 

2023/24 is £221.069m, a £11.341m increase over the adjusted base position for 

2022/23.   When unavoidable pay and price adjustments are taken into account 

(£9.793m), this represents a virtual ‘standstill’ position compared to the previous 

year, any increases being funded from reductions from elsewhere or from 

additional income. 

7.35 It is considered that, as a minimum, any Precept decision needs to aim to fund the 

Committed position as far as possible.  This accepts that some further budget 

reduction measures, or contribution from Reserves, will be needed in any case.  

 

  

Page 60



8. BUDGET PROPOSALS

8.1 Against the options for Council Tax increases, based on the previous and revised 

Precept Limitation criteria, the following budget shortfalls would occur: 

8.2 At £3.795m it would be extremely challenging to meet the gap resulting from either 

a £10 or £12 increase in Council Tax.  However, a number of measures have been 

identified which will enable the smaller deficit of £2.134m to be closed.    There are 

some risks attached to these measures as well as opportunity costs, and they will 

not eliminate the need for the structured Savings Plan to be developed which was 

mentioned earlier.  A summary of the proposed budget-reduction measures is as 

follows: 

£m 

Police Staff Vacancy Factor increased from 4% to 6% 0.815 

Reduce provision for Design Board investment by 50% 0.500 

EMSOU Savings 0.283 

Total Potential Budget Reductions 1.598 

Remaining Deficit 0.536 

Police Staff Vacancy Factor 

8.3 A certain level of saving inevitably arises from the turnover of staff and the ‘lag’ 

between an employee leaving and his/her replacement starting.  Unlike police 

officer recruitment there is less scope to avoid this by ‘front-loading’ / forward 

recruitment.   This has always been recognised within the Police Staff salaries 

budget by allowing for less than 100% of the cost of all established posts. 

8.4 Within the Committed Budget a vacancy rate of 4% of all police staff posts - except 

those within the Force Control room - has been allowed for.   This 4% allowance 

has been in place for a number of years.  Removing it for Contact Management 

was the consequence of a Business Case recognising the specific challenges of 

rapid turnover in that particular area. 

Increase in 

Band D

Deficit 

£m

10.00£   3.795

12.00£   3.131

15.00£   2.134

Page 61



8.5 In the last couple of years Police Staff vacancies have changed from being a 

‘natural occurrence’ to being something of an issue for the constabulary.  The tight 

labour market nationally has combined with specific local circumstances to create 

rates of vacancy well above the 4% rate allowed for, as illustrated in the table 

below.   One particular factor has been the number of staff, especially in PCSO 

roles, resigning to become police officers. The following table shows the movement 

in police staff vacancies during the past 12 months. 

8.6 As at November 2022 vacancies were running at 13.0%.  While not a deliberate 

aim, this situation does provide an opportunity to reflect the actual experience 

within the 2023/24 budget.    Whilst active steps are being taken to recruit to key 

posts, it would be reasonably safe to assume a certain higher-than-normal vacancy 

rate will continue for some time.   If the allowance was increased to 6% for all staff 

posts except the Control Room (0%) and PCSO’s (4%) this would enable a budget 

reduction of £0.815m to be made. 

8.7 A potential downside to this measure is that it may require deliberate delay or 

curtailment of recruitment that would otherwise have occurred should the overall 

vacancy situation improve unexpectedly.   Also, the budget will need to be restored 

in future years should the constabulary wish and be able to operate at a lower rate 

again, this will be factored into the wider Savings Plan work. 

Page 62



Design Board provision 

8.8 As discussed at paragraphs 7.26-27, it is intended to allocate this funding to the 

PCIP project.  As costs are not due to be incurred until 2025/26, reducing the 

amount by 50% would have no immediate impact.  This is therefore perhaps the 

easiest option to implement although the overall cost of the project will need to be 

financed eventually. 

EMSOU Saving 

8.9 The regional collaborative budgets have yet to be agreed by the CC’s and PCC’s, 

however a budget option has been put forward that provides for a reduction in PCC 

funding. 

Budget Reduction Measures - Summary 

8.10 If the three budget reduction measures as outlined above are adopted, then with a 

£15 precept increase the outstanding deficit would be £0.536m.  It is proposed to 

take this amount from the Operational Funding and Investment Reserve in 

2023/24 pending further savings options being developed to eliminate the budget 

gap on a permanent basis. 

Page 63



9. 2023/24 PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY

The Workforce Strength

9.1 The budget as proposed above would fund a total of 3,728.4 full-time equivalent

posts (officers and staff), a net increase of 58.8 posts over the 2022/23 approved

budget, as set out in the table below:

The Allocation of the Budget 

9.2 The tables below provide a summary of the 2023/24 draft revenue budget split 

between those elements that the PCC is directly responsible for and those under 

the direction and control of the Chief Constable to manage and operate. 

FTE's
Police 

Officers
PCSO's

Police 

Staff

Total  

Staff
TOTAL

2022/23 Funded Posts 2017.0 199.0 1453.6 1652.6 3669.6

Police Staff posts funded from Uplift 6.0 6.0 6.0

March 2022 Planning Day

 - Digital Forensics Unit 12.0 12.0 12.0

 - Information Services 2.0 2.0 2.0

 - Human Resources 3.0 3.0 3.0

November 2022 Planning Day

 - Information Services 0.6 0.6 0.6

 - OSD Weapons Maintainer 1.0 1.0 1.0

 - Crime Directorate - RRD Project Manager 1.0 1.0 1.0

Productivity & Efficiency Board

 - Criminal Justice Redaction Team 3.0 3.0 3.0

 - Criminal Justice Custody 3.0 3.0 3.0

 - Executive post 1.0 1.0 1.0

 - Professional Standards Restructure 1.0 1.0 1.0

Other Approved Business Cases

 - Contact Management - PCIP project 13.0 13.0 13.0

 - Professional Standards Development 3.0 3.0 3.0

 - Financial Investigators - funded from PACE income 3.0 3.0 3.0

 - Crime Support Stalking Co-ordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0

 - HR - Head of Derbyshire Occupational Health 1.0 1.0 1.0

 - Procurement - Trainee post 50% funded by OPCC 1.0 1.0 1.0

Cost of Policing vacancy review -  removed posts -8.8 -8.8 -8.8

Other Changes

 -  Changes in Structure of Corporate Services 1.0 1.0 1.0

 -  Changes in regional posts employed by Derbyshire 6.5 6.5 6.5

 -  Changes in staff recharged  to external bodies 4.5 4.5 4.5

Projected 2023/24 Funded Posts 2017.0 199.0 1512.4 1711.4 3728.4

Page 64



9.3 The proposed draft budget for 2023/24 for the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner is summarised in the table below: 

Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

Approved Budget 

2022/23 (£m) 

Draft 

Budget 

2023/24 

(£m) 

Commissioner’s Office 1.346 1.378 

Crime Prevention Fund 0.275 0.275 

Community Safety Fund 2.054 1.936 

Victim and Witness Services 1.979 2.185 

Sub-Total 5.654 5.774 

Revenue Contributions to Capital 3.439 3.491 

Debt Charges 1.674 1.583 

Interest Receipts (0.010) (1.200) 

Sub-total 10.757 9.648 

Contribution from Reserves (0.100) (0.100) 

Contribution to Reserves 0.003 0.043 

Grant from the Ministry of Justice (estimate) (1.284) (1.337) 

Local Authority Contributions (0.941) (1.001) 

Net Budget Requirement 8.435 7.253 

9.4 The proposed draft budget for the Chief Constable is as follows: 

Chief Constable 
Approved 

Budget 

2022/23 (£m) 

Draft Budget 
2023/24 (£m) 

Derbyshire Constabulary 190.432 199.804 

East Midlands Collaboration 10.211 10.473 

Contributions to National Policing -   (0.300) 

BCU Fund 0.318 0.318 

Partnerships 0.549 0.537 

Sub-total 201.510 210.832 

Contributions to/(from) Reserves - 2.057 

Contributions to/(from) Reserves (0.703) (0.671) 

Net Budget Requirement 200.807 212.218 

Page 65



9.5 The budget for the share of specialist policing within Derbyshire that is being 

delivered collaboratively with other police forces within the East Midlands is 

summarised in the table below: - 

East Midlands Collaboration 

Approved 

Budget 

2022/23 

Draft 

Budget 

2023/24 

£m £m 

EMSOU Serious and Organised Crime, incl. TSU 5.365 5.910 

Major Crime 0.184 0.172 

Forensics 2.097 2.167 

HR Service Centre - Derbyshire / Leicestershire 0.901 0.965 

Learning and Development / Occupational Health 0.832 0.379 

Legal 0.444 0.482 

Contribution to Regional Teams 0.378 0.388 

Crimestoppers Regional Manager 0.010 0.010 

Total Collaboration 10.211 10.473 

The 5-force collaboration for Occupational Health services will end in March 2023.  
Estimates for a new in-house provision have been included within the operational 
budget for the Constabulary. 

Band D Council Tax 

9.6 Assuming the PCC supports a £15 increase, the maximum allowed by the 

Government, the recommended Band D Council Tax proposed for 2023/24 is 

£266.60, an increase of 6.0% on the comparable figure for 2022/23. 

Precept 
Increase 

£15 
Net Revenue Budget £219,470,868 
Budget Increase (%) 3.15% 
Proposed Council Tax Requirement £88,559,167 
Police Council Tax (Band D) £266.60 
Police Council Tax Increase (£) £15.00 
Police Council Tax Increase (%) 6.00% 
Proposed Contribution from Reserves £536,369 

Page 66



 

 

 

 

10. VALUE FOR MONEY 
 

10.1   The Constabulary continues to demonstrate good value for money and performs 

well in national comparators. The most recent procurement data reported to Blue 

Light Commercial shows cashable savings of £0.290m to date for 2022/23 on top 

of £0.622m achieved in 2021/22.   

A review of ‘good financial management’ arrangements across our services 

resulted in budget reductions of £2.9m from the 2022/23 Budget and a further 

£0.884m has been removed from the budget requirement for 2023/24.  Further 

efficiencies and cashable savings are planned through the Mobile Workplace 

project, which will improve the way we work remotely and optimise the business 

benefits working with Office 365 productivity tools.  

Income provides the Force with opportunities to deliver services and quality to the 

force’s strategic and policing plans, above that which would be available with 

statutory funding. In October 2021, the force approached CIPFA to undertake 

an assessment of where Derbyshire are compared to others and to identify any 

significant opportunities in respect of Income Generation. Based upon Police 

Objective Analysis returns for the 3-year period 2018/19 to 2020/21, the review 

found that Derbyshire Constabulary performed better than the average of all forces 

and significantly outperformed other forces for income generated per officer.  The 

review concluded that overall, the Force gains more total income than the average 

Force.   

Through exploiting the deployment of O365 the Force continues to make efficiency, 

cashable and non-cashable savings by maximising our use of the Microsoft Power 

Platform. PowerApps and associated automation has enabled the Force to solve 

a range of business problems without needing to invest in siloed solutions or rely 

on manual / obsolete processes. The Force is in the process of realising benefits 

for several Applications. 

The creation of an in-house Drone Application and associated SharePoint storage 

removed the need to buy a system and train users, it also provided efficiency 

savings in terms of Drone Pilot time.  The introduction of a Desk Booking App to 

support agile working in Force again avoided the need to purchase a new system 

Page 67



 

 

 

and gives the Force the flexibility to adapt and change as required.  

There are many examples such as these where we have developed inhouse 

solutions to improve how we work which not only drive efficiencies, but which also 

avoid additional cost to the Force. 

 

10.2 Procurement and Commercial Frameworks 

Police Digital Service (PDS) as the predominant IS and Digital provider have 

concluded national frameworks for policing which Derbyshire have supported and 

now access to ensure WFM through savings and efficiencies through economy of 

scale.  

Projects include Oracle licences, Chronicle Licencing and Support, SSAS, Airwave 

Radios (overt and covert), Adobe Licencing, VMWare Support, IBM i2 Analytical 

Software. 

Derbyshire benefit from a very hands-on service from Blue Light Commercial (BLC) 

and we continue to work closely together on many national projects for both goods 

and services. We have also engaged with BLC to provide additional support and 

advice concerning our approach to market relating to the PCIP project and the 

current live tender. BLC have been very complimentary of our approach and the 

professionalism shown by the project team during the creation and publication of 

requirement documentation and how the market is being managed to deliver this 

force wide critical strategy. 

During 2023 the procurement team intend to expand their knowledge and training 

in relation to contract management within the force as there is now a dedicated 

resource being allocated to this field and this will be driven via BLC training and 

support mechanisms. 

Work is also underway with BLC to deliver procurement routes/strategies for 

Uniform, Body Armour, Fleet, Next Generation Forensics (traditional & digital) FM, 

Social Value, Net Zero, Income Generation/Cost Recovery, Learning & 

Development, new procurement regulations. 

Projects include Contingent Labour, Vehicles Purchasing, Supply & Fit of Tyres, 

Fuel Cards, E-Tendering system and contract database, Custody Medical 

Services, Scene of Crime Consumables, Protected Personnel Carriers. 

Page 68



 

 

 

We will continue to explore collaboration and procurement opportunities with other 

authorities, particularly Derbyshire Fire and Rescue and also our neighbouring 

forces in the East Midlands and wider Midlands areas. 

National collaboration is also considered via attendance at National Procurement 

forums, and the utilisation of compliant Government, Bluelight, NHS and Education 

frameworks as a first option for routes to market. 

We have also established our own frameworks to drive cashable and efficiency 

savings in volume areas such as Estates and IS. 

   

  

Page 69



11. THE FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITION (2023/24 to 2026/27)

The impact of the budget proposals for 2023/24 and key assumptions based on 

relatively limited information for costs and income streams over the next 4 years is 

summarised in the table below.  The projections assumes that funding for Uplift 

officers continues through ring fenced grant at the 2023/24 level (£3.9m).  They 

also assume that a £10 precept increase is approved in each of the next 3 

years (24/25, 25/6 and 26/7) and shows the extent of the challenge that 

remains. 

11.1 It is vital that Derbyshire Police continues to explore opportunities to deliver savings 

to fund future investment so that we can maintain appropriate reserve levels and 

that ongoing enhancements to service levels are self-financed through saving 

plans. 

11.2 It is also important to bear in mind that in the two years immediately beyond the 

current forecasting period (2027/28 and 2028/29), we will continue to incur 

additional debt charges as we implement our ambitious plans for developing the 

estate notably the North divisional HQ and response hub and the Multi-purpose 

Hall at force Headquarters. 

Medium-Term Forecast 2023/27
 2023/24 

£m 

 2024/25 

£m 

 2025/26 

£m 

 2026/27 

£m 

Previous Year's Gross Expenditure 212.258 219.471 231.077 236.271 

less: One-off investment fund expenditure (2.531) - - - 

Previous Year's Gross Expenditure 209.728 219.471 231.077 236.271 

Pay Awards and Inflation increases 9.793 8.706 3.991 4.074 

Other Changes to the Committed Budget (0.276) 2.436 2.014 1.797 

Identified Savings Income Generation (1.943) 0.000 0.000 0.000 

New Business Cases and Investment 3.767 0.464 (0.811) 0.000 

Budget Reduction Measures to meet deficit (1.598) 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Net Revenue Budget 219.471 231.077 236.271 242.142 

Projected Funding (218.934) (225.858) (233.156) (240.628)

Forecast Base Budget (Surplus) / Deficit 0.536 5.219 3.115 1.514 

Page 70



12 WHAT ARE OUR RESERVES LEVELS LIKE? 

Reserves Position for Derbyshire 

12.1 The budget plans accommodate all the known immediate financial risks facing 

Derbyshire Police. Nevertheless, risks continue to remain over future finance 

settlements, inflation and the impact of future pay awards, but also: 

• The contributions to Regional Organised Crime Units (ROCU) and East

Midlands Serious and Organised Crime Unit.

• Future funding to support recruitment and the associated costs.

• National Police Information and Technology charges.

• Employer Pension rates – particularly arising from ‘McCloud’ rectification’.

• Further changes to the funding model for the National Police Air Service

(NPAS).

• Forensics (accreditation regimes, investment in digital technology and supplier

pressure).

• Introduction of the Emergency Services Network (ESN).

• Impact of Brexit.

• Interest rate rises

• Consideration of any further financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in terms

of the costs of any policing response, reductions in Fees & Charges income

and suppression of the local Council Tax base.

12.2 Equally, major and unpredictable new policing operations can also impact heavily 

on the budget. As it stands, reserves are sufficient to provide a cushion against 

short term risks. The following table shows the projected level of reserves up to 

2026: 

Page 71



Further detail on the level of reserves is set out in Annex E and the Reserves 

Strategy within the Medium-Term Financial Strategy show the modelling of the 

impact on reserves of risks and key assumptions. 

 Balances at 

31/03/22 

 Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/23 

 Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/24 

 Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/25 

 Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/26 

£m £m £m £m £m

GENERAL RESERVES 6.500 6.500 6.500 6.500 6.500 

EARMARKED RESERVES

Useable:-

 Operational Funding and Investment Reserve 3.743 5.313 5.178 5.178 5.178 

Contribution to Capital 0.551 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Carry-forwards 1.122 1.500 0.984 0.984 0.984 

PCC Grants & Commissioning 1.119 0.974 0.874 0.774 0.674 

Covid-19 Funding Reserve 0.299 0.163 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Workforce Resilience & Well-Being 0.997 0.632 0.340 0.340 0.340 

IT Equipment 0.500 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Design Board Funding 1.000 2.500 4.057 0.000 0.000 

Planning Day Initiatives 1.255 0.761 0.603 0.603 0.603 

Productivity & Efficiency 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 

Investment Fund 0.000 1.335 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Local Council Tax Support 1.311 1.311 1.311 1.311 1.311 

Sub-Total 12.397 14.989 13.847 9.690 9.590 

Non-useable:-

PFI - Ilkeston 0.822 0.727 0.636 0.521 0.390 

PFI - Derby 1.461 0.987 0.582 0.122 0.000 

Insurance 0.148 0.218 0.220 0.222 0.225 

Sub-Total 2.431 1.933 1.438 0.866 0.615 

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 14.828 16.921 15.285 10.555 10.205 

TOTAL RESERVES 21.328 23.421 21.785 17.055 16.705 

Page 72



13 IS OUR BORROWING AFFORDABLE? 

13.1 Whilst the Prudential Code relates to new capital controls, it does impact on the 

revenue budget. Any agreed long-term borrowing meeting all the Prudential Code 

guidelines will have on-going revenue implications over a long period. Separate 

reports deal with the Capital Programme and also the Prudential Indicators for the 

Constabulary have been prepared. Borrowing assumptions for currently approved 

capital schemes are included in this report. 

Page 73



14. ASSURANCE STATEMENT FROM THE S151 OFFICERS’
CONSIDERATIONS

14.1 When setting the Budget and Capital Programme for the forthcoming year the 

Police & Crime Commissioner must be satisfied that adequate consideration has 

been given to the following: − 

a) Government policy on police spending, as applied to the Police & Crime

Commissioner.

i. The CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.

ii. The impact on the Council Tax and the threat or risk of exceeding the

excessiveness principle (previously capping).

iii. Whether the proposals represent a balanced budget for the year.

iv. The robustness of estimates and the size and adequacy of general and

specific earmarked reserves.

v. The medium-term implications of the Budget and Capital Programme

(MTFS).

b) Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Commissioner’s Chief

Financial Officer to provide the Commissioner with assurance on the robustness

of estimates made for the purposes of the budget calculations and the adequacy

of reserves.

c) The Act requires that the Commissioner has regard to the report of the Chief

Finance Officer in making their budget decision. Where this advice is not

accepted, this needs to be formally recorded in the minutes of an appropriate

meeting.

Page 74



14.2 ASSURANCE OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE’S CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

As the Chief Constable’s Chief Financial Officer, I can provide the following 

assurances:  

a) The main assumptions and estimates, for compiling the budget are set out

within the report and the figures for the 2023/24 budget have been based on

these assumptions.

b) The recommendations are consistent with the medium-term financial strategy

and do not impact on the financial stability of the Constabulary. There is,

however, increased pressure on reserves with the proposed use of the

Operational Funding and Investment Reserve to meet the budget deficit in

2023/24. The success of the Savings Plan will be critical to achieve a balanced

budget beyond 2023/24.

c) Future financial implications up to 2026/27 have been analysed but can only

provide an indication of the potential financial position that the Constabulary

and Commissioner will face, particularly with the likelihood of high inflation

combined with higher interest rates and the volatility of council tax income and

Precept levels. The Medium-Term Financial Plan reflects all known factors that

could have an impact on our Budget up to 2026/27. The impact of increased

funding through Uplift grant will also require careful monitoring and the Savings

Plan will be required to deliver savings to sustain the budget in the short and

medium term and will be monitored through the Force’s Productivity and

Efficiency Board and the Financial Assurance Board with the PCC.

d) The figures within the Medium-Term Financial forecasts are based on a

number of key assumptions and can only provide an indication of the scale of

the challenge that we face at this time. In particular the figures are heavily

dependent on future government funding decisions and precept limitations.

e) Medium Term implications –. There are a number of scenarios that the

Constabulary will continue to model within the current MTFP, based on the

most prudent forecast around funding and precept increases. It does, however,

present a significant challenge, accepting it provides the worst or a likely case

scenario, based on very limited information at the moment.

Page 75



14.3 ASSURANCE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER’S CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER 

As the Commissioner’s Chief Financial Officer, I can provide the following 

assurances: - 

a) Government Policy – The MTFS is produced in line with the latest government policy

as applied to Police & Crime Commissioners.

b) CIPFA Code – the MTFS is produced in line with the Prudential Code and the CIPFA

Treasury Management Code. Details are outlined in the Treasury Management and

Capital Programme reports.

c) Council Tax – The Government confirmed that legislation through the Localism Act

provides communities with the power to veto, through a referendum, council tax

increases deemed by the government to be excessive. The level at which council

tax is deemed excessive is decided in accordance with a set of principles

determined by the Secretary of State for Communities.  For 2022/23 the revised

Referendum Principle is £15 for Police & Crime Commissioners.  Increases in

council tax secure year on year funding, as being a part of the base revenue budget.

d) Balanced budget – a balanced budget is presented.

e) Robustness of Estimates – I have reviewed the matters that have been considered

in drafting the proposed budget and the consequential budget requirement, and the

required level of the police precept. I am satisfied that the procedures adopted by

the Constabulary’s Chief Financial Officer and his team are sufficiently robust to

ensure the financial data is accurate and forms a sound basis for the preparation of

the estimates for 2022/23.

f) Adequacy of reserves – I consider the level of general reserves (£6.5m) to be

adequate for meeting estimated future risks. Specific reserves are reducing (rapidly

in some cases) but are at appropriate levels to support future expenditure in the

short and medium term. Given the size of the deficit, however, I will keep this

position under regular review and expect to see the Constabulary’s savings plans in

due course.

g) Medium Term implications – I consider that the MTFP presents a best estimate of

the future financial pressures that the Commissioner will face. It should be noted

that inherent within the MTFP are assumptions as set out in this report and its

annexes. Movement in any of the key assumptions would have significant impact

on the available resources to support policing. The Constabulary’s Chief Financial

Officer and I will continue to monitor national developments carefully to ensure the

Commissioner and Chief Constable are sighted on any emerging risks for

Derbyshire.
Page 76



ANNEX A 

Constabulary Planning Days  November 2022 - Submitted Bids for Additional Resources

Growth Bid​ Decision  HMICFRS​ Department
Capital Cost 

£

One -off 

Revenue £

Ongoing Revenue 

23/24 £

Review, Retention, Disposal 

Project ​(Project Manager) ​ 
Supported  Crime Directorate - Intelligence 50,200 

Cellebrite Capability ​  ​ Supported  AFI  19​ Crime Directorate - Intelligence 80,000 

Chorus Investigate for 

Intelligence Officers​ 
Supported  AF19 Crime Directorate - Intelligence 109,000 

Driving Training Vehicles​ Supported  AFI s 19, 22​ Human Resources - Training  123,400 6,000 

Rounding up of 0.6 (across 3 posts) 

within Information Services​ 
Supported  AFI 21​ Information Services 20,000 

Armourer​ Supported  AF1 22 OSD 34,200 

Occupational Health & Wellbeing​ Supported  AFI 18​ Human Resources 220,000 

DFU Outsourcing ​  ​ Supported  AFIs 14, 19​ Crime Directorate - Intelligence 357,700 

Trim - Train the Trainer Course​ Supported  AFI 18​ Human Resources - Training 1,500 

Training Estate - Matlock Lease​ Supported  AFI 19​ Human Resources - Training 24,000 

Campaign Funding​ Supported  AFI 3​ Comms & Engagement 40,000 

RASSO Victim Liaison Officers ​  ​ Supported  AFIs 10, 11​ 
Crime Directorate -Public 

Protection
213,400 

Central Disclosure​ Supported - Temp Basis -​ Information Management

Substance Abuse Co-ordinator​ 
PC Uplift (if cannot be 

funded through external) 
AFI 13, 21​ Corporate Services​ 

E-CINS Co-ordinator​ PC Uplift  AFIs 1, 13, 21​ Corporate Services​ 

Serious Violence Co-ordinator​ PC Uplift  AFI 13, 21​ Corporate Services​ 

VAWG Coordinator​ PC Uplift  AFI 14​ Corporate Services​ 

NACT Burglary Prevention Co-ordinator​ PCSOs to be used  AFI 21​ Corporate Services​ 

Custody Tagging​ Not supported  AFI 10, 14​ Criminal Justice​  -Custody

Dedicated Custody Trainer​ Not supported 
AFI 19, AFI 

22​ 
Criminal Justice​ - Custody

PCSO Supervisor Uplift - Chesterfield​ Not supported  AFIs 3,4 North Division

Total  123,400 636,600 519,400 

Page 77



ANNEX B 

 2023/24  2024/25  2025/26  2026/27 

PROJECTED STAFFING LEVELS 2022/23 fte's fte's fte's fte's

Police Officers 2,017.0 2,017.0 2,017.0 2,017.0 2,017.0

PCSO's 199.0 199.0 199.0 199.0 199.0

Police Staff 1,453.6 1,512.4 1,512.4 1,512.4 1,512.4

TOTALSTAFFING 3669.6 3728.4 3728.4 3728.4 3728.4

PROJECTED BUDGET REQUIREMENT  £m  £m  £m  £m 

Previous Year's Budget Requirement 212.258 219.471 231.077 236.271

Remove non-recurring costs from 2022/23 Chief's Investment Fund ( 2.531)

Adjusted Base Budget Requirement 209.728 219.471 231.077 236.271

Pay & Price Increases

Full Year Effect of Previous Year's Pay Award:-

Police Officers 3.809 1.489 1.108 1.081

Police Staff 2.445 0.773 0.503 0.514

Provision for Current Year's Pay Award & Inflation:-

Police Officers pay award 1.296      1.395 1.329 1.407

Police Staff pay award 0.646      0.686 0.698 0.713

Pay & Prices Volatility Contingency 0.971

Removal of 1.25% Social Care Levy in National Insurance ( 1.474)

Police Officer Scheme Revaluation 4.029

Police Staff Pension costs - LGPS Revaluation 0.495

Other changes in Police Officer oncosts (NI / Pensions / Appr Levy) ( .400) ( .107) 0.000 0.000

Non-Pay Inflation 1.616 0.232 0.136 0.139

Collaboration - inflationary increases 0.389 0.210 0.216 0.221

Total - Pay & Price Increases 9.793 8.706 3.991 4.074

Previous Year's Budget updated for Pay & Price changes 219.520 228.177 235.068 240.345

Other Changes to the Committed Budget

OPCC - Grants & Commissioning 0.088

OPCC - Ministry of Justice Grant / Local Authority contributions ( .113)

OPCC - Staffing / Office running costs ( .045)

Police Officers - Increments  / Turnover ( 1.261) 1.032 0.533 0.773

Police Officers - 2022/23 Uplift (full year effect) 2.594

Police Officers - Misc Allowances / Housing Allowances ( .045) ( .103) ( .000) ( .000)

Police Officers - Overtime (no of Bank Holidays and other changes) ( .125)

Police Staff - Increments / regrades / other changes 0.172

Other Indirect employee expenses 0.015

Cleaning Contract specification 0.176

Vehicle Commissioning and Maintenance 0.240

Other Fleet / Travel costs 0.055

Crime Support Professional  Fees 0.090

Criminal Justice Fees - GMP Custody Contract / Doctors Statements, etc 0.030

Finance  and Business Support Fees - Financial Contracts 0.066

Finance  and Business Support Fees - Vehicle Recovery 0.165

NPAS Recharges 0.154

Information Services - Microsoft Licences renewal 0.157 0.124

Information Services - NICHE Cloud 0.105

Information Services - Telematics costs 0.071

Information Services - other costs ( .036) ( .200)

Ops Support - Dangerous Dogs costs 0.051

Other Supplies & Services 0.042 0.017

Debt Charges - current borrowing ( .506) ( .414) 0.962 2.214

Debt Charges - new borrowing 0.515 1.422 0.469 ( 1.104)

Review of MRP for PFI schemes ( .101) 0.609 ( .277) ( .086)

Increase ib Police Uplift grant ( 1.951)

Investment Income ( 1.190)

Remove contribution from reserves re additional PCSO's 0.212

Contribution from reserves re 3 temporary Financial Investigators ( .135)

Changes in other specific Reserve contributions ( .007) ( .050) 0.327 0.000

Recharges from EM Collaborative Units 0.240

Total - Other 'Committed' Budget Changes ( .276) 2.436 2.014 1.797

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE

Revenue Budget Projections 2023/24 to 2026/27

Page 78



COMMITTED BUDGET BEFORE  IDENTIFIED SAVINGS / BUSINESS CASES 219.245 230.613 237.082 242.142

identified Savings from the 2022/23 Approved Budget

Vacant posts removed from Police Staff establishment ( .361)

Contact Management - Police Staff Overtime provision ( .213)

Information Management - Police Officer Overtime / Remote Storage ( .038)

Misc  Premises costs ( .160)

Vehicle Insurance Excess costs ( .100)

Corporate Services - Partnerships ( .012)

( .884) 0.000 0.000 0.000

Additional  Areas of Income Generation

Proceeds of Crime Income ( .080)

Recharges to EM Region for support services costs ( .231)

Recharges to EM CTIU and Sensitive Equities for support services costs ( .110)

Recovery of Vetting costs ( .100)

Vehicle Recovery income ( .233)

Provision for Mutual Aid cost recovery ( .300)

Other fees and charges / cost recovery income ( .005)

( 1.059) 0.000 0.000 0.000

Business Cases approved after 2022/23 Precept Meeting

March 2022 Planning Day - approved initiatives 0.938 ( .036)

Professional Standards Development 0.062

P&E Board - PCIP Project 0.344

P&E Board - Executive PA post 0.025

P&E Board - Criminal Justice posts 0.178

Crime Support temp Financial Investigators posts 0.135

Crime Support Stalking Co-ordinator 0.034

Ops Support Airbox MOSAIC system 0.032

PCIP - additional revenue costs 0.746

1.748 ( .036) 0.746 0.000

Provision for further Business Cases

Design Board 0.000 0.500 0.500

Contribution to Reserves - PCIP Project 1.000 ( 2.057)

Police Officer Overtime 0.500

1.500 0.500 ( 1.557) 0.000

Supported Planning Day Business Cases

In-house Occupational Health provision 0.220

2 Additional Driver Training Vehicles - Revenue 0.006

Info Mgt - Review, Retention, Disposal Project Manager 0.050

Crime Directorate - Enhanced Cellbrite Capability 0.080

Crime Directorate - Chorus Investigate Licences 0.109

Operational Support - Armourer Post 0.034

Information Services - 0.6 fte (Rounding up of 3 part-time posts) 0.020

0.519 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total - New Growth less Identified Savings  and Income Generation 1.824 0.464 ( .811) 0.000

REVISED BUDGET REQUIREMENT FOR YEAR 221.069 231.077 236.271 242.142

Savings Measures to be implemented

- Increased Vacancy Allowance for Police Staff posts ( .815)

- Reduced Design Board Investment ( .500)

- EMSOU Budget Reductions ( .283)

( 1.598) 0.000 0.000 0.000

REVISED BUDGET REQUIREMENT FOR YEAR AFTER SAVINGS 219.471 231.077 236.271 242.142

FUNDING FOR BUDGET REQUIREMENT notes  £m  £m  £m  £m 

Central Government Funding

Formula grant (4) ( 121.675) ( 123.834) ( 126.310) ( 128.836)

Council Tax grants (4) ( 8.700) ( 8.700) ( 8.700) ( 8.700)

Total - Central Government Funding ( 130.375) ( 132.534) ( 135.010) ( 137.536)

Precept Funding 

Previous year Council Tax Funding ( 82.306) ( 88.559) ( 93.324) ( 98.146)

Change in tax base - annual growth (5) ( 1.271) ( 1.328) ( 1.400) ( 1.472)

Change in Band D Council Tax ( 4.983) ( 3.436) ( 3.422) ( 3.474)

Change in Collection A/c Surplus / (Deficit) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total - Precept Funding ( 88.559) ( 93.324) ( 98.146) ( 103.092)

TOTAL PROJECTED FUNDING ( 218.934) ( 225.858) ( 233.156) ( 240.628)

BUDGET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0.536 5.219 3.115 1.514

Contribution from Operational Funding / Investment Reserve ( .536) 0.000 0.000 0.000

REMAINING (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT NOT  FUNDED 0.000 5.219 3.115 1.514

Page 79



ANNEX C 

Office of the PCC  - 2023/24 Budget (detail)

Account Budget Heading

2022/23 

Base 

Budget

Full Year 

Inflation
Increments

Other 

Changes

2023/24 

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

1100 Police Staff Pay 810,900 40,800 (40,830) 810,870

1120 Police Staff Overtime - Plain Time 1,100 1,100

1140 Police Staff National Insurance 91,200 (3,900) (4,180) 83,120

1160 Police Staff Superannuation 112,700 42,800 (6,700) 148,800

1501 Training Courses 7,500 7,500

1602 Recruitment Advertising 1,500 (500) 1,000

1603 Interview Expenses 500 500

2210 Hire of Rooms 1,000 1,000

3200 Police Vehicle Fuel 500 (200) 300

3300 Hire of Vehicles 1,200 (200) 1,000

3400 Other Mileage (PSV) 5,500 (1,500) 4,000

3403 Rail Travel 4,000 (3,000) 1,000

3408 Car Parking, Taxis, etc 750 750

4000 Equipment - General 3,000 (1,000) 2,000

4040 Furniture 2,000 (2,000) 0

4100 Accommodation / Hotel Expenses 1,500 (500) 1,000

4101 Subsistence Expenses 400 400

4291 Meals / Refreshments 750 750

4400 Printing and Stationery - General 3,000 (2,500) 500

4401 Publications 500 500

4505 Financial Contracts 55,000 7,500 62,500

4520 Professional Fees 20,000 20,000

4543 Professional Fees - Legal 17,600 17,600

4575 Engagement and Communications 46,500 46,500

4635 Software Purchase 15,000 15,000

4740 JARAC Attendance 13,000 13,000

4741 JARAC Mileage 1,000 (500) 500

4805 Non-Recruitment Advertising 4,000 (2,500) 1,500

4807 Conference Expenses 2,500 (1,500) 1,000

4888 Bank Charges 12,000 12,000

4890 Misc. Expenditure 13,500 20,300 (13,500) 20,300

4895 National & Regional Membership Fees 96,000 7,000 103,000

Office of the PCC - Total Budget 1,345,600 100,000 0 (66,610) 1,378,990

Page 80



ANNEX D 

2022/23 

Approved 

£m

2023/24 

Proposed 

£m

Police Officers 110.735 116.423

Community Support Officers 6.119 7.308

Other Police Staff 46.446 49.604

Police Pensions 3.075 3.301

Other Employee Expenses 0.762 0.840

Premises 9.876 10.443

Transport 3.837 4.642

Supplies & Services 21.063 21.408

Agency & Contracted Services 0.272 0.272

Specific Grants ( 6.559) ( 8.510)

General Income ( 5.194) ( 5.927)

Derbyshire Constabulary 190.432 199.804

Contribution to East Midlands Collaboration 10.211 10.473

Contributions to National Policing ( .300)

BCU Funding 0.318 0.318

Partnerships 0.549 0.537

Contribution to Reserves 2.057

PROPOSED GROSS SPENDING 201.510 212.889

Contribution from reserves

- PFI ( .491) ( .536)

- Other Reserves ( .212) ( .135)

( .703) ( .671)

PROPOSED NET SPENDING 200.807 212.218

2023/24 PROPOSED BUDGET

Services Commissioned via the Chief Constable

Page 81



ANNEX E 

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE 
STATEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES AS AT 31st MARCH 2021 & FORECAST LEVELS TO 31st MARCH 2026 

  Balances at 

1/04/22 

 Movements  

(to) / from 

Revenue 

 Transfers 

Between 

Reserves  

 Contributions 

to Capital 

  Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/23 

 Projected 

Movements  

(to) / from 

Revenue 

 Projected 

Contributions to 

Capital 

  Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/24 

 Projected 

Movements  

(to) / from 

Revenue 

 Projected 

Contributions to 

Capital 

  Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/25 

 Projected 

Movements  

(to) / from 

Revenue 

 Projected 

Contributions to 

Capital 

  Estimated 

Balances at 

31/03/26 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

GENERAL RESERVES 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000 - - 6,500,000 

EARMARKED RESERVES

Useable:-

Operational Funding and Investment Reserve 3,742,886 1,569,702 5,312,588 (134,700) 5,177,888 5,177,888 5,177,888 

Contribution to Capital 550,689 (550,689) 0 0 0 0 

Carry-forwards 1,122,300        377,700 1,500,000        (516,200) 983,800 983,800 983,800 

PCC Grants & Commissioning 1,118,578        (144,502) 974,076 (100,000) 874,076 (100,000) 774,076 (100,000) 674,076 

Covid-19 Funding 299,153 (136,200) 162,953 (162,953) - - - 

Workforce Resilience & Well-Being 997,000 (145,000) (220,000) 632,000 (292,000) 340,000 340,000 340,000 

IT Equipment 500,000 (500,000) - 

Design Board Funding 1,000,000        1,500,000 2,500,000        1,557,000 4,057,000        (4,057,000) - - 

Planning Day Initiatives 1,254,500        (493,900) 760,600 (157,900) 602,700 602,700 602,700 

Productivity & Efficiency 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

Investment Fund - 1,335,000 1,335,000        (85,000) (1,250,000) - - - 

Local Council Tax Support 1,311,401        1,311,401        1,311,401        0 1,311,401        1,311,401        

Total Useable:- 12,396,507 3,862,800 0 (1,270,689) 14,988,618 108,247 (1,250,000) 13,846,865 (4,157,000) 0 9,689,865 (100,000) 0 9,589,865 

Non-useable:-

PFI - Ilkeston 822,335 (95,262) 727,073 (91,103) 635,970 (114,871) 521,099 (130,700) 390,399 

PFI - Derby 1,460,688 (473,497) 987,191 (404,780) 582,411 (459,937) 122,474 (122,474) 0 

Insurance 148,262 70,185 218,447 1,600 220,047 2,000 222,047 2,500 224,547 

Total Non-useable:- 2,431,285 (498,574) 0 1,932,711 (494,283) 0 1,438,428 (572,808) 0 865,620 (250,674) 0 614,946 

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 14,827,792 3,364,226 0 (1,270,689) 16,921,329 (386,036) (1,250,000) 15,285,293 (4,729,808) 0 10,555,485 (350,674) 0 10,204,811 

TOTAL RESERVES 21,327,792 3,364,226 0 (1,270,689) 23,421,329 (386,036) (1,250,000) 21,785,293 (4,729,808) 0 17,055,485 (350,674) 0 16,704,811 

2022 / 23 2023 / 24 2024 / 25 2025 / 26

P
age 82



ANNEX F 

2023/24 PRECEPT PROPOSAL:  A £15 COUNCIL TAX INCREASE ON BAND D PROPERTIES

Band D
Council Tax 

Base
Total    Funding

Collection Fund    -   figures 

yet to be notified
Council Tax

£266.60 Surplus Deficit

332,179.92        88,559,167        - - 88,559,167        

Amber Valley     

Borough Council 
41,085.91 10,953,504        10,953,504        

Bolsover     

District Council
22,900.72 6,105,332 6,105,332 

Chesterfield     

Borough Council 
30,222.43 8,057,300 8,057,300 

Derby 

City Council 
71,038.69 18,938,915        18,938,915        

Derbyshire Dales  

District Council  
30,662.53 8,174,630 8,174,630 

Erewash     

Borough Council
34,613.00 9,227,826 9,227,826 

High Peak     

Borough Council
31,390.00 8,368,574 8,368,574 

North East Derbyshire 

District Council
32,603.64 8,692,130 8,692,130 

South Derbyshire 

District Council  
37,663.00 10,040,956        10,040,956        

2022/23 Approved 212,258,465      BAND 2022/23 2023/24

2023/24 Proposed 219,470,868      £ £

Increase in GRE 3.40% A 167.73 177.73

B 195.69 207.36

C 223.64 236.98

D 251.60 266.60

E 307.51 325.84

F 363.42 385.09

2022/23 Approved 82,305,531        G 419.33 444.33

2023/24 Proposed 88,559,167        H 503.20 533.20

Increase in CTR 7.60%

Gross Revenue Expenditure Council Tax per Banding

Council Tax Requirement

Page 83



 Appendix C 

Appendix C
EXTRACT FROM RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND 
CRIME PANEL 

14.7 Proposed precept 

14.7.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner will notify the Police and Crime Panel by 
1st February of the relevant financial year of the precept which the 
Commissioner is proposing to issue for the financial year. The Panel must 
review the proposed precept by 8th February of the relevant financial year and 
make a report including recommendations. 

14.7.2 Having considered the precept, the Police and Crime Panel will either: 

(a) support the precept without qualification or comment.

(b) support the precept and make recommendations; or

(c) veto the proposed precept (by the required majority of at least two thirds
of the persons who are members of the Panel at the time when the
decision is made).

14.7.3 If the Panel vetoes the proposed precept, the report to the Commissioner must 
include a statement that the Panel has vetoed the proposed precept with 
reasons. The Panel will require a response to the report and any such 
recommendations. 

14.7.4 Where the Panel exercises the power of veto, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner shall, by 15th February of the relevant financial year, notify the 
Police and Crime Panel of the precept he/she now proposes to issue subject 
to the following: 

(a) where the Panel report indicates that the Panel vetoes the proposed
precept because it is too high, the revised precept shall be lower than the
proposed precept.

(b) where the Panel report indicates that the Panel vetoes the proposed
precept because it is too low, the revised precept shall be higher than the
proposed precept.

14.7.5 On receiving a response containing notification of a revised precept under the 
regulation the Panel shall, by 22nd February of the relevant financial year: 

(a) review the revised precept; and

(b) make a report (second report) to the Commissioner on the revised
precept.

Page 84



14.7.6 The Commissioner shall, by 1st March of the relevant financial year, have 
regard to the second report, give the Panel a response and publish the 
response. 

The Commissioner may then issue the revised precept for the financial year 
or issue a different precept still subject to the requirements noted at 14.7.4. 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

1 

REPORT 
TITLE INTERIM DELIVERY REPORT 
REPORT 
OF POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE 
DATE 26th JANUARY 2023 

1. PUPOSE OF REPORT

For members of the Panel to review a summary of work conducted by the 

Commissioner in support of delivery against the Derbyshire Police & Crime Plan 

2021-25, since the last Panel meeting, which was held on 17th November 2022.  

Specifically, this report provides an in-depth summary of work surrounding the 

‘Strong Local Policing’ priority within the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan. 

This was the focus of the latest Performance Scrutiny Meeting (PSM) held in 

November. A copy of these meeting papers can be found in Appendix A. This 

includes an update on the implementation of the Neighbourhood Policing Charter 

at 9.3 and 9.4.  

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
MEETING 

Page 87

Agenda Item 5



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

2 

2. BACKGROUND

Police and Crime Plans are set and published by Police and Crime 

Commissioners. They are a statutory requirement for all police force areas and 

were introduced as part of Section 11(1) and (2) of The Police Reform and Social 

Responsibility Act 2011. 

 The Commissioner’s Derbyshire Police and Crime Plan 2021-25 was launched 

and supported by the Police and Crime Panel on 15th November 2021. 

This paper provides an overview of key work undertaken by the Police and Crime 

Commissioner in relation to her Police & Crime Plan from 9th November 2022 

until 18th January 2023.  

3. INTERIM DELIVERY AGAINST THE POLICE & CRIME PLAN (9th NOVEMBER
2022 TO 18TH JANUARY 2023)

3.1      Casework Received 

The Commissioner receives contact from the public either by post, in person, via 

her website, or through third parties such as local MPs or local councillors. It is 

appreciated when people take the time to get in touch directly and every effort is 

made to help with any issues raised.  

Between the period 9th November 2022 until 10th January 2023, 86 items were 

received by the Commissioner’s office which was an increase of 24 compared with 

last time. Of these received, 60% were allocated to Derbyshire Constabulary for 

an appropriate response, and the remaining 40% were dealt with exclusively by 

the Commissioner’s office.  

Page 88



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

3 

3.2      Police Complaint Reviews 

Since 2020, the Commissioner has had responsibility for reviewing complaints 

made against the police, following an appeal being lodged by a member of the 

public.  

The Policing and Crime Act 2017 (and supporting regulations) made significant 

changes to the police complaints and disciplinary systems. They introduced a 

number of changes designed to achieve a more customer-focused complaints 

system. Local accountability was enhanced through changes to the role of local 

policing bodies (Police and Crime Commissioners), where appeals were 

previously handled by either the chief officer or the Independent Office for Police 

Conduct (IOPC). The new right to apply for a review is to either the Police and 

Crime Commissioner or the IOPC. This change aimed to increase independence 

and transparency. Where the complaint has been concluded by Derbyshire 

Constabulary, and the complainant has received a complaint outcome letter from 

the Professional Standards Department, but the complainant remains dissatisfied 

with the outcome of their complaint, they have a right to apply for a review of that 

outcome within 28 days to the Police and Crime Commissioner. The review 

conducted by the Commissioner considers whether the outcome of the handling 

of a complaint has been dealt with in a reasonable and proportionate manner. 

During the period 9th November 2022 to 10th January 2023, 11 complaint reviews 

have been received by the Commissioner’s office.  

Page 89



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

4 

3.3 Police and Crime Plan Priority - Strong Local Policing 

Return of Police Base to Alfreton town centre 

Through the ongoing consultation with the public, the Commissioner has listened 

to concerns from constituents regarding visible policing within Derbyshire. The 

Commissioner is working with Derbyshire Constabulary to help increase visibility 

and accessibility in a variety of ways, having regards to operational requirements. 

Most recently, the Commissioner helped bring back a police base within Alfreton 

town centre following a closure which occurred four years ago. The Safer 

Neighbourhood Team (SNT) are now based in the heart of the community where 

they are best placed to respond to calls for service from the public.  

When the former Alfreton police base was repurposed almost four years ago, the 

SNT were relocated to work from Ripley Police Station. The newly refurbished site 

on Kings Street in Alfreton will see local officers based within the town centre along 

with capacity to house other teams to help the force reduce pressure on HQ 

facilities and pave the way for the delivery of further sustainability planning.  

More frontline police officers 

One of the key strands within the Commissioner’s Strong Local Policing priority is 

a pledge to boost the number of police officers and increase the focus on 

neighbourhood policing across Derbyshire. As part of the Police Uplift 

Programme, officers will be deployed to Local Policing Units (LPU) across the 

entirety of Derbyshire. Better resourced policing teams will enable officers to 

respond more effectively to incidents which occur within communities. Most 

recently, High Peak residents for example have benefited from an additional five 

student police officers who have joined policing teams within the area. 

Page 90



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

5 

A further four officers are currently undergoing training and will join frontline 

officers in the coming months. 

This increase has helped bring frontline policing numbers in the area to their 

highest level in a number of years. 

Successful campaign to retain non degree entry route to policing 

The Commissioner has been in communication with the Home Secretary to call 

for the non-degree holder entry route to remain open for those applicants who 

wish to join the police service, but do not posses a degree. The non-degree option 

enables Derbyshire Constabulary to attract people from a wider pool and helps 

broaden the diversity within the workforce to better reflect all communities across 

Derbyshire. 

In November, the Home Secretary supported the Commissioner’s call to keep this 

entry route open which was scheduled to end whilst the College of Policing 

develop a longer more sustainable non-degree route to complement their existing 

framework. 

For information, during the past three years, the non-degree entry route has 

successfully enabled 202 people to join Derbyshire Constabulary as police officers 

which demonstrates the popularity within the community. 

Police Uplift Programme 

The Commissioner and her office have been supporting the efforts being made by 

Derbyshire Constabulary surrounding the Police Uplift Programme and regularly 

monitoring and scrutinising performance to ensure residents across Derby and 

Derbyshire benefit from the extra resources as quickly as possible.  

Page 91



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

6 

Since the last Panel in November, there are now more than 2,110 police officers 

in Derbyshire which is up from 1,827 in 2019 when the Government’s national 

uplift programme got underway. The force has already exceeded its target to 

recruit 283 extra police officers before the end of March 2023 and is now drawing 

up plans to support the new recruits in their future training and development. 

Communities will soon benefit from these additional officers who will bolster 

frontline policing to tackle and prevent more crime and respond to incidents swiftly. 

Performance Scrutiny Meeting (PSM) – Strong Local Policing 

One of the key functions of the Police and Crime Commissioner is to scrutinise the 

work of the force and hold the Chief Constable to account. When the 

Commissioner took on the role in 2021, she considered scrutiny processes to be 

insufficient and poor. To increase and improve the scrutiny level and standards, 

the Commissioner created Performance Scrutiny Meetings to drill-down into the 

force’s delivery against each of the six Police and Crime Plan priorities listed within 

the Commissioner’s Plan. They enable the Commissioner to hold the Chief 

Constable to account on the force’s performance around each priority on behalf of 

the public.  

A PSM was held on the 23rd of November which focused on the Strong Local 

Policing priority within the Police and Crime Plan. The Chief Constable and her 

senior leadership team presented a detailed report which delved into each specific 

sub-point within the priority and provided evidence against delivery, including 

discussions surrounding performance. In addition to the main report, 32 questions 

were received from members of the public relating to Strong Local Policing which 

were answered during the meeting.  

A copy of the Strong Local Policing PSM report is provided at Appendix A. This 

provides evidence of the force delivery against each sub-section of the Strong 

Local Policing priority.  

Page 92



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

7 

3.4 Police and Crime Panel Priority - Neighbourhood Crime and Anti-Social 
Behaviour 

Burglary reductions 

The Commissioner has welcomed new figures that show her investment in 

burglary prevention is delivering positive results. Latest performance data shows 

a significant reduction of 17% (852 fewer offences) in the number of residential 

burglary offences reported since May 2021 (19 months) compared to the 

previous period reflecting an ongoing downward trend. This is approximately a 

reduction of 8.7 home burglaries per day to 7.2. 

Tackling burglary is a key feature within the Neighbourhood Crime and ASB 

priority the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan. The Commissioner has 

made it clear she expects the force to drive down incidents. To ensure the Chief 

Constable meets her objectives, performance is closely monitored to identify 

where further improvements are needed.   

Derbyshire Constabulary are currently taking part in the government’s 

Acquisitive Crime Electronic Monitoring Pilot which requires offenders to wear a 

GPS tag on release from prison. Nearly 6,000 acquisitive crimes (including 

personal robbery, theft from a person, theft of and from a motor vehicle, and 

domestic burglary) committed in Derbyshire in the first 12 months of the pilot 

were automatically compared to the GPS location of tagged offenders. This 

produced almost 200 proximity alerts of which only three have resulted in a 

prosecution – demonstrating that tagging can be a deterrent to reoffending.   

Page 93



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

8 

Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour 

Anti-social behaviour (ASB) has fallen significantly since the Commissioner made 

tackling it a key priority within her plan. The latest figures show a reduction of over 

30% in the last 18 months, illustrating that Derbyshire Constabulary’s zero-

tolerance approach to the problem is making a difference.  

ASB Prevention Grant Scheme 

Following the success of earlier Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Grant rounds 

issued by the Commissioner, a further round was launched in summer and was 

open to local organisations, including parish and town councils, to apply for 

funding to tackle anti-social behaviour in local communities. In total, 33 projects 

totalling over £147,000 have been awarded to organisations to tackle ASB within 

their local community. These projects will commence from January and continue 

over the remainder of the year. 

Update Newsletter 

As part of the Neighbourhood Crime and ASB priority within the Commissioner’s 

plan, there is a commitment to improve communication to keep residents better 

informed of issues surrounding policing. 

To help strengthen the communication between the public and police, the 

Commissioner has started a regular newsletter, which will be regularly 

distributed to residents across social media platforms including Derbyshire Alert. 

This newsletter will provide updates concerning developments within the force 

including key work undertaken by the Commissioner in contribution towards her 

priorities and help provide information about support available to residents and 

how to access it. 

Page 94



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

9 

3.5 Police and Crime Plan Priority – Road Safety 

Community Speed Watch Seminar 

To mark the commitment of volunteers and to further enhance the Community 

Speed Watch scheme operating in Derbyshire, the Commissioner and force held 

the first ever Speed Watch Seminar in November. From the 90+ established 

schemes currently operating, invitations were sent to each volunteer co-ordinator 

to ensure representation from every area of the county is received.  

Volunteers were recognised by both the Commissioner and the force in their 

efforts made towards the hugely popular scheme which operates within 

Derbyshire.  Feedback has been positive, and volunteers welcomed the seminar 

which provided opportunities for members to network and share best practise 

within their local area. During the seminar, a live demonstration by the 

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue extrication team took place highlighting the 

consequences resulting from a road traffic collision. 

During the past year, the scheme has grown to include over 90 watches with a 

membership base of over 700 volunteers.  

Drink Drive Campaign 

The Commissioner has worked with Derbyshire Constabulary to fund a new public 

facing video which aims to educate people on the consequences of drink or drug 

driving. The video helps deliver a powerful message on the real impact that can 

be had on not just the victims, but also their family and friends.  

The video was launched on 1st December at the start of a county-wide month of 

action on drink and drug driving to raise awareness of the dangers of driving under 

the influence.  

Page 95



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

10 

The video has been successfully shared with partners which has generated a total 

reach on Facebook of 201,325. The video has received over 1,000 likes from 

users and has been further shared a total of 1,730 times across social media 

platforms.  

In addition to the awareness raising video, during the drink drive campaign, 

officers within the Roads Policing Unit within Derbyshire Constabulary conduced 

469 roadside tests on drivers, with 124 people arrested after they were found 

positive for alcohol, and 47 positive for drugs. Six tested positive for both drugs 

and alcohol. Forty-three drivers who tested positive for alcohol, and 11 drivers who 

tested positive for drugs, had been involved in a collision. 

3.6 Police and Crime Plan Priority - Rural Crime 

Derbyshire Rural Crime Prevention Guide 

The Commissioner and her office have been working with partners from the East 

Midlands Ambulance service, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service and the 

police to develop a specific prevention guide which aims to provide useful 

information for those residents who live in rural areas. 

Some of the information within the guide consists of tailored advice on fire 

prevention, keeping property secure and how to access victim support services. 

The Commissioner is due to launch this guide over the next coming month which 

will be targeted at residents within rural communities.  

Page 96



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

11 

3.7 Police and Crime Plan Priority - Victim Support and Safeguarding 

Victim Service Updates 

Independent Sexual Advisor (ISVA) service 

The Commissioner’s office re-tendered the existing ISVA service in the Autumn 

which will commence on 1 April 2023. This is an independent service providing 

emotional and practical support to all adult victims of sexual abuse and rape who 

are 18 and over. The service is funded by the Commissioner and police with 

additional partnership funding being secured from both Derby City Council and 

Derbyshire County Council. This will enable a better quality service for victims to 

access.  

Childrens’ Independent Sexual Advisors (ChISVA) 

The Commissioner’s office is currently procuring this service which is set to be 

re-launched from 1 April 2023. This service is for children and young people who 

are victims of sexual abuse and rape under the age of 18. This service receives 

direct referrals from the regional Children and Young People’s Sexual Assault 

Referral Centre (SARC) based at Nottingham University Hospital, but it also 

takes self-referrals for anyone who requires emotional and practical support to 

help them cope and recover from sexual abuse. This service is co-commissioned 

between the Commissioner and Derbyshire County Council.  

Specialist victim services for young people 

The Commissioner’s office procured this service in the Autumn which has been 

awarded to charity Remedi who are the founders of the ‘Got Your Back’ 

approach used in this service which was developed in partnership with the Office 

Page 97



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

12 

of the Police and Crime Commissioner. The provider aims to build on an already 

successful track record of delivering high quality interventions and a restorative, 

trauma-informed approach for young victims.  

The new service which has been enhanced will commence on 1st April. The 

service is for all under 18-year-olds who are either referred directly from the 

police, other agencies, or choose to self-refer for help. The service offers a range 

of bespoke interventions designed with young people in mind, including 

emotional and practical support and mentoring. It also uses a range of digital 

solutions and engagement techniques to reach young people, and there are 

strong links to the education system. The service is funded by the Commissioner 

with a match fund from the provider also contributing to the partnership 

approach.  

Restorative Justice 

The Commissioner’s office procured this service in the Autumn, which was 

awarded to charity Remedi to provide a Restorative Justice Service across 

Derbyshire for all adults and young people, which is compliant with the Ministry 

of Justice Victims’ Code of Practice for England and Wales and the Restorative 

Justice Council’s Restorative Services Standards and Quality Mark. This is an 

evidence-based, trauma-informed, restorative justice service within Derbyshire 

that meets the needs of all victims and places them at the heart of the service 

model. The service provides a good quality and range of direct and indirect 

Restorative Justice interventions, both face to face and indirect alternatives, 

delivered by trained facilitators, offering choice in approach and outcomes, and 

following guidance issued by the Restorative Justice Council to ensure safe and 

competent interventions. Whilst there is no prescribed model, there is evidence 

which lends itself to face to face interventions having the most successful 

outcomes. 

Page 98



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

13 

4. SUMMARY OF ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY – (SINCE THE LAST PANEL)

The Commissioner regularly attends a variety of public meetings, in addition to 

meeting organisations and residents, across Derbyshire on a regular basis.  

The below summary highlights some of the public engagements undertaken by 

the Commissioner since the last report to the Panel.   

In addition to the engagements provided below, the Commissioner periodically 

engages with partners across the county and city and attends a number of other 

engagements, which primarily have been to visit police stations and meet local 

Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) across the county, along with attending  

numerous attestations to support new officers/staff/volunteers who have 

commenced employment within Derbyshire Constabulary. 

Meeting with Community Speedwatch (CSW) members in Blackwell - Meeting 

with the co-ordinator and members of the Blackwell CSW to discuss the 

importance of the CSW scheme and the good work being done by the Blackwell 

group. 

Hosting the Community Speedwatch Conference in Ripley - In partnership with 

the police, Speedwatch co-ordinators were invited to Police HQ to thank them for 

their hard work. Presentations from the Commissioner, Assistant Chief 

Constable and Roads Policing Unit Officers were followed by a live 

demonstration by the Derbyshire Fire and Rescue extrication team. 

Meeting with Derbyshire Retired Headteachers Group - Meeting to discuss 

progress on the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan, and a general 

discussion on issues of crime and anti-social behaviour. 

Page 99



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

14 

Neighbourhood Watch (NHW) Meeting in Walton - The Commissioner attended 

the NHW group meeting in Walton, presenting progress on her Police and Crime 

Plan and taking questions from local members. 

Meeting with the new Manager and with the Community Paramedic Tracy 

Cunningham at Safe Space in Derby City – to get an update on the great work 

they are doing to help rough sleepers in Derby City. 

Meeting with Access4Riders in Coal Aston - Attended meeting to listen to the 

group and the public’s concerns regarding horse and rider safety. 

Meeting with Council Cabinet Member for Community Safety to discuss 

partnership working on serious violence and visit the 'Anti-Violence Bee' in Derby 

City. 

Meeting with 'Crossroads' in High Peak - Meeting with service provider in High 

Peak to discuss the progress of the newly appointed Stalking Advocate and to 

meet the team who support victims of domestic abuse throughout the High Peak 

Derbyshire Dales. The Commissioner also met with service users. 

Meeting local Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT) in Alfreton - Met with members 

of the Alfreton SNT to discuss issues of road safety and partnership working 

between the SNT and local businesses. 

Meeting with Positive Futures Housing (PFH) in Ilkeston - Meeting with PFH and 

local councillor for Sawley to see the support they offer to those who are 

homeless, fleeing domestic violence, or people with a mental illness. 

Attendance at Parish Council Meeting in Ashover - Met with Parish Council to 

discuss issues of anti-social behaviour and road safety in the Ashover area. 

Page 100



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING 
26TH JANUARY 2023 

15 

Meeting with Bolehill residents, councillors and highways to discuss road safety 

concerns within the local area. 

ATTACHEMENTS 

APPENDIX A – Performance Scrutiny Meeting (PSM) paper on Strong Local 

Policing  

RECOMMENDATION 

i. That the Panel receives the interim update in relation to progress against the

delivery of the Police and Crime Plan 2021-2025

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 

Name: Joe Rhodes-Orwin 

Tel: 0300 122 6000 

Email pccoffice@derbyshire.police.uk 

Page 101

mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.police.uk


PERFORMANCE 
SCRUTINY MEETING 

AGENDA 
DATE OF 
MEETING 23 NOVEMBER 2022 

TITLE OF 
MEETING 

THE COMMISSIONER’S POLICE & CRIME PLAN 
2021-2025 - PRIORITY 1: STRONG LOCAL  
POLICING 

TIME OF 
MEETING 10:00 AM 

LOCATION VIRTUAL 

CONTACT 
OFFICE OF THE POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER 
FOR DERBYSHIRE 
0300 122 6000 

DISTRIBUTION 

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER 
CHIEF CONSTABLE 
DEPUTY CHIEF CONSTABLE 
ASSISTANT CHIEF CONSTABLES 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & BUSINESS SERVICES 
HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
OPCC CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 
OPCC HEADS OF DEPTS 
OPCC COMMUNICATIONS 
OPCC PERFORMANCE & DATA ANALYST 

APPENDIX A – Performance Scrutiny Meeting 
(PSM) paper on Strong Local Policing  

Page 102



AGENDA 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

2 

AGENDA  

ITEM 
SUBJECT 

1. INTRODUCTIONS 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE COMMISSIONER 

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHIEF CONSTABLE 

4. 

THE COMMISSIONER’S POLICE & CRIME PLAN 

2021-2025 - PRIORITY 1: STRONG LOCAL  

POLICING 

REPORT FROM THE CHIEF CONSTABLE 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON STRONG LOCAL POLICING 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Page 103



 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 

4 
 

PERFORMANCE 
SCRUTINY MEETING 

 
 

REPORT 
TITLE 

THE COMMISSIONER’S POLICE AND CRIME PLAN   
2021-2025 - PRIORITY 1: STRONG LOCAL POLICING 

REPORT BY CHIEF CONSTABLE 
DATE 23 NOVEMBER 2022 

 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
To provide assurance to the Police and Crime Commissioner that Derbyshire 
Constabulary are making progress towards the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan 
Objective 1: Strong Local Policing. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. None 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
To determine if the Commissioner can gain direct assurance that this area of business 
is being managed efficiently and effectively 
 
CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES 
Name: C/Supt Hayley Barnett 
Tel: 101 
Email pamenquiries@derbyshire.police.uk 

Page 104



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

2 

1. OVERVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC PRIORITY 

1.1 Neighbourhood Policing is critically important to Derbyshire Constabulary. This has 

been recognised through continued growth and investment in this area over last 

few years. This supports the delivery of the Chief Constable’s priorities, the 

Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan and the national agenda as detailed in the 

Beating Crime Plan. 

1.2 Derbyshire Constabulary are committed to attending every residential burglary, 

supporting recent National Police Chiefs’ Council (NPCC) announcements. This 

approach had been a principle the force had been working to for some time. Since 

the announcement a robust daily monitoring process has been introduced.   

1.3 To provide a better service to the public and make the best use of police resources, 

a new force policy and process are now in place to decide the Most Appropriate 

Agency (MAA) to lead at a particular incident and to clearly determine the necessity 

of police attendance or response. 

1.4 The policy has been developed in consultation with partner organisations and our 

legal team to help ensure the right agency leads at particular incidents, thus 

providing a better service to our public.   

 

2. SUMMARY OF ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS 

2.1 In line with the force’s Neighbourhood Policing Charter, the force has implemented 

a series of measures to tackle local priorities and reassure communities. Minimum 

standards for engagement have been introduced to our Safer Neighbourhood 

Teams (SNTs) that clearly define requirements for visibility and engagement. Work 

continues to support Derbyshire’s Neighbourhood Watch, Farm Watch and 

Community Speedwatch, identifying opportunities for the development of new 

schemes and recruiting new members to established groups. Over 1,500 new 

members have been added to schemes since the start of the year. Our website 

provides contact details for local Neighbourhood Teams and a list of the officers 

who cover each area. Work undertaken to tackle local priorities is fed back to 

communities through street surgeries, local meetings, social media, and 

Page 105



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

3 

Derbyshire Alert messaging.      

2.2 Problem Solving is one of the best evidenced policing strategies, shown to reduce 

crime, Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), and demand. Training has been rolled out to 

nearly 3,000 police officers and staff as well as partners, highlighting the Scanning, 

Analysis, Response, Assessment (SARA) methodology. Since the 

commencement of this training over 440 Problem Management Plans have been 

created by the force, with approximately 90 currently open.  

2.3 A recent independent assessment of our work in this area has indicated significant 

success in reducing and often stopping repeat issues, particularly by providing a 

co-ordinated and multi-agency approach to the problem. Some 170 Problem 

Management Plans (PMPs) relating to ASB were created in the period October 

2020 to October 2021. A total of 30 PMPs were provided for the independent 

review and 20 of these, selected at random, were analysed in detail. This 

represents just less than 12% of the total ASB PMPs for the review period and as 

such, provides a strongly representative sample. Many of the PMPs listed multiple 

problems and a total of 22 different types of behaviour were identified across the 

20 PMPs, while there was a total of 66 behaviours or an average of just over three 

different types of behaviour per plan. These behaviours included drug use, 

neighbour disputes, harassment, alcohol misuse, underage drinking, and 

threatening behaviour. From the PMPs that provided data, 137 ASB incidents were 

reported in relation to the stated problems. Following the intervention stage of the 

PMPs, just four further reports of ASB were received. There was also good 

evidence of additionality and acceleration within the Plans, meaning stronger 

structures and partnerships had been created to prevent similar issues arising 

again. 

2.4 A review of the force’s missing person and exploitation arrangements resulted in a 

newly formed Missing and Exploitation Team earlier this year. Defined standard 

operating procedures have been established resulting in improved risk 

assessments and consistency in working practices. Also, children identified as 

being at a medium risk of exploitation, are now investigated by specialist officers. 

This work demonstrates the forces commitment to the early identification, 

assessment and management of risk and vulnerability.  

Page 106



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

4 

2.5 Mini Police is a national initiative aimed at children aged between 8 and 11 years 

(school years 5 and 6) and schools within socially deprived areas, where pupils 

may be considered as disadvantaged and potentially vulnerable to the effects of 

crime or becoming criminally active.  Many of these children will have inherited a 

negative view of policing and other forms of authority.  

2.6 The intention of the scheme is to work closely with the schools and Local Policing 

Units (LPUs) throughout the school year to provide educational inputs backed up 

by community engagement and associated rewards. These are designed to teach 

vital life skills and a more positive view of policing. 

2.7 Derbyshire Constabulary commenced a Mini Police pilot in November 2021, this 

included three schools each selected on the above criteria. The success of the 

pilot was underpinned by a full commitment across the force, at a local level as the 

face of the scheme and at headquarters level for co-ordination and rewards. 

2.8 The pilot was reviewed during March 2022 using feedback from the children, their 

parents, the schools, and the local officers and Police Community Support Officers 

(PCSOs) delivering the programme who found the Mini Police to be 

overwhelmingly positive. The pilot has now been extended to include a further 10 

schools across Derbyshire, a move embraced by the local Safer Neighbourhood 

Teams (SNTs). Each of the 10 LPUs across the force are now involved.   

3. SUB-OBJECTIVE 1: STRONGER, MORE EFFECTIVE NEIGHBOURHOOD 
POLICING TEAMS TO CUT CRIME, BRING MORE CRIMINALS TO JUSTICE 
AND KEEP LAW-ABIDING CITIZENS SAFE 

3.1 The Derbyshire Neighbourhood Policing Strategy highlights the force’s 

commitment to neighbourhood policing and the vital roles SNTs perform. The 

strategy focuses on seven pillars for effective neighbourhood policing as outlined 

by the College of Policing guidelines. These seven pillars are: 

• Engaging communities 

• Solving problems 

• Targeting activity 

• Promoting the right culture  

Page 107



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

5 

• Building analytical capability 

• Developing officers, staff, and volunteers 

• Developing, sharing, and learning  

3.2 Key to the success of this strategy is ensuring our officers and staff who work in 

neighbourhood policing roles are allowed the time, space, and tools to pro-actively 

deal with the issues causing concern in their communities. The force are committed 

to supporting the health and well-being of our SNT staff. A review of the SNT shift 

pattern in early 2022 has implemented changes to ensure it meets organisational 

and community demand whilst maximising well-being of our SNT staff. 

3.3 Our Neighbourhood Policing strategy aligns Derbyshire Constabulary closely to 

the College of Policing guidelines, with no differences in terms of delivery 

workstreams, allowing us to implement national best practice, support regional 

working groups and benchmark our ongoing performance.  

3.4 Police Community Support Officers (PCSO) maximise our opportunities to engage 

with our communities, problem solve and target those causing most harm. Through 

a dedicated and consistent approach, they understand the communities needs 

working with partners to resolve concerns. Recruitment of PCSO’s continues with 

the force recognising this area as a key priority.  

3.5 The introduction of a new SNT abstraction policy this year has sought to reduce 

the number of officer abstractions from the neighbourhood role. Less formal 

abstractions and cover requests are also being recorded and monitored through 

the Neighbourhood Policing Board. As we see overall police officer numbers 

increase through the Uplift, we expect the number of local abstractions to reduce, 

allowing neighbourhood police more time to concentrate on their core role. Over 

the past 5 months the force has recruited and trained an unprecedented number 

of new officers, many of whom will be working on divisions imminently. This will 

soon start to benefit the SNTs and continue to reduce abstractions. An App has 

recently been developed to track and measure abstractions and in support of 

subsequent reporting to the Responsive and Visible Policing Board and the 

Commissioner.        

  

Page 108



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

6 

3.6 To support this approach, we have launched our SNT targeted activity policy, 

providing SNT officers with a clear expectation that their focus should be towards 

people and places with the greatest needs based on local assessments. Our SNTs 

carry out great work towards these key areas of threat, risk, and vulnerability every 

day. Some recent examples include: 

• An Erewash SNT led operation targeted repeat offenders and organised 

crime groups involved in the theft of motorbikes and class A drug dealing. 

Seven arrests were made, and several stolen motorbikes recovered.  A 

prison sentence of six years was given to one of the offenders. The multi-

agency element of this operation also led to the safeguarding of exploited 

young individuals and targeted crime prevention.  

• Amber Valley recently worked with partners to secure a Criminal Behaviour 

Order against a repeat public order offender, known to commit ASB on a 

weekly basis, make threats and shout abuse, often when intoxicated. 

Following a breach of the order the individual was sentenced to a custodial 

sentence.  

• At the end of August SNT officers in Derby West were successful in gaining 

sufficient evidence for the court to impose a three-month closure order on 

a venue associated with a significant amount of ASB, violence and drugs 

intelligence. Since the order was granted there have been no complaints. 

3.7 Problem Solving is one of the best evidenced policing strategies, shown to reduce 

crime, ASB, and demand. Training has been rolled out to nearly 3,000 police 

officers and staff as well as partners, highlighting the Scanning, Analysis, 

Response, Assessment (SARA) approach to this methodology. By following the 

SARA approach, we are able to understand the root causes of a problem, working 

with communities and partners to analysis the problem and thereby respond in the 

most effective and efficient way. Since the commencement of this training over 440 

PMPs have been created by the force with approximately 90 currently open and 

ongoing. A recent independent assessment of our work in this area has indicated 

significant success in reducing and often stopping repeat issues, particularly by 

providing a co-ordinated and multi-agency approach to the problem. 

  

Page 109



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

7 

3.8 A recent example of a problem-solving approach being implemented, took place in 

Ilkeston following numerous reports of bricks and stones being thrown at moving 

traffic. This overlapped with other forms of ASB taking place around the Market 

Place and Bath Street. After scanning and analysing the issues in detail, the 

response phase of the management plan included Hot Spot Policing patrols, 

Section 34 dispersal powers, ASB letters and visits to parents/schools, referrals to 

social care and joint working with Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) to 

improve CCTV and lighting. Feedback to the local community took place in person 

and via Derbyshire Alert. Following the implementation of these actions the issues 

completely stopped. Feedback was sought from victims and local business who 

reported no further problems. 

3.9 Key to the success of this engagement is two-way communication between the 

police and public. To make our local priorities clear, we will show these on the 

website for each safer neighbourhood area. We expect these to be fully updated 

by the website provider by October/November 2022. The priorities are set on a 

quarterly basis based on crime data, survey feedback, local knowledge, and 

community consultation.  

3.10 The website will also have details of the dedicated officers allocated to each 

neighbourhood policing area. These officers will update communities on their plans 

and success in tackling these priorities, through a variety of communication 

methods including newsletters, social media, and direct contact at local meetings. 

3.11 The public can contact the police via phone, website, email, social media, and 

Derbyshire Alert, however we recognise that having a local footprint in the 

community is crucial to public confidence. 

3.12 On South Division the new Joint Police and Fire Station on Ascot Drive is now fully 

functional and operational, providing officers in Derby East with an improved base 

to effectively service their local communities. The Derby City Centre SNT are also 

now working out of their new office at the Council House, a prime location that 

allows a faster response to issues in the city centre.  

3.13 In North Division a new SNT base is due to open in Alfreton in October/November 

2022.  Bolsover District Council are in the process of drafting a lease for a new 

SNT base in Bolsover which we hope will be occupied before Christmas 2022. 

Page 110



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

8 

Work is ongoing to acquire a new SNT site in Clay Cross, and Killamarsh Police 

Station is due to be replaced on the existing site later next year.  

3.14 Work is also on-going at the new site in Chesterfield, this will provide a 50-cell 

custody block and a response policing location within the next three to four years. 

Heads of Terms should be ready to sign off in Autumn 2022. The force will then 

enter a conditional contract which requires us to have submitted a Planning 

Application within 12 months for the new buildings. 

 

4. SUB-OBJECTIVE 2: HAVING ADDITIONAL OFFICERS RECRUITED AS PART 
OF THE POLICE UPLIFT PROGRAMME (PUP) 

4.1 Derbyshire Constabulary has a target of an additional 283 officers over the three 

years of the National Uplift programme (taking us to 2,110 officers). This will be 

met by April 2023 (Year 1 – 85, Year 2 – 85, Year 3 – 113). 

4.2 Derbyshire is on track to meet their total target for all three years in November 

2022.  

4.3 Derbyshire has had a target of 10% Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic (B.A.M.E.) 

throughout all its police officer campaigns during Uplift. Derbyshire Constabulary’s 

current B.A.M.E. representation is 3.3%.  

4.4 To date the number of B.A.M.E. officers recruited is 13 B.A.M.E. (4.6%), five (1.8%) 

of those officers defined as Black heritage. Encouragingly, the recent Degree 

Holder Entry Programme (DHEP) campaign attracted 13.7% B.A.M.E. candidates, 

whilst the Detective Constable (DC) DHEP campaign attracted 15.7%.  

4.5 B.A.M.E. representation for police officers has remained at 3.3% over the last 12 

months. Investment in the positive action team has been made to help increase 

representation and with further recruitment planned we expect to see this increase. 

4.6 Derbyshire Constabulary is one of the best performing forces for gender 

representation, ranked three of 43 forces in March 2022. As of October 2022, 

overall female representation was 51.4% with female police officer representation 

at 39%, compared with 34.4% nationally. A high number of female candidates 

continue to be attracted through the various recruitment campaigns. The recent 

DHEP campaign attracted 41.7% female candidates whilst the DC DHEP 

Page 111



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

9 

campaign attracted 69.4%.  

4.7 Applications have been open for all entry routes throughout PUP. Applications are 

completed via our careers website. 

• PCDA – Police Constable Degree Apprenticeship  

• DHEP – Degree Holder Entry Programme  

• IPLDP - Initial Police Learning and Development Programme (2022-2023 

only) 

• PPD – Professional in Policing Degree  

• a new fast-track entry route for Detectives, Detective DHEP.  

4.8 The Recruitment and Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion (EDI) teams have worked 

closely throughout PUP to undertake engagement seminars in schools, colleges, 

universities, and at force headquarters and online.  Various social media outlets 

have been utilised as well. Events have been targeted at schools and colleges in 

under-represented areas, and communication campaigns in diverse areas via our 

PCSOs, as well as representatives from our staff networks, including our Race 

Equality Network being representative at all events. 

4.9 Positive Action Officers are supporting the PUP and tailoring recruitment events, 

information sessions and mentoring to under-represented groups.  

4.10 Derbyshire Constabulary has employed a Senior HR Business Partner to focus 

specifically on officer retention; this includes an uplift in officer check-ins, an 

increase in tutors available to student officers, targeted variable payments for hard-

to-fill roles, the introduction of a longitudinal onboarding survey, and specialised 

workforce planning analysis to assist departments with forward planning to reduce 

retention risks, an example being, the preparation of Leavers Reports where we 

analyse demographics of leavers to support departments to better understand their 

'at risk' staff so managers can put in resources to specifically target their retention 

risk. 

  

Page 112



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

10 

5. SUB-OBJECTIVE 3: INCREASING OUR VOLUNTEERS, SPECIAL 
CONSTABLES, AND OTHER CITIZENS IN POLICING (CIP) WHO PROVIDE 
GREAT SUPPORT TO THE FORCE AND INCREASED VISIBILITY IN 
COMMUNITIES 

5.1 Volunteer numbers nationally have seen a decline, this is across all sectors 

including the police and many other voluntary organisations. This downward trend, 

whilst significant, is not cause for concern for Derbyshire Constabulary at this 

stage.   

5.2 The recent expansion of entry routes into the police has seen large numbers of 

Special Constables leaving to join the regular force and this is a nationally 

recognised issue.  

5.3 Derbyshire Constabulary’s Citizens in Policing (CIP) section manage these risks 

and work closely with the HR and Communications department to mitigate against 

them. A more targeted communications strategy has been devised and is being 

deployed to advertise vacancies. 

5.4 These include internal advertisements via the in-force intranet known as Connect 

and the e-recruitment portal.  Wider use is made externally of the force website 

and social media. The HR and Communications departments both have in-house 

specialists, making the best use of social media and choosing the most appropriate 

platforms. 

5.5 Derbyshire Constabulary are regular attendees at national CIP meetings and 

forums where many of these issues and best practice surrounding them are 

discussed. The force represents the East Midlands Region at these meetings, both 

at strategic and practitioner level, where knowledge and opportunities for best 

practice are obtained. 

5.6 There are positive indications that these measures are working. The last Special 

Constabulary campaign saw over 90 applicants whereas the one before had 

nearer 30. Also, recent adverts for Police Support Volunteer opportunities, 

specifically cadet leaders had 12 applicants. 

5.7 We look after our volunteers, ensuring that they are well-equipped, properly trained 

and feel valued. This will not only help with the recruitment message but will also 

Page 113



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

11 

have a significant impact on retaining those already in place. 

5.8 Working closely with Learning and Development, the CIP team have devised a 

Continuous Professional Development plan for all Special Constables. This 

addresses key issues identified by the volunteers to enable them to carry out the 

role of constable safely and competently. This is a new programme which will come 

into operation by Autumn 2022. Once up and running this programme will be 

scheduled as a regular commitment by the force for the Special Constabulary. 

5.9 A five year recruitment strategy has been devised and agreed for the Special 

Constabulary. This will entail a constant provision of training for Specials and is a 

significant commitment aimed at increasing numbers of volunteers to a level 

representing 10% of the number of regular police officers. 

5.10 Since July 2022, Special Constables are now able to join the Police Federation of 

England and Wales. This has required a change in the law and has been a work 

in progress for several years. This a significant development and one that provides 

real protection for volunteers. It also includes the possibility of Special Constables 

being trained to carry tasers.  

5.11 Police Support Volunteers are seen throughout Derbyshire Constabulary as a 

valuable resource and part of the team. They were impacted by a 15-month 

suspension of activities due to Covid-19. Work has continued since July 2021 to 

fully integrate those volunteers back into the workplace. 

5.12 For the purpose of this report the numbers of volunteers are broken down into 

Special Constables and Police Support Volunteers. This section compares the 

numbers for each over the last 12 months. 

5.13 Active Special Constables as of September 2021 – 73 and as of September 2022 

– 61. Despite two new intakes and an increase of 20 volunteers there is an overall 

reduction of 12 in total, partly due to Specials leaving to become regular police 

officers. 

5.14 Police Support Volunteers as of September 2021 – 110 and as of September 2022 

– 84. An overall reduction of 26 in total. This is mainly an administrative reduction 

and due to a post Covid-19 review and a realisation that there were many inactive 

volunteers who were either no longer required or who had a change in 

Page 114



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

12 

circumstances and were no longer able to offer their services.  

5.15 The number of duty hours worked by PSVs are: 

• Pre Covid-19 March 2019 – March 2020 – 9,401 hours 

• Period of suspension April 2020 – July 2021 – 1,650 hours (cadet leaders 

via Teams) 

• Post Covid -19 with gradual reintroduction August 2021 to September 

2022 – 5,000 hours    

5.16 All vacancies within Derbyshire Constabulary and opportunities for voluntary roles 

can be found on the recruitment page of the force website. This is owned and run 

by the HR department. 

5.17 In addition, the CIP team work closely with both HR and the Communications 

department to advertise those opportunities. This is done via various social media 

platforms, the force intranet, and public events. The latter is an opportunity to 

further utilise volunteers and to engage with the public 

5.18 Police Support Volunteers perform a wide variety of tasks within the force. Each 

volunteer is the responsibility of their individual line manager and department. Their 

initial generic induction into the force is carried out by the CIP section, thereafter 

their support and development needs are delivered locally by the various 

departments.  

5.19 The newly appointed Police Support Volunteer Co-ordinator role within CIP will be 

looking in detail at where we are with volunteer deployments and individual 

development.  

5.20 Derbyshire Constabulary has an active Volunteer Police Cadet programme (VPC) 

provided across three sites, namely Derby, Chesterfield and Glossop. In addition, 

we are trialling a joint cadet programme with Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service 

(DFRS), this is sited at Buxton. 

5.21 The Derbyshire VPC programme is aimed at children and young people between 

the ages of 11-13 years for junior cadets and 14-17 for seniors. The former due to 

Covid-19 has been temporarily suspended pending the recruitment of more 

volunteer leaders. 

Page 115



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

13 

5.22 The joint programme is aimed at young people from the age of 14-17 years. This 

is currently in its 5th month of a 7-month trial, the expectation being that it will be 

extended to a full 2 year programme with consideration to expand this joint 

programme to other sites across Derbyshire. 

5.23 The VPC scheme currently has 70 cadets, the joint programme has 12. Over the 

next 12 -18 months there is a plan to increase both the number of cadets and the 

sites from which both schemes operate. In so doing, Derbyshire Constabulary and 

DFRS intend to offer the programmes to children and young people from more 

challenging and vulnerable backgrounds.  

6. SUB-OBJECTIVE 4: ENSURING OFFICERS HAVE THE TRAINING AND 
SUPPORT TO USE THE POWERS THAT ARE AVAILABLE TO THEM TO KEEP 
THEMSELVES AND THE PUBLIC SAFE (INCLUDING EFFECTIVE AND 
APPROPRIATE USE OF STOP AND SEARCH) 

6.1 Conflict Management and De-escalation Training, Public and Personal Safety 

Training (PPST) and Emergency First Aid at Work Training is delivered to all police 

officers and police staff that have face to face contact with the public and to all 

police officers who are operationally deployable. 

6.2 The two days Initial First Aid training is delivered upon joining the organisation and 

six days of PPST, concluding in a further two days of summative scenario-based 

assessment in accordance with national occupational standards. 

6.3 These skills are then re-certified annually (within 365 days). Officers that have 

expired certification for these skills will have their deployable status reviewed and 

risk assessed by their supervision. Where appropriate their deployable status will 

be removed or restricted. 15% of our deployable police officers currently have 

expired certification. This can be for a variety of reasons, including injury, career 

breaks and most recently the change in national direction that all ranks must be 

PPST, and first aid trained. Plans are in place to reduce these numbers with 120 

officers to be re-certified before the end of the training year as a priority, along with 

ensuring Public Order and taser carrying officers remain in ticket.  

6.4 In November each year, data reports are run to forecast skills expiry through the 

following year to determine the volume of courses and places required each month 

Page 116



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

14 

(with an additional 10% over offer) to ensure officers remain competent and in 

ticket with a process to re-course two months before expiry, to allow for operational 

priorities.   

6.5 The Conflict Management and De-escalation Training package, produced by the 

College of Policing, has been rolled out to all new student officers since September 

2021 with the refresher programme for current officers and staff commencing in 

September 2022. 

6.6 The initial training of new student officers is a priority for the force with 

recertification places planned around this. The current Uplift Programme has had 

an impact on the ability to deliver recertification training with less overcapacity 

being able to be provided. Theoretically sufficient places are provided, however 

due to sickness, injury and operational commitments training is occasionally 

postponed increasing this demand.  

6.7 When arranging the training, the Force Training Team prioritise delegates 

according to the risks associated with their role. The Force Training Team has had 

challenges filling courses due to a lack of resources to perform this task. This is 

being mitigated by the recruitment of additional staff into vacant positions. 

6.8 The introduction of the new national PPST curriculum will see the ratio of trainers 

to officers reduce to 1:6 for recertification training. Contact delivery time will 

increase from one to two days in line with national standards. The style of training 

(scenario based as opposed to front delivery) as well as the ratio and doubling in 

course length, present significant challenges.  Additional trainers have been, and 

are being, recruited into the training team to meet demand with three venues 

across the force estate being used for the delivery of training. 

6.9 Conflict Management and De-escalation Training will continue to be delivered into 

2023/24 until all who require training have received the input. 

6.10 First Aid Training will continue with most officers and staff receiving training in 

Emergency First Aid at work. Specialisms such as Custody Staff receive training 

in Custody First Aid with Firearms and Public Order Medics completing enhanced 

training.    

6.11 The force has created a workforce superintendent role to oversee workforce and 

Page 117



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

15 

all force training. This will ensure the force better understands officer and staff skills 

to help plan resource allocation and recruitment priorities, whilst aligning training 

with strategic priorities and operational demand. To better support our workforce, 

there will be a new programme of continued professional development throughout 

all ranks, incorporating an ongoing commitment to improve investigative 

standards.  

6.12 Vulnerability training is being delivered to all officers and relevant police staff, over 

an 18-month programme encompassing 3 separate modules. This will ensure 

everyone understands and recognises vulnerability to provide the best support for 

those most vulnerable to harm within Derbyshire.      

6.13 Taser Training   

6.14 Derbyshire Constabulary currently has 502 officers who are taser trained with an 

annual program to train a further 100 officers each year. The initial course is four 

days. A year after completion of their initial course officers receive two days annual 

refresher training. Those unsuccessful on their initial course, come back for a 

further day and most candidates do well with the extra tuition. All student officers 

can apply three months before their respective probation ends. Since April 2022, 

we have trained 56 of the 100 extra officers planned for this year. The remaining 

44 are scheduled to be trained before April 2023, providing a total of 546 taser 

trained officers.  

6.15 Key issues/emerging risks regarding taser 

6.16 The high proportion of officers who are young in service on shifts, can impact on 

the distribution of taser trained officers across different sections which requires 

careful logistical considerations. A pre-curser to taser training is successful 

completion of Officer Safety Training and First Aid.  

6.17 Whilst the budget is to train 100 per year, this does not include attrition through 

people moving into specialisms or retiring, so the 100 uplift will be slightly less 

every year. 

6.18 There was a supply issue regarding the supply of taser cartridges during Covid-19 

and this issue has now been resolved.  

  

Page 118



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

16 

6.19 Stop and Search 

6.20 The police powers of stop and search have been in existence since the introduction 

of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE). Stop and search activity 

should be conducted in line with guidance provided by Authorised Professional 

Practice (APP). Stop and search is an important power for protecting the public 

and tackling crime, but we do not underestimate the impact that it can have on 

communities and individuals. In order to maintain public confidence in its use, the 

power must be used in a fair, legitimate, and effective manner. We welcome 

scrutiny and continue to work with our communities and stakeholders to improve 

the quality of our interactions and to ensure our legitimate use of stop and search 

to protect the public. 

6.21 All new students receive stop and search training during their initial training. The 

package developed by the College of Policing, covers both a theory and practical 

element. Force wide stop and search training is delivered annually to all 

operational officers. This includes any recommendations from His Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Service (HMICFRS), the 

Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) or any College of Policing updates.  

6.22 In addition to this, and to support the appropriate use of stop and search, 

Derbyshire have a comprehensive internal and external scrutiny process. Monthly 

external scrutiny panels are chaired by the Independent Advisory Group (IAG) and 

the Office of Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC), in addition to Youth Scrutiny 

Panels with the Youth Commission. These groups have full unedited access to 

body worn video. Any learning is fed back to officers and is also used to shape 

training. 

6.23 Year to date 7,636 stop searches have been conducted over the past four years. 

The legal power most used is the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 followed by PACE 

1984 and thirdly, S1 Firearms Act. Controlled drugs are the highest search reason 

followed by bladed article, articles for use in theft and going equipped and then 

offensive weapons. The overall positive outcome rate over the past four years is 

34%, placing Derbyshire above the national positive outcome rate of 23%. 

  

Page 119



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

17 

6.24 The past four years data is broken down as: 

• Oct 2018 – Oct 2019 = 1,594 searches. Misuse of Drugs Act (MDA): 

1,009, PACE 1984: 545, Firearms Act: 12 

• Oct 2019 – Oct 2020 = 1,921 searches. MDA: 1,240, PACE 1984: 617, 

Firearms Act: 17 

• Oct 2020 – Oct 2021 = 2,255 searches. MDA: 1,350, PACE 1984: 813, 

Firearms: 45 

• Oct 2021 – Oct 2022 = 1,866 searches. MDA: 959, PACE 1994: 840, 

Firearms Act: 33 

6.25 There are many examples where stop and search has been used effectively to 

remove weapons from the street to protect the community and those who are 

vulnerable. Recent examples include where police responded to a number of 

reports regarding a male behaving erratically. He had self-harmed and also told a 

member of the public that he intended harming someone and that he was carrying 

a large knife. Officers located a male fitting the description and conducted a search 

under S1 Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984. Although no knife was 

recovered, the male was found in possession of controlled drugs. The male was 

suffering with his mental health which was aggravated by drug misuse. He was 

arrested, treated as a vulnerable person and an adult safeguarding referral was 

submitted to ensure he had access to relevant support services. With regards to 

the offence, he received an adult caution.  

6.26 Another example followed a traffic stop by the Roads Policing Unit, initially due to 

the condition of a vehicle’s tyres. The officers could smell cannabis on the 

occupants and further intelligence provided grounds to search them.  All were 

arrested following the recovery of a substantial quantity of drugs with one of the 

occupants found to be in possession of a large knife. The male in possession of 

the knife and drugs was charged and sentenced to six months imprisonment for 

possession of the knife, to run concurrent to a 12-month sentence for various drug 

offences and an assault.         

 

Page 120



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

18 

7. SUB-OBJECTIVE 5: PROVIDING OFFICERS WITH THE RIGHT TOOLS AND 
TECHNOLOGY SO THEY CAN CARRY OUT THEIR DUTY 

7.1 In the summer 2022, a workforce survey identified that there were numerous 

benefits in constables and many sergeants utilising a laptop to complete their role. 

A programme has since started to issue many roles with a laptop, starting with all 

local policing officers and sergeants. Funding for this programme has been made 

through savings that are now being re-invested into frontline policing. 

7.2 We are equipping all LPU officers with a personal issue laptop. We will also seek 

to provide all student officers joining the force with a personal issue laptop which 

they will retain for the remainder of their career. This will start a process which will 

eventually see all police officers using a personal issue laptop by 2025.  This will 

increase visibility, with officers being able to complete a greater number of activities 

and tasks whilst out in the community. 

7.3 The force is purchasing over 1,800 Samsung X Cover Pro 6 devices as the 

replacement product for operational roles, including many uniformed police staff 

roles, for example PSCOs. For other roles, the force is purchasing the Samsung 

A53. The use of enterprise level devices, means they will stay up to date with 

software and security updates for several years, maintaining our overall force 

security stance. The rollout is expected to commence in October 2022, during 

which all operational officers will continue to have the use of personal issued 

Mobile Data Terminals. 

7.4 The current position regarding the national Emergency Services Mobile 

Communications Programme is uncertain and facing further delays. The move to 

Samsung X/Samsung A53 mobile phones will mean that we are able to assess the 

need for further refreshes once the national picture is clearer.  

7.5 Derbyshire currently have 26 drone pilots trained with investment to train a further 

four. This is a full-time role for two officers with the remainder working within our 

armed response, uniform task force and rural crime teams, allowing the force to 

have full geographical coverage, 24/7.  

7.6 Drones have been deployed 969 times over the past 12 months (requested on 

1,291 occasions). In the last 12 months we have increased our drone capability to 

11 drones, investing in two smaller all weather drones supporting flight in wet 
Page 121



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

19 

weather conditions. 

7.7 Drones are deployed to support a number of incident types including increasing 

search capability for missing persons, public order situations including football 

matches and firearms deployment. Drones are now used for incidents where we 

would have previously requested helicopter support allowing us to be more 

effective in our response and reducing overall cost to the force.  

7.8 Project Evolve has developed the forces investment in the National Enabling 

Programme (use of Microsoft products such as Teams). During 2022 the following 

have been created for officers:   

• Crime Outcome Aide – Power App reduces time spent by police staff 

addressing incorrect outcome codes and increases first time compliance 

with National Crime Recording Standard (NCRS), improving the compliance 

rate and reducing the energy put into corrections. 

• Drones PowerApp – reduction in time taken to update drone information 

through cloud-based resources, accessible from anywhere via desktop or 

mobile devices. This allows pilots to record and update the logs, regarding 

their deployment and flying hours using a streamlined process via the cloud. 

This approach avoids costs by removing the need to buy a third party 

solution by utilising the Microsoft 365 tools. 

• DVLA Number plate submissions - Improved processing of mis-represented 

number plates. The manual process of submitting DVLA mis-represented 

number plates is improved using PowerApps and Power Automate and 

issued direct to the DVLA. 

• Streamlined Forensic Reporting (SFR) Medical Consent App – Improved 

process through PowerApps for SFR medical consent capture.   

• DPIA Screening questions – Utilising Power Automate and Forms the Data 

Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) screening process has been updated 

so that a consistent approach is used. 

• Voluntary Interviews – the App ensures a digital and readily accessible 

record is kept for subsequent audit and use by Criminal Justice. 

Page 122



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

20 

7.9 The force has invested in a small team of people, headed by a Superintendent, to 

review our approach to Niche (the force’s crime recording system) to ensure that 

we are maximising opportunities to make it the most effective and efficient it can 

be. 

7.10 The force has a small local team working on the National Law Enforcement Data 

Programme, which is the replacement of the Police National Computer (PNC) and 

are fully engaged with the national co-ordinators. 

7.11 The regional collaboration with Leicestershire on HR, implemented an upgraded 

system of Gateway in June 2022 which includes our Duty Management System. 

The joint team are working through some of the post implementation issues to 

improve performance and efficiency. 

7.12 Derbyshire Constabulary are investing in 90 new vehicles, 66 of which will arrive 

in the coming weeks to be deployed to local response, Roads Policing and the 

Rural Crime Team. A number of vehicles will be configured for prisoner transport, 

and some will provide specialist Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) 

capability. An additional vehicle for the drone team is also being delivered. To 

ensure that we are making the best use of our vehicles and that they are in the 

right places to respond to the public, telematics will be deployed across the fleet in 

early 2023 with trials currently underway.  

7.13 The force has purchased three off-road bikes and by January 2023 we will have 

six officers trained to use them. This will help target ASB and dangerous driving 

caused by off-road bikes across the County. 

 

8. SUB-OBJECTIVE 6: IMPROVING THE 101 AND 999 SERVICES BUT ALSO 
DIGITAL AND SOCIAL MEDIA ENGAGEMENT 

8.1 The Public Contact Improvement Programme (PCIP) is in the process of 

implementing a new operating model. Within that model there is the introduction of 

Performance Managers to assist with monitoring performance across the Control 

Room and ensuring the service provided is as required. There is also an increase 

in establishment at supervisor level, providing increased capacity to support 

operators. In addition, the introduction of dedicated functions such as Training and 

Page 123



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

21 

Recruitment and Resource Planning prevent the need for abstracting operators, 

therefore providing more capacity to service demand. 

8.2 The PCIP has overseen enhancements to Single Online Home such as the Foreign 

Force Request offering and including more diverse categories for easier public 

reporting in the Contact Us facility. 

8.3 Under PCIP, there is a communications workstream, which includes an ‘education’ 

piece aimed at the public, advising what the police will deal with the channels of 

contact and the most appropriate channel for the circumstances, as well as what 

partners deal with. There is also additional work ongoing with partners to reduce 

unnecessary demand. 

8.4 A workstream under PCIP is a well-being programme. Areas of work have included 

regular well-being meetings with team leaders and the senior leadership team 

highlighting concerns so they can be reviewed and resolved in a timely manner. 

Refurbishment of rest areas has been completed providing a suitable area for staff 

to take their breaks.  

8.5 Investment into PCIP is estimated capital costs of just under £4 million and ongoing 

annual revenue costs for the next ten years estimated at just over £1.1 million per 

year. This will see enhanced technology, increased staffing, and upgrade of 

estates. 

8.6 With regards to digital and social media the new operating model implements a 

dedicated digital contact function with a view to expanding as the force shifts 

demand to digital contact channels to meet internal and societal needs. This work 

supports our SNTs, allowing our officers and staff to maximise use of social media 

to contact the public. It is also directly linked to our engagement standards for SNT, 

which sets out standards regarding social media engagement.  

8.7 The force has recently invested in a Social Media Management Tool called Orlo to 

provide a unified platform to administering social media accounts across the force. 

This will also provide management information we do not currently have, and a 

robust management platform for all social media contact. Following the 

implementation of Orlo the August/September 2022 figures for SNT social media 

comments are 9,871 with an estimated 59,226 over the next 12 months. This is 

through Twitter and Facebook.   
Page 124



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

22 

8.8 999 Call Data over last five years 
 

Period 
(April – 
March) 

Total number 
of calls 

recorded 

Total 
number of 

calls longer 
than target 

% Calls 
longer than 

target 
(against 

total calls) 

Total 
Number of 
Abandoned 

Calls 

% 
Abandoned 

calls 
(against 

total calls) 

2017-2018  131,113 22,168 17% 2,196 1.16% 

2018-2019 138,406 27,666 20% 1,003 0.72% 

2019-2020 152,944 49,311 32% 1,392 0.9% 

2020-2021 138,575 35,880 26% 966 0.7% 

2021-2022 167,358 42,848 26% 949 0.56% 

 

8.9 999 Call Data Average Wait time over last 5 years 
 

Date Average Wait Time  
February 2017 7 sec 

February 2018 7 sec 

February 2019 6 sec 

February 2020 8 sec 

February 2021 6 sec 

February 2022 7 sec 

August 2022 9 sec 

 

8.10 999 Call data has increased over the past five years. There has been an increase 

in the number of calls received and a reduction in abandonment rates. In the six 

months to October 2022, the force ranked 12th of 43 forces for 999 waiting time.    

8.11 101 Call Data. The force has a new team called the Crime Resolution Incident 

Management Team (CRIMt). They assist with crime recording which was 

previously undertaken exclusively by operators and this frees up operators to 

handle more calls.  

8.12 Context is important around changes in performance. The late 2019 through to late 

2022 period reflects the introduction of Threat, Harm, Risk, Investigation, 
Page 125



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

23 

Vulnerability and Engagement (THRIVE) and vulnerability assessment and the fact 

that crime recording at first point of contact was introduced to the 101 call handling 

process with no significant increase in staffing, resulting in longer processing times 

which in turn led to longer wait times and higher abandonment rate.  

8.13 The force value the importance of an effective non-emergency response and in 

late December 2021, a change was made to 101 call handling. An initial triage 

service was introduced which has allowed calls to be assessed and processed 

more quickly with a proportion of calls requiring complex action to be transferred 

to specialists thereby improving our Service Level Agreement (SLA), wait times 

and abandonment rates as a result.  

 

 

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

October
2019

January
2020

April
2020

July
2020

October
2020

January
2021

April
2021

July
2021

October
2021

January
2022

April
2022

July
2022

% 101 Abandoned calls

Page 126



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

24 

8.14 As can be seen in the above graph, the percentage of abandoned calls has 

decreased significantly since the introduction of the triage system in December 

2021. Staffing shortages August through to October had however impacted 

performance but there is a plan to improve this through ongoing recruitment and 

the PCIP workstreams.  

8.15 This initial triage service is handled through Alcatel telephony system and has 

managed two thirds of the 101 calls received since December 2021. Of the calls 

received into the triage system 80.81% were answered within 60 seconds in 

December 2021 and 76.55 % in March 2022. 

8.16 The calls are either resolved at this point (two thirds of all calls) or are re-rerouted 

to the control room function. (This may be because the caller is reporting a crime 

or incident). Callers can have their expectations managed at this stage and it is 

explained that they are being transferred to a second queue. The caller at this 

stage has already spoken to somebody so a level of risk assessment has already 

been undertaken and the caller knows the reason for being transferred. The time 

from the transfer to the call being answered is also monitored against the 60 

second SLA.  

8.17 The average wait times have decreased significantly for 101 calls and are now at 

a level which has been consistent for the past three months. There is seasonal 

fluctuation in calls for service with higher wait times experienced in June to August 

due to an increase in demand that we see over the summer months. 

Month 

Average Triage 
Wait Time 
(hh:mm:ss) 

Average Controlworks 
101 Wait Time 

(hh:mm:ss) 
Nov-21 N/A 00:08:52 
Dec-21 N/A 00:06:49 
Jan-22 0:00:37 00:03:42 
Feb-22 0:00:34 00:03:32 
Mar-22 0:00:37 00:04:52 
Apr-22 0:00:39 00:05:28 
May-22 0:00:49 00:06:15 
Jun-22 0:01:21 00:07:55 
Jul-22 0:01:15 00:08:47 

Aug-22 0:01:37 00:09:56 
Sep-22 0:01:35 00:08:29 
Oct-22 0:01:21 00:08:08 

Page 127



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

25 

8.18 Over the past few months clear improvements have been made. This has been an 

organisational priority set by the Chief Constable to improve the service and 

performance in this area and the changes have seen this achieved. The average 

call waiting times are now fairly static and significantly reduced from previous 

years.  

8.19 Interactive Voice Recognition (IVR) telephony system is due to be delivered to the 

Contact Management Department before the last quarter of 2022 which will 

support the 101 functionality. 

8.20 This system will allow service users to direct their call from the outset to the 

department/staff member or officer without having to wait for their call to be 

answered by an operator. This IT solution will further support the improvement of 

the 101 Service Level Agreement (SLA) whilst improving service to the public. This 

will be monitored via dashboards which will have the functionality to export 

effectively into Power BI. This will enable an effective monitoring process and 

continual evaluation will be undertaken.  

9. SUB-OBJECTIVE 7: AN EFFECTIVE ENGAGEMENT AND COMMUNICATION 
STRATEGY TO MAKE SURE LOCAL COMMUNITIES ARE LISTENED TO AND 
PRIORITY IS GIVEN TO THE CRIMES THEY ARE MOST WORRIED ABOUT 

9.1 A number of PCSOs have applied and been successful in joining Derbyshire 

Constabulary as part of the PUP. This is recognised as a risk and increased PCSO 

recruitment has taken place in force, with intakes in November 2022, January, and 

February 2023 which we hope will see 58 new PCSOs join the force. 

9.2 We are working to improve our engagement with our less heard communities. We 

understand the importance of engaging with all our communities. Work through 

Neighbourhood Watch, Derbyshire Youth Commission and engaging communities 

minimum standards will all support progression in this area.  

9.3 Our minimum standards for engagement have been launched and communicated 

through our SNTs. This is very much in line with the force’s Neighbourhood 

Policing Charter which sets out how our policing teams will engage with local 

residents, groups, and key stakeholders. Both initiatives are designed to improve 

the standards, frequency, and effectiveness of communication with our 

Page 128



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

26 

communities. 

9.4 The minimum standards include directions around the use of Derbyshire Alert as 

a quick method of updating communities as well as seeking feedback on local 

issues through Derbyshire Talking Surveys. The standards and charter set out the 

expectation to have regular contact with Neighbourhood Watch, Farm Watch and 

Community Speedwatch co-ordinators. They also place an emphasis on police 

attending local meetings and community groups to feedback on police activity that 

has taken place to tackle the local crime, ASB or community safety issues. 

9.5 Derbyshire Constabulary recognises the impact that neighbourhood crimes have 

on communities. We are therefore in the early stages of developing Neighbourhood 

Acquisitive Crime Teams that will specifically focus on investigating offences of 

burglary and robbery, seeking to bring offenders to justice, provide expert 

prevention advice and reassurance to victims.  

9.6 A restructure of our fortnightly local policing tasking meetings has also prioritised 

the discussion of local priorities and neighbourhood issues (including drug dealing 

and ASB) at the start of these meetings. This allows police and partners to prioritise 

a multi-agency problem solving approach to the main causes of local concerns.  

9.7 Key to the success of this engagement is two-way communication between the 

police and public. To make our local priorities clear, we will show these on the 

police website for each Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT) area.  

9.8 The priorities are set on a quarterly basis based on crime data, survey feedback, 

local knowledge, and community consultation.  

9.9 The website will also have details of the dedicated officers allocated to each 

neighbourhood policing area. These officers will update communities on their plans 

and success in tackling these priorities through a variety of communication 

methods including newsletters, social media, and direct contact at local meetings. 

9.10 Youth Engagement is promoted through the work that we do. The Force has a 

Youth Commission that have provided valuable scrutiny and feedback on stop 

search and use of force, as well as representing the voice of hundreds of young 

people in Derbyshire (through surveys and workshops) on issues such as 

substance misuse and sexual harassment. The work has helped develop our youth 

Page 129



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

27 

Instagram account ensuring it is supportive of the needs of young people. 

9.11 Youth Engagement Teams are being embedded in all SNTs to allow for dedicated 

officers to work with young people, communities and partners (such as Education 

and Community Safety managers) improving engagement and providing early 

intervention opportunities for those young people at risk of harm or criminality. 

9.12 A recent example of a problem-solving approach being implemented took place in 

Ilkeston, following numerous reports of bricks and stones being thrown at moving 

traffic. This overlapped with other forms of ASB taking place around the Market 

Place and Bath Street. After scanning and analysing the issues in detail, the 

response phase of the management plan included Hot Spot Policing patrols, 

Section 34 dispersal powers, ASB letters and visits to parents/schools, referrals to 

social care and joint working with community safety partners to improve CCTV and 

lighting. Young individuals found to be committing ASB were prioritised for 

intervention through the local authority. This included letters to parents and 

Acceptable Behaviour Contracts. The CSP also funded overtime for police officers 

to carry out early intervention patrols and issue dispersal orders. This allowed the 

high visibility presence to last for months and show those in the community that 

the issue was being treated seriously. The joint approach supported a consistent 

approach across all agencies. Feedback to the local community took place in 

person and via Derbyshire Alert. Following the implementation of these actions the 

issues completely stopped. Feedback was sought from victims and local business 

who reported no further problems. 

9.13 A further example of strong partnership working is demonstrated through the Boots 

on the Ground (B.O.G.) project.  

Following Covid-19 restrictions being removed, Chesterfield parkland became an 

area attended by high numbers of young people who were gathering, causing ASB, 

concern and intimidation to local residents and users of the parkland. Police 

worked with their Community Safety Partnership (CSP) to put together a rota of 

park patrols that SNTs would carry out alongside Council Enforcement Officers. 

This stretched through the summer of 2021 every weekend on parks across 

Chesterfield local policing area. It was clear that many of the young people were 

happy to engage with services but due to the lack of regular engagement and 

Page 130



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

28 

planned activities there was a disconnect causing the young people to occupy their 

time with drinking alcohol, which resulted in ASB and safeguarding issues.  

9.14 Recognising the need for more structured Youth provision, Chesterfield CSP 

sought funding and submitted a ‘Safer Streets’ bid which was successful. In early 

2022 the B.O.G. project was set up.  

9.15 B.O.G. is a combination of youth services which includes the following agencies: 

SNT Officers, CSPs and Enforcement Officers (Council Rangers), Spire Trust 

(Chesterfield Town Football Club Youth workers), Blend (charity who provide a 

premises and staff to safely host large groups of youths), Derbyshire County 

Council Early Help Children’s Social Care workers.  

9.16 SNTs are paired up with Enforcement Officers from the Council, Youth workers or 

Social Care workers and patrol key ASB areas. Engagement takes place with the 

young people, and they attend Blend as a safe place to socialise. Blend is open on 

Friday evenings where an average of 100 young people attend the location on a 

weekly basis. Further to this, Spire Trust Youth Workers hot spot patrol between 

1800-2200 on Thursday, Friday, and Saturday alongside SNT and Council 

enforcement officers. 

9.17 Overall, the project has been a real success with ASB figures reduced in the area. 

Through a problem-solving partnership approach young people are redirected to 

safe places to socialise and supportive intervention has reduced concerns that 

were being raised by the community. Importantly funding has been secured for a 

further 12 months. 

9.18 Improving the way which we engage with all of our communities, including those 

often seldom heard and diverse communities is a key focus for the force. A range 

of targeted engagement methods will be used to ensure the greatest reach and 

representation when setting local priorities by identifying what matters most to the 

public and importantly communicating the action we take.     

10. SUB-OBJECTIVE 8: CREATING GREATER PUBLIC CONFIDENCE IN THE 
POLICE AND AN INCREASE IN THE REPORTING OF CRIME AND ISSUES OF 
CONCERN 

10.1 Public confidence in the police is crucial to maintaining law and order. We 
Page 131



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

29 

recognise that recent national and local events have had an impact on public 

confidence therefore we have prioritised work to understand the communities 

concerns and improve confidence in the police. The force regularly seeks feedback 

from the public and partners around what is working well and what requires 

improvement. We conduct local surveys, hold scrutiny panels, and arrange 

Independent Advisory Group (IAG) meetings for a range of areas including hate 

crime, stop search, use of force, taser and ASB.  

10.2 The force review victim satisfaction surveys so we can understand how our service 

can improve across all demographics in Derbyshire, working with our Safer 

Neighbourhood Teams to ensure engagement is tailored to meet the needs of all 

our communities, two-way communication improved and public confidence 

increased. 

10.3 If the public are not happy with a service, our website has clear details of how to 

make a complaint. We have a range of options to deal with complaints, dependent 

on the severity. Officer, departmental and organisation learning is always a key 

consideration within the process.  

10.4 Our website also gives members of the public opportunity to thank the force for 

good work carried out. Each month we internally showcase the numerous letters 

and emails of thanks we get from members of the public who are happy with the 

service our police officers and police staff have provided.  

10.5 A variety of national reporting mechanisms also support the work of the police. 

These include Action Fraud, Crimestoppers, the Anti-Terrorist Hotline and 

StreetSafe. We work with these organisations and use partnership data to build a 

holistic picture of the issues in each neighbourhood. We recently used police data, 

local officer insights and evidence based policing ideas to support bids through the 

National Safer Streets Fund. This resulted in Derbyshire receiving over £1 million 

to spend on crime prevention, diversionary activity and intervention work in Derby 

City and Erewash. Our local Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNT) are working with 

partners and the OPCC to ensure these funds are used as effectively as possible.  

10.6 On the 24th November 2022 a national platform will be launched on Derbyshire 

Constabulary’s website to support the reporting of rural and wildlife crime. It is 

hoped the platform will help direct more relevant information to our Rural Crime 

Page 132



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

30 

Team and encourage residents to report crimes in this area. The launch will be 

promoted through our social media channels, Derbyshire Alert and at events 

attended by the Rural Crime Team. 

10.7 The minimum standards of engagement have been designed to increase 

community trust and ensure the public have confidence to report their concerns. 

They have placed an emphasis on SNT officers communicating with local contacts 

to understand not only what has happened but what issues are emerging and 

affecting confidence in the police. Feedback on our efforts to tackle these issues 

are provided through local newsletters, attendance at parish council meetings, 

social media, and Derbyshire Alert.  A monthly SNT engagement meeting has been 

set up to share good practice across local policing areas and identify any 

blockages to achieving our expectations when it comes to community 

engagement.  

10.8 The HMICFRS inspection in 2018 identified that Derbyshire Constabulary were 

significantly under recording crime. We recognise that this meant numerous victims 

of crime were left without access to victim services and potential crime trend 

information was being missed. A project was set up in response to ensure that the 

force adhered to the national standards of Crime Data Integrity (CDI). We have 

since seen a significant rise in the number of crimes recorded. In 2018 our CDI 

compliance was recorded at 67%, rising to 92.5% in 2022, demonstrating the 

positive work that has taken place in force. 

10.9 The Crime Resolution Investigation Management Team (CRIMt) has recently been 

established to help meet key demands around crime recording and management. 

This approach has already been seen to reduce demand on 101 call handlers and 

relieve pressure on local officers.  

10.10 Reducing the investigative requirements of SNTs allows them further time to 

service the needs of the community and pro-actively tackle the key priorities for 

their area.  A new crime allocation policy has now also been agreed to ensure the 

most appropriate department, with the correct expertise, is allocated the crime for 

further investigation.  

10.11 As a service we understand the impact that local and national events can have on 

public confidence to report crime, particularly in areas such as Violence Against 

Page 133



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

31 

Women and Girls. We recognise the need for additional effort to build confidence 

to report in these areas. Throughout 2022, the force has focused on public facing 

campaigns to encourage reporting Domestic Abuse, Stalking and Sexual Violence, 

reinforcing that we take these matters seriously and are committed to undertaking 

thorough investigations to protect the public and bring offenders to justice.  

10.12 To broaden our accessibility, the force has online reporting mechanisms as well 

as ensuring visibility in key locations, for example, during night-time economy 

patrols and in response to StreetSafe portal. The force also works in partnership 

to encourage reporting of those who reach out for support through their services, 

for example SV2 and Mountain Health in relation to sexual violence, as well as 

having established reporting mechanisms for referrals from partner agencies. As 

a force we recognise the need to continue to build confidence to report such crime 

and remain committed to do so. 

10.13 The force is developing a Victims App which will be an online space that highlights 

and signposts all victim services that are available within Derbyshire, provides easy 

access to explaining victims rights (in line with the National Victims Code), answers 

frequently asked questions, provides crime prevention advise and an opportunity 

to survey. This will allow the force to understand concerns and look towards 

continual improvement in this area. 

11. SUB-OBJECTIVE 9: EFFECTIVE POLICING TO RECOGNISE VULNERABILITY 
AND DEAL WITH IT APPROPRIATELY 

11.1 The force is committed to protecting vulnerable people and has made concerted 

efforts to improve its understanding of vulnerability and its responses. A Strategic 

Vulnerability Board provides clear governance arrangements, chaired by the 

Deputy Chief Constable, providing leadership for the performance and 

improvement activity within this area.  

11.2 The force identifies vulnerability through a variety of means. First and foremost is 

the ability of staff and officers being able to accurately recognise vulnerability. 

Building upon established training programmes, the force has developed a suite of 

vulnerability training modules, which reinforces risk factors when identifying 

vulnerability. Force wide roll-out is due to commence in November 2022.  

Page 134



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

32 

11.3 To support officers and staff to identify vulnerability, the force utilises the nationally 

recognised Threat, Harm, Risk, Investigation, Vulnerability and Engagement 

(THRIVE) assessment model. This provides a decision-making framework that 

seeks to ensure consistency when assessing for risk, threat, and harm, including 

vulnerability, to ensure appropriate mitigation. THRIVE is applied to all incidents 

and throughout subsequent investigations.  

11.4 The force’s tasking arrangements provide effective operational management of 

risk and vulnerability. For example, a daily force tasking and new missing persons 

tasking, ensures incidents and operational demand is effectively risk assessed and 

resourced, tasking extra resources where required from across the force. The 

missing person tasking is also attended by local authority personnel, to ensure 

wider intervention opportunities are considered upon safely locating the missing 

person.   

11.5 The force has established processes for recording vulnerability concerns, through 

the submission of Public Protection Notices (PPNs) which are assessed by the 

Force Safeguarding Coordination Hub (SCH) for appropriate action. Demand 

within this area of policing has over recent years seen an increase, that is 30% 

increase between 2019/20 and 2018/19 and a further 12.5% increase in 2020/21. 

There has been an increase across the various types of vulnerability submissions, 

however there is a noticeable increase in child safeguarding referrals (31% in 

2020, 29% in 2021 and 7% in 2022) which is anticipated following the focus the 

force has made within this area since 2021.   

11.6 In response to the increasing demand, the force has proactively responded to 

ensure it can meet demand. The Safeguarding Coordination Hub (SCH) has been 

formed, which has seen the force merge two previous functions, namely the 

Neighbourhood Safeguarding Teams and Risk and Referral Unit. The restructure 

went live in May 2022. Processes have been streamlined and staff upskilled to 

provide a consistent approach. Collectively, this has provided capacity and 

capability to improve the timeliness of safeguarding assessments. Previous 

backlogs in safeguarding referrals, across both child and adult safeguarding, have 

been resolved, with changes now enabling the team to operate within service level 

agreements.  As such, risk is identified at an early stage and disseminated to 

Page 135



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

33 

appropriate agencies for intervention without delay.  

11.7 In addition, the introduction of the Domestic Abuse Review Team (DART) now 

sees a dedicated function undertake secondary risk assessments of all domestic 

incidents. The team, who are enhanced risk assessment trained, provide 

consistency and objectivity when undertaking such reviews and take cognisance 

of cumulative risk through research, as opposed to assessing incidents in isolation. 

11.8 Referrals are subsequently made to Local Authorities where there are concerns 

regarding a child’s welfare, Education as part of intervention opportunities under 

the Derby and Derbyshire Safeguarding Children Partnership’s (DDSCP) 

‘Stopping Domestic Abuse Together’ initiative and Health, where appropriate. The 

force recognises the importance of the partnership, to continue to ensure an 

effective response to children living and impacted by domestic abuse. 

11.9 Since inception, DART have undertaken 17,007 assessments, which averages at 

436 per week. Previously this function was undertaken by frontline sergeants, 

which is no longer the case, affording sergeants more capacity to focus on wider 

duties and responsibilities, whilst also providing an improved level of consistency 

to risk assessments. On average, DART are making the following amendments to 

risk levels based on wider research undertaken; standard risk escalated to 

medium/high (4.6%), medium risk escalated to high (1%) and high risk de-

escalated to medium/standard (55.3%).  The proportion of de-escalated risk 

assessments has been an area of focus for the force, concentrating on improving 

the accuracy of risk assessments.  

11.10 Quality Assurance has been undertaken within DART providing confidence in the 

accuracy of risk assessment levels. This has provided insight for the force to focus 

effort on improving the quality of initial assessments across the frontline, by 

ensuring risk factors are better understood and to avoid risk aversion. The previous 

5 months has seen an improving picture across the force, with further 

improvements anticipated as the vulnerability training rolls out, which commenced 

17th Nov 2022. It is important to stress that DART undertake secondary risk 

assessments, and in doing so undertake broader research to provide an enhanced 

assessment of risk, which will invariably result in a degree of changes to risk levels.  

  

Page 136



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

34 

11.11 The force has also developed its analytical capability, through Power BI. This 

provides immediate access to information which is available across the force. This 

includes performance reporting and insight into various areas of vulnerability, 

including individuals who pose the greatest risk, for instance repeat offenders. The 

force is now utilising this information to inform strategic profiles, such as a Child 

Sexual Exploitation (CSE) profile. A new Serious Organised Crime and Exploitation 

(SOCEX) tasking is in development, which will seek to be the forum for utilising 

such profiles to focus and coordinate activity.  

11.12 The force has improved its response to missing persons and exploitation through 

the introduction of a force wide Missing Persons Team, co-located with an 

Exploitation Team. New working practices ensure systems and trigger plans are 

up to date and accessible to frontline officers, to ensure they have the relevant 

information to inform their decision making when responding to incidents.  

11.13 In addition, the formation of a Protecting Children Online Team (PCOT) has 

refreshed the force’s operating procedures to ensure safeguarding is prioritised 

and demand is met, through streamlining internal systems as well as investing 

additional resources into this area of vulnerability.  

11.14 Structures continue to be aligned to ensure that the force achieves its plan to 

improve our response to vulnerability. This will see the formation of a dedicated 

Rape and Serious Sexual Offences Investigative Unit and a new Serial, Repeat 

and Civil Orders Team, which will focus on the cases of high harm repeat victims 

and serial offenders of sexual offences, stalking and harassment and domestic 

abuse. This will maximise the use of protective orders ensuring these are 

proactively enforced to reduce risk and harm. The Commissioner has granted 

£25,000 of the precept to support this improvement, offering greater protection to 

victims. Changes to intelligence structures shall improve data collection, tasking 

mechanisms as well as briefings, with a clear focus on ensuring frontline staff and 

officers continue to be equipped with meaningful, timely and relevant information 

about risk and vulnerability.  

11.15 Finally, to complement the new structural changes, a new crime allocation policy 

has a vulnerability assessment embedded to ensure that crimes of increased risk 

are appropriately assigned to a specialist investigator. This will be monitored 

Page 137



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

35 

through the force’s Improving Investigations Board, which is focused on improving 

investigative standards across the force and has a key focus on vulnerability.  

12. SUB-OBJECTIVE 10: COMMITTING TO DELIVER A DERBYSHIRE SPECIFIC 
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS (VAWG) STRATEGY 

12.1 With the support of the Commissioner, the force invested in the leadership and 

delivery of Derbyshire Constabulary’s VAWG Action Plan introducing a dedicated 

Detective Chief Inspector for VAWG. Given the scale of opportunity and work 

contributing towards the Derbyshire-specific partnership VAWG Strategy, an 

assessment is currently underway as to the value of an additional tactical co-

ordinator.  

12.2 This role is pivotal in the effective co-ordination of activity within VAWG, drawing 

together the various different workstreams across Departments and Divisions. An 

operational working group meets monthly to drive activity and delivery, reporting 

into the force’s Strategic Vulnerability Board, chaired by the Deputy Chief 

Constable. Furthermore, a regional VAWG group now sits, providing an 

opportunity to share practice and identify lessons learned across the East Midlands 

forces, providing further opportunity to co-ordinate, where appropriate, regional 

activity. 

12.3 A VAWG strategic problem profile has been completed in respect of understanding 

the nature and scale, key threats, and risks.  Derbyshire reported a 20.1% increase 

in VAWG reporting crime in 2021/22, with a third of offences relating to stalking 

and harassment (35.1%). In relation to this increase, the force has made a 

concerted effort during 2021 and onwards to improve its response to stalking, 

together with legislative changes to the recording of harassment offences during 

this time, provides an explanation as to the increase in trend, which is reflected 

nationally.  

12.4 Force wide operating models have been reviewed to ensure we are maximising 

our opportunities to prevent and detect crime, reducing harm and VAWG, such as 

the creation of a Missing and Criminal Exploitation Team and review of our night-

time economy arrangements, seeing bespoke operations put in place. 

12.5 The force recognises the importance of a partnership response to have a collective 

Page 138



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

36 

impact on VAWG. A Derbyshire-specific partnership strategy, which was informed 

by the public survey conducted by the OPCC in November 2021, has been 

developed and the force is an active partner. Derbyshire Constabulary recognises 

our unique position in the pursuit of offenders, bringing those to justice who commit 

VAWG offences, as well as working closely with statutory partners to protect and 

safeguard. Established governance arrangements are in place across statutory 

partners, with relevant strategic and operational arrangements with the Crown 

Prosecution Service to ensure coordinated and targeted activity   

12.6 Derbyshire Constabulary is committed to role modelling high standards and the 

force deals robust internal processes when addressing unacceptable behaviour 

such as misogyny, sexual harassment, and abuse of authority. 

12.7 The continuing work on VAWG is detailed further in the Performance Scrutiny 

Meeting report dated the 3 November 2022. 

13. CONCLUSION 

13.1 Strong Local Policing is not just about visibility but about tacking crime and ASB, 

understanding the needs of our communities and aligning our workforce to meet 

those needs. Through the priorities set by Derbyshire Constabulary and the 

Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan we are working with our communities and 

partners to maximise opportunities of safeguarding, prevention, and engagement. 

13.2 Through an ongoing review on efficiency and effectiveness Derbyshire 

Constabulary have assessed current processes, realigned staff, and invested in 

technology to ensure our structures and framework meet the demands of policing 

today. This is demonstrated through our investment in technology and 

development of the Public Contact Improvement Programme.  

13.3 Police Support Volunteers are a valued discipline within our Organisation bringing 

skills, experience, and enthusiasm to the force. Our five-year strategy clearly sets 

out our ambition to increase our Specials, PSVs and Cadet numbers providing 

greater resilience to our Organisation. 

13.4 Derbyshire Constabulary are committed to providing a strong neighbourhood 

presence, tackling and preventing community crime, recognising vulnerability and 

dealing with it appropriately. Through the structural changes taking place in force, 

Page 139



AGENDA ITEM 4 
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY MEETING 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 

37 

we will ensure that crimes are investigated by suitably trained officers and staff, 

supporting victims and bringing offenders to justice. 

13.5 As part of the Police Officer Uplift Programme, Derbyshire Constabulary are 

committed to employing a workforce that is representative of our communities. 

Work continues to increase B.A.M.E representation with officers and staff 

dedicated to the role of Positive Action and retention.  

Page 140


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 To consider a report from the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire on the Proposed Precept for 2023/24
	PCP - Budget Report - Cover Report
	2. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	EXTRACT FROM RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
	14.7 Proposed precept



	5 Interim update on delivery against the Police and Crime Plan including update on Strong Local Policing
	PCP - Interim delivery report - 18.01.23
	PSM - Strong Local Policing
	00 2022 PSM Nov SLP Agenda v3 181022
	PSM Strong Local Policing 231122 FINAL FV





